
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

June 21, 2017 – 1:30 PM 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 

Petaluma, CA 94954 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of the June 7, 2017 Board Meeting Minutes  

3. Public Comment on Non-agenda Items  

4. Board Member Announcements 

5. General Manager’s Report  

6.  Consent 
 a.   Approval of Monthly Financial Reports 
 

7. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Nine (9) Contract Amendments Totaling 
$595,116 for the Start of Fiscal Year 2017-18 

 
8. Approve LTK Engineering Services Contract Amendment No. 15 to Contract No. VS-PS-

09-001 in an amount of $711,500 
 
9. Authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with Maze & Associates for 

Independent Year-End Audit services for an initial three-year term with two options to 
extend for an amount of $221,566 

 
10. Approve RailPros, Inc. Contract Amendment No. 3 to Contract No.  CV-PS-15-005 for 

Construction Support for the Construction of the Larkspur Extension Project in an 
amount of $369,342 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 257



 
11. Approve Resolution Authorizing the Award of Contract CV-DB-16-001 to Stacy and 

Witbeck/ Herzog, Joint Venture for the Construction of the Larkspur Extension Project 
for an amount of $36,300,000 

a.  Authorize the General Manager to spend up to five (5) percent of the 
contract amount ($1,815,000) to serve as contingency for unanticipated 
costs 

b. Direct the General Manager to issue a Limited Notice-to-Proceed not-to-
exceed $16,765,514.70 until the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
funding grant has been executed 

c. Approve a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding with the City of San Rafael for the Larkspur 
Extension Project 

 
12.  Approval and Adoption of Fiscal Year 2016-17 Year-End Financial Report, Proposed 

Preliminary Fiscal Year 2017-18 Budget and Ratify the Annual Appropriation Limit for 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

 
13. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, July 19, 2017 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old Redwood 

Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954  
 
14. Adjournment 

 
DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that 
requires an interpreter or other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact SMART at least 72 hours prior to 
the meeting to ensure arrangements for accommodation. Please contact the Clerk of the Board at (707) 794-3072 or dial CRS 711 
for more information.  
 
DOCUMENTS: Documents distributed by SMART for its monthly Board meeting or committee meetings, and which are not 
otherwise privileged, may be inspected at SMART’s office located at 5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200, Petaluma, CA 94954 
during regular business hours. Documents may also be viewed on SMART’s website at: www.sonomamarintrain.org. Materials 
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to SMART after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection at 
the SMART Office. For information about accessing SMART meetings by public transit, use the trip planner at www.511.org 

Page 2 of 257



 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
June 7, 2017 – 12:00 PM 

(Please Note Early Start time) 

Rail Operations Center  
3748 Regional Parkway 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

(Please Note Change in Location) 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
Chair Fudge called the meeting to order at 12:00 PM. Directors Arnold, Eddie, Hillmer, 
Lucan, Mackenzie, Pahre, Phillips, Rabbitt, Russell, Sears and Zane were present.  
 
Closed Session Urgency Item 
Chair Fudge stated that SMART’s General Manager  has a Closed Session Urgency Item 
which came to the District’s attention since the posting of the agenda, facts and 
circumstances have arisen that necessitate immediate action - Conference with General 
Manager, Farhad Mansourian, pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.8 
regarding real estate property negotiations. 
Property: APN: 128—442-014 (at 228018 8th Street East, Sonoma County);  
Negotiating Parties: Farhad Mansourian – Victory Station Group 
 
MOTION (2/3 required): Director Sears moved approval to include Closed Session 
Urgency Item - Conference with General Manager, Farhad Mansourian, pursuant to 
California Government Code Section 54956.8 regarding real estate property 
negotiations. Director Arnold Second. The motion carries 12-0-0.  
 
Chair Fudge announced that the meeting today will be adjourned in memory of Dietrich 
Stroeh. Mr. Stroeh was a huge supporter of SMART and current President of the Board 
of Directors for Golden Gate Transit. 
 

2. Approval of the May 17, 2017 Board Meeting Minutes 
   

MOTION: Director Eddie moved approval of May 17, 2017 minutes as presented. 
Director Russell second. The motion carries 11-0-0 (Director Pahre abstain). 

Page 3 of 257



3. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items  
  

Jennifer Mendoza (Novato Resident) stated that she is very excited about the start of 
passenger service. She voiced her concerns about SMART partnering with Uber and Lyft 
and not having adequate transportation for people with mobile disabilities at stations. 
She also stated that the Atherton Station does not have adequate ADA accessibility. 

  
Peter Mendoza (Novato Resident) stated that in October 2015 he voiced his concerns 
that the restroom on the trains were not ADA compliant for wheelchair users. He stated 
that the Board needs to have policies in place regarding ADA. He urged the Board to 
consider a meeting to discuss.  

 
4.  Board Member Announcements 

 
Director Mackenzie stated the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) has 
signed a Memorandum of Understanding and Contract Services with the Association of 
Bay Area Governments (ABAG) to offer fifty-eight ABAG employees employment with 
MTC. 
 
Director Phillips stated that Quiet Zones are in effect in San Rafael and Novato areas and 
is happy to report that there have not been any problem. He also stated that the San 
Rafael High School Principal was very complementary of SMART’s Outreach regarding 
Quiet Zones. 
 
Director Lucan stated that the Novato City Council approved Phase 2 of the Downtown 
Novato Station construction at the City of Novato’s expense.  
 
Director Hillmer stated that at last month’s Marin Mayors and Councilmembers Meeting, 
Marin County School representatives requested that SMART conduct Train Safety 
presentations at all Marin County Schools. 
 
Chair Fudge welcomed all SMART staff to the meeting and stated that at the conclusion 
of the meeting a group photo will be taken. 
 

5.   General Manager’s Report 
 

Mr. Mansourian announced that on Tuesday, June 6, 2017 Quiet Zones became effective 
in Santa Rosa.  SMART’s Community Outreach Department will continue to inform the 
public about railroad safety at grade crossings. He stated that SMART will begin testing, 
on Thursday, June 8, 2017, with the 4:19am schedule.  
 
Mr. Mansourian stated that the Transportation Authority of Marin (TAM), Whistlestop 
and ZipCar have formed a partnership and San Rafael residents will have ZipCar access at 
the Downtown San Rafael Station.  
 

Page 4 of 257



Mr. Mansourian responded to Mr. Mendoza’s concerns about ADA compliance and Lyft 
Program. He said that SMART has replied to his concerns in writing. The Lyft Program is 
not a SMART program; however, Transportation Authority of Marin is in charge and is 
conducting research to be fully Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant. The 
SMART trains and stations are ADA compliant, the information received today about 
curb cuts on Novato’s public street will be redirected to the City of Novato for further 
assessment.  
 
Lastly, the City of Cotati has issued a Press Release stating its partnership with SMART to 
provide information for customers at the Cotati Train Depot. The Cotati Depot is located 
at 970 East Cotati Avenue and will offer information on fares, schedules, safety and 
other details about the new passenger rail service system. 
 

6. Consent 
 a.   Approval of Top Dog Media, LLC. Contract Agreement 

 b.  Approval of Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. Contract for Insurance Brokerage and 
Risk Management Consultation Services Contact Amendment No. 2 

 c.   Approval of Utah Transit Authority Contract Amendment No. 1 
  

Chair Fudge asked for Board and public comments on the proposed Consent Agenda.  
 
MOTION: Director Arnold moved approval of the Consent Agenda as presented. Director 
Lucan second.  The motion carried 12-0-0  
 

7.   Authorize the General Manager to Award a Contract for Engineering Design and 
Construction Support Services - Payran Street to Southpoint Boulevard Multi-Use 
Pathway with Biggs Cardosa and Associates, Inc. for an amount not-to-exceed $325,000 

 
 Chief Engineer Bill Gamlen gave an overview of the project, andhe professional service 

contract with Biggs Cardosa and Associates for engineering design to develop 
construction plans for the section of SMART pathway from Payran Street to Southpoint 
Boulevard in Petaluma. The work is being funded with Sonoma County Transportation 
Authority Measure M sales tax revenue.  

 
 Construction funding for this work has been secured and is programmed for 2019. When 

design is complete, SMART will work with applicable resource agencies to acquire 
constructions permits. 

 
 The following four (4) pathway segments are up next for construction: 1) San Pedro Road 

to Civic Center Station (San Rafael); 2) Franklin to Grant (Novato); 3) Rush Creek Road to 
San Marin Station (Novato); 4) Cotati Station to South East Railroad. 

 
 Directors’ Comments  

Director Rabbitt asked if this is a safe pedestrian segment of pathway. Mr. Gamlen 
responded yes. Director Rabbitt stated that this segment is used by homeless people. He 

Page 5 of 257



asked staff to prioritize frequently used pathways in the future. 
   
Director Mackenzie stated that the City of Rohnert Park will have a continuous pathway 
from Golf Course Drive to Sonoma Mountain Village. The bicycle and pedestrians 
crossings at Rohnert Park Expressway and East Cotati Avenue are fully functional. This is 
a great demonstration of the value of the multi-use pathway in the community.  
 
Director Zane stated that the Airport Boulevard at-grade crossing will be problematic for 
the Sonoma County Water Agency to get across to the station. There is a need for safety 
improvements at the Airport Boulevard crossing once funding becomes available.   
 
MOTION: Director Mackenzie moved approval to Authorize the General Manager to 
Award a Contract for Engineering Design and Construction Support Services - Payran 
Street to Southpoint Boulevard Multi-Use Pathway with Biggs Cardosa and Associates, 
Inc. for an amount not-to-exceed $325,000 as presented. Director Phillips second. The 
motion carried 12-0-0. 
 

8.  Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with Ventek Transit, Inc. for 
Operations, Maintenance and Revenue Collection Services for an amount not-to-exceed 
$706,528 

 
 Chief Financial Officer Erin McGrath gave a brief overview of the Agreement with Ventek 

Transit. Ventek Transit Inc. is located in Petaluma and will provide maintenance services 
for SMART’s Clipper Vending Machines for a not-to-exceed amount of $706,528 over 
three years. Ventek will provide detailed monitoring information for each machine in the 
field to identify major issues. This is a very technical, specialized area of work that 
Ventek is uniquely able to provide. 

 
MOTION: Director Arnold moved approval to Authorize the General Manager to Execute 
an Agreement with Ventek Transit, Inc. for Operations, Maintenance and Revenue 
Collection Services for an amount not-to-exceed $706,528 as presented. Director Eddie 
second. The motion carried 12-0-0. 

 
9. Receive Operations Readiness Report (Discussion and Provide Direction) 
 
 General Manager Farhad Mansourian stated the following highlights: 

 43  miles of track has been rebuilt; 
 24 bridges;  1 moveable bridge was reconstructed that replaced a 100-year-old 

bridge that took 15 minutes to turn; 
 63 at-grade crossings have been rebuilt;  
 seven miles of bike path have been constructed ; and  
 the creation of a 60-acre preserve  

 
 SMART has reached a significant milestone and is ready to start passenger service. Our 

readiness has triggered two significant events that need to occur prior to start of 

Page 6 of 257



passenger service: 1) full, final multi-discipline audit by the Federal Railroad 
Administration (FRA). Their team will arrive on Sunday and expect to conclude their 
inspections and audit by June 15th; and 2) U.S. Congress requires all passenger trains be 
equipped with Positive Train Control (PTC) by end of 2018, and in certain cases, by end 
of 2020.  PTC hardware, software and testing that has cost us around $50M. This 
enhanced safety feature prevents derailment due to speed, excessive speed due to 
human error.  

 
 SMART has completed over 2,000 individual PTC tests, more than 550 individual at-grade 

crossing tests and submitted over 10,000 pages of test documentation. SMART is now 
awaiting the FRA’s review and final approval. As SMART awaits final approval from the 
FRA to start full passenger service they are inviting the public to give us feedback on 
what days would work best for them for a “soft launch” with free preview rides for the 
public. 

 
 Mr. Mansourian urged the public and board to visit the new website. Also, your Board 

decided to provide a free period, followed by a half price period from July to Labor Day. 
Since we are waiting for final FRA approval we recommend that we extend the free 
period to Opening Day. 

 
 I would like to thank the FRA, who have worked with us in partnership and with 

investment in our success; and the California Public Utility Commission (CPUC), whose 
team has been there to guide us, provide insight and to ensure the safety of all our 
passengers. 

  
 Finally, Madam Chair, members of the Board, thank you for your leadership and I would 

like to introduce the SMART family that made this possible. 
 
 Directors’ Comments 

Chair Fudge thanked the General Manager Mansourian and staff for all their hard work 
and dedication to the project. This is a huge milestone and now we need to receive final 
approval to start passenger service. 
 
Director Pahre thanked the staff and is looking forward to riding the train together. 
 
Director Lucan thanked the staff and said it’s an incredible day and he continues to be 
amazed at the work that has been accomplished over the last few years. 
 
Director Zane stated that she has been on the SMART’s Board for eight years and is very 
thankful that the SMART recall was defeated and the hiring General Manager 
Mansourian took place which is what got us to this milestone.   
 
Director Phillips thanked the staff and General Manager Mansourian for getting to this 
point. He asked for clarification on when passenger service will begin. Mr. Mansourian 
responded that it depends on final FRA approval; however, a “soft launch” can start as 

Page 7 of 257



early as next week.  
 
Chair Fudge stated that no date will be announced today--everything is dependent upon 
the FRA audit that will be conducted next week.  
 
Director Russell stated that she has been on the SMART Board for eight years and it has 
been some ride. Also, every day she works for SMART, she is inspired even through 
tough times. She thanked all staff for all their hard work and dedication and is looking 
forward to the train going to Cloverdale.  
 
Director Sears stated that it is very complex and complicated to bring a passenger rail 
back to in service. She is very excited and looking forward for the public to ride this 
fantastic train and thanked all staff. 
 
Director Eddie stated that it has been a long time waiting for this day to finally come. He 
thanked General Manager Mansourian and staff for all their hard work and dedication 
on this project. 
 
Director Arnold said that she recalls when she received a call from the former Chair 
Brown stating that SMART needed to hire a General Manager. She is very happy and 
excited that she was able to bring in Farhad Mansourian to be SMART’s General 
Manager. 
 
Director Hillmer said everyone should be recognized for all the work that has taken place 
to get to this milestone.  He is looking forward to the next SMART success when the train 
goes to Larkspur and Cloverdale. 
 
Director Rabbitt thanked the staff, general manager, and management for all their work. 
He is very proud to say that SMART built a new piece of infrastructure that will be here 
for future generations. This train system will transform transportation and he is looking 
forward to expanding in the near future. 
 
Director Mackenzie acknowledged a few past SMART Chair members:  Tim Smith, Bob 
Jehn, Mike Kerns, Valerie Brown, Judy Arnold and Debora Fudge and the SMART staff. He 
also acknowledged people who are no longer with us Charles McGlashan--the train color 
green is named after him on the train. Also others like Bill Kortum, George Elman, and 
Dietrich Stroeh who believed in the vision that was placed on paper. Lastly the Friends of 
SMART have been huge supporters.  
 
Chair Fudge told the story of how the color green was selected for the train. She said 
that she and Mr. McGlashan were the two board members that traveled to Japan to 
evaluate the different types of trains. She wants the urban legend to continue because 
the green trains honor Charles McGlashan. We are at this moment when SMART will 
finally open its doors to the public, just pending final FRA approval.   
 

Page 8 of 257



Public Comments 
Steve Birdlebough (Friends of SMART) stated that everyone is looking forward to the 
Opening Day; however, it’s a process and patience is needed and an important 
milestone has been accomplished. 
 
Mike Peckner mentioned that the Railroad Magazine has an article about SMART.             
                                  
Chair Fudge adjourned the Board to closed session at 1:06PM to discuss the following: 
 

10. Closed Session 
a. Conference with the Chief of Police and General Manager regarding security of 

public services and public facilities pursuant to California Government Code 
Section 54957. 

 
b. Conference with Labor Negotiator General Manager pursuant to California 

Government Code Section 54957.6 
  Agency Designated Representative: General Manager 

Employees:  All collective bargaining units 
 

c. Added: Closed Session Urgency Item - Conference with General Manager, Farhad 
Mansourian, pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.8 regarding 
real estate property negotiations. 
Property: APN: 128—442-014 (at 228018 8th Street East, Sonoma County);  
Negotiating Parties: Farhad Mansourian – Victory Station Group 

 
11.  Report Out of Closed Session 
  
 Chair Fudge reported out of closed session at 4:58PM on the following: 

a. Conference with the Chief of Police and General Manager regarding security of 
public services and public facilities pursuant to California Government Code 
Section 54957. 

 Report Out:  No action taken 
 
b. Conference with Labor Negotiator General Manager pursuant to California 

Government Code Section 54957.6 
  Agency Designated Representative: General Manager 

Employees:  All collective bargaining units 
Report Out: Direction given to staff 

 
c. Closed Session Urgency Item - Conference with General Manager, Farhad 

Mansourian, pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.8 regarding 
real estate property negotiations. 
Property: APN: 128—442-014 (at 228018 8th Street East, Sonoma County);  
Negotiating Parties: Farhad Mansourian – Victory Station Group 

  Report Out: Direction given to staff  

Page 9 of 257



 
12. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, June 21, 2017 – 1:30PM – 5401 Old Redwood 

Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA 94954 
 
13. Adjournment – Meeting adjourned in Memory of Dietrich Stroeh at 5:00PM 
  

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Leticia Rosas-Mendoza 
Clerk of the Board         
 
Approved on:      

 
 

Page 10 of 257



Page 11 of 257



FY 2016-17 YTD Remaining 
 Budget Actuals Budget

Revenues
Sales/Use Taxes 36,286,248         27,145,104         9,141,144           
Interest Earnings 377,500              547,571              -                     
Rent - Real Estate 487,197              404,963              82,234                
Federal  - FHWA 1,619,924           1,151,427           468,497              
Other Governments 2,478,177           2,113,423           364,754              
Measure M 350,000              5,240                  344,760              
MTC - RM2 8,436,937           1,787,421           6,649,516           
Fare Revenue 1,976,000           -                     -                     
Charges For Services 30,000                151,102              -                     
State Grants 2,104,500           8,071                  2,096,429           
Federal FTA Funds 5,533,042           809,328              4,723,714           
Miscellaneous Revenue 60,000                432,440              -                     

Revenue Total 59,739,525         34,556,090         23,871,048         

Expenditures
Administration

Salaries & Benefits 4,199,937           3,539,757           660,180              
Services & Supplies 6,110,569           4,026,434           2,084,136           
Other Charges 18,791,927         12,593,359         6,198,569           
Machinery & Equipment 63,210                63,208                2                        

29,165,644         20,222,757         8,942,887           
Capital -                     (0.00)                  

Salaries & Benefits 1,096,770           872,484              224,286              
Services & Supplies 317,703              221,668              96,035                
Other Charges 172,636              62,636                110,000              
Land 574,181              409,169              165,012              
Machinery & Equipment 14,157,885         2,734,401           11,423,484         
Infrastructure 22,109,809         19,671,338         2,438,472           
Intangible Assets 2,000                  2,000                  -                     

38,430,983         23,973,695         14,457,289         
(1,096,770)          (0.00)                  

Operations
Salaries & Benefits 10,311,865         8,096,389           2,215,476           
Services & Supplies 4,810,834           2,507,082           2,303,752           
Buildings & Capital Improvements 1,188,811           927,319              261,493              
Appropriations for Contingencies 492,290              -                     492,290              

16,803,800         11,530,789         5,273,011           
650,000              -                     

Expenditure Total 84,400,428         55,727,242         28,673,186         

Investment Report

As of May 2017
Bond Reserve Fund

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 17,072,500         

Interest Fund
Sonoma County Treasury Pool 2,012,559           

Project Fund
Sonoma County Treasury Pool 321,324              

Principal Fund
Sonoma County Treasury Pool 1,567,866           

SMART Fund Balance
Bank of Marin 11,664,956         
Sonoma County Treasury Pool 41,950,480         

74,589,686         

SMART
Monthly Financial Report 

As of May 2017

Page 12 of 257



Co
nt

ra
ct

or
Sc

op
e

A.
J. 

Ja
ni

to
ria

l S
er

vi
ce

Ja
ni

to
ria

l S
er

vi
ce

s f
or

 th
e 

RO
C,

 F
ul

to
n,

 a
nd

 R
ob

la
r

$2
2,

14
8

$1
5,

67
5

Ad
ob

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

 In
c.

Re
al

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

2,
00

0
$0

Al
co

ho
l &

 D
ru

g 
Te

st
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
, L

LC
DO

T 
Dr

ug
 a

nd
 A

lc
oh

ol
 T

es
tin

g
$2

4,
87

5
$1

0,
94

6
Al

lia
nt

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Br
ok

er
ag

e 
&

 R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$6
9,

00
0

$0
Ar

am
ar

k 
U

ni
fo

rm
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Em
pl

oy
ee

 U
ni

fo
rm

 P
ro

vi
de

r a
nd

 C
le

an
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

e
$1

7,
98

7
$5

,9
38

Ar
ea

 W
es

t E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l, 
In

c
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$5

0,
00

0
$2

2,
45

4
Ba

rb
ie

r S
ec

ur
ity

 G
ro

up
Se

cu
rit

y 
Gu

ar
d/

Pa
tr

ol
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$6
9,

00
0

$4
1,

85
7

Be
nd

er
 R

os
en

th
al

, I
nc

.
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s f
or

 L
ar

ks
pu

r E
xt

en
sio

n
$1

25
,0

00
$6

4,
92

2
Be

rn
ad

et
te

 L
am

be
rt

Ri
gh

t o
f W

ay
 A

cq
ui

sit
io

n 
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s

$4
,5

00
$0

Be
tt

in
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

$1
0,

00
0

$7
,6

25
Bi

g 
Ca

t A
dv

er
tis

in
g

Di
gi

ta
l A

dv
er

tis
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
8,

00
0

$1
6,

50
0

BK
F 

En
gi

ne
er

s I
nc

.
Re

al
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
0,

00
0

$0
Bu

rk
e,

 W
ill

ia
m

s &
 S

or
en

se
n,

 L
LP

Li
tig

at
io

n 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

50
,0

00
$1

11
,8

31
Ca

l A
cc

es
sib

ili
ty

, I
nc

.
AD

A 
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s f
or

 C
P4

$2
5,

00
0

$6
,6

36
CA

LO
PP

S 
- C

ity
 o

f F
os

te
r C

ity
In

te
rn

et
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t W

eb
sit

e 
- C

AL
O

PP
S

$2
,0

00
$0

Ca
sc

ad
e 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 C
en

te
r

AE
D 

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

$1
,7

50
$1

,7
50

Ce
nt

ur
y 

U
rb

an
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
8,

51
3

$1
4,

13
8

Ce
rt

ifi
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t G
ro

up
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 S
ta

ffi
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$4

0,
00

0
$3

4,
76

1
CI

H 
Se

rv
ic

es
 In

c.
In

du
st

ria
l H

yg
ie

ne
 T

es
tin

g 
an

d 
Re

la
te

d 
Se

rv
ic

es
$1

2,
00

0
$7

,7
37

Co
at

es
 F

ie
ld

 S
er

vi
ce

, I
nc

.
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Ac

qu
isi

tio
n 

an
d 

Re
lo

ca
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$2

5,
00

0
$6

,8
18

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Co
rp

s N
or

th
 B

ay
RO

W
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 &

 W
ee

d 
Ab

at
em

en
t

$4
0,

00
0

$7
,6

69
CS

W
/S

tu
be

r-
St

ro
eh

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Gr
ou

p 
Re

al
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
8,

00
0

$0
Da

vi
d 

Rz
ep

in
sk

i &
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s
Tr

an
sit

 M
ar

ke
t, 

Fa
re

 A
na

ly
sis

, C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n
$2

5,
00

0
$1

3,
69

4
Da

vi
d 

Ta
tt

er
sa

ll 
&

 C
o.

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Ap
pr

ai
sa

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

0,
00

0
$0

Da
vi

d 
Ta

tt
er

sa
ll 

&
 C

o.
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Ap

pr
ai

sa
l S

er
vi

ce
s f

or
 L

ar
ks

pu
r E

xt
en

sio
n

$3
2,

00
0

$1
8,

70
0

De
nn

is 
W

al
th

er
El

ec
tr

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 D
es

ig
n 

Re
vi

ew
$5

,2
00

$5
,2

00
Di

eg
o 

Tr
uc

k 
Re

pa
ir

To
w

in
g,

 R
ec

ov
er

ie
s,

 D
em

ol
iti

on
, a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$8
,0

00
$0

Dr
. M

ar
k 

Cl
em

en
ti

Pr
e-

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t P

sy
ch

ol
og

ic
al

 E
va

lu
at

io
ns

$3
4,

25
0

$1
9,

18
0

eL
oc

k 
Te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
, L

LC
St

at
io

n 
Bi

ke
 L

oc
ke

rs
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
74

,1
61

$0
Em

pi
re

 C
le

an
er

s
U

ni
fo

rm
 D

ry
-C

le
an

in
g,

 L
au

nd
er

in
g,

 a
nd

 R
el

at
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$8

,4
65

$1
,1

27
Em

te
c 

Co
ns

ul
tin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
, L

LC
O

ra
cl

e 
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

Sy
st

em
 S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$6
4,

76
1

$5
3,

39
0

eP
at

h 
Le

ar
ni

ng
, I

nc
.

Cl
ou

d-
Ba

se
d 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 / 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
of

tw
ar

e
$6

,0
00

$0
Ge

or
ge

 H
ill

s C
om

pa
ny

, I
nc

.
Th

ird
 P

ar
ty

 C
la

im
s A

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
6,

64
5

$4
,5

56
GH

D,
 In

c.
SW

PP
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e,
 A

ut
oC

AD
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
Tr

af
fic

 a
nd

 H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 A

na
ly

sis
 fo

r C
P4

$1
68

,7
78

$9
4,

24
0

GP
 C

ra
ne

 &
 H

oi
st

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Ca

l/O
SH

A 
Cr

an
e 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$9

00
$4

50
Gr

an
ic

us
, I

nc
.

M
ed

ia
 S

tr
ea

m
in

g 
&

 In
te

rn
et

 B
ro

ad
ca

st
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$8

,0
00

$7
,2

05
Ha

ns
on

 B
rid

ge
tt

 L
LP

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

70
,0

00
$1

25
,1

58
HD

R 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 In

c.
M

ov
ab

le
 B

rid
ge

 S
up

po
rt

$1
,2

45
$1

,2
44

Ho
lla

nd
 C

om
pa

ny
Te

st
in

g 
an

d 
M

ea
su

rin
g 

Tr
ac

k 
Ge

om
et

ry
, T

ra
ck

 S
tr

en
gt

h,
 R

ai
l P

ro
fil

e,
 a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
4,

00
0

$2
4,

00
0

Hu
lc

he
r S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

De
ra

ilm
en

t &
 H

az
m

at
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$4
0,

00
0

$0
IC

F 
Jo

ne
s &

 S
to

ke
s,

 In
c.

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l P
er

m
itt

in
g 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
10

,0
00

$2
04

,6
17

In
te

lle
tr

ac
e,

 In
c.

In
te

rn
et

/C
el

lu
la

r T
ow

er
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$3
5,

75
0

$2
7,

54
1

In
te

lli
ge

nt
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
So

llu
tio

ns
, I

nc
.

M
ax

im
o 

M
M

S 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$3
14

,8
57

$2
74

,7
59

In
te

rw
es

t C
on

su
lti

ng
 G

ro
up

Ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
an

d 
Re

lo
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$3
,7

49
$1

,3
30

Irw
in

 In
c.

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

t P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

$2
0,

00
0

$0
Ja

m
es

 F
la

ge
ol

le
t

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

29
,1

80
$1

27
,8

75
Jo

hn
 Z

an
zi

Fi
re

 a
nd

 L
ife

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

$2
0,

00
0

$9
,0

88

Co
nt

ra
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y
Ac

tiv
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

1,
 2

01
7

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 1

6-
17

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 1

6-
1717

   
 

Ac
tu

al
s-

To
-D

at
e

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 2

Page 13 of 257



Co
nt

ra
ct

or
Sc

op
e

Ka
th

y 
W

oo
d 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s
Ac

qu
isi

tio
n 

an
d 

Re
lo

ca
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$3

6,
25

2
$0

Kr
eb

s C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
, I

nc
Pr

oj
ec

t C
os

t M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
,0

00
$6

83
Ku

rla
nd

 D
ig

ita
l

W
eb

sit
e 

Ho
st

in
g 

an
d 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$7
00

$7
00

LT
K 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

Ve
hi

cl
e 

an
d 

Sy
st

em
s D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

,8
94

,5
83

$1
,9

44
,6

96
M

ac
ia

s G
in

i &
 O

’C
on

ne
ll 

LL
P 

(M
GO

)
Fi

na
nc

ia
l A

ud
it 

Se
rv

ic
es

$4
4,

40
1

$4
4,

40
1

M
ag

gi
or

a 
&

 G
hi

lo
tt

i, 
In

c.
N

on
-M

ot
or

ize
d 

Pa
th

w
ay

 E
. C

ot
at

i A
ve

 to
 G

ol
f C

ou
rs

e 
Dr

iv
e

$1
,1

69
,9

55
$1

,1
67

,8
30

M
an

ag
ed

 H
ea

lth
 N

et
w

or
k

Em
pl

oy
ee

 A
ss

ist
an

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
 (E

AP
) S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
,9

10
$1

,5
44

M
as

ab
i L

LC
SM

AR
T 

M
ob

ile
 T

ic
ke

tin
g 

Pi
lo

t P
ro

je
ct

$1
35

,0
00

$0
M

Gr
od

ne
r, 

LL
C

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$5

0,
00

0
$4

2,
65

3
M

oo
re

 Ia
co

fa
no

 G
ol

ts
m

an
, I

nc
.

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

W
eb

sit
e 

De
sig

n
$3

9,
50

0
$3

4,
72

5
N

el
so

n\
N

yg
aa

rd
 C

on
su

lti
ng

  A
ss

oc
ia

te
s,

 In
c.

Bi
cy

cl
e 

Pa
rk

in
g 

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

la
n

$2
,3

51
$2

,3
51

N
et

sp
ee

d 
So

lu
tio

ns
, I

nc
.

Av
ay

a 
IP

 O
ffi

ce
 S

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s a

t P
et

al
um

a,
 R

O
C,

 a
nd

 M
O

W
$5

,3
00

$5
,3

00
N

et
sp

ee
d 

So
lu

tio
ns

, I
nc

.
Av

ay
a 

IP
 O

ffi
ce

 S
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s a
t R

ob
la

r
$1

0,
82

3
$1

0,
81

5
N

et
w

ov
en

 In
c.

De
sig

n 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

e 
fo

r D
oc

um
en

t a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
$6

2,
66

4
$5

4,
27

5
N

or
th

 B
ay

 S
AP

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Su

bs
ta

nc
e 

Ab
us

e 
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$5

,0
00

$0
N

os
sa

m
an

 L
LP

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s -
 R

ai
lro

ad
 R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
Is

su
es

 &
 T

ra
ns

it 
D-

B 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
$2

01
,9

55
$1

31
,6

31
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
rs

 o
f C

A
Pr

e-
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t E
va

lu
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$2
1,

95
0

$1
1,

58
7

O
ra

cl
e

Fu
sio

n 
En

te
rp

ris
e 

Re
so

ur
ce

 P
la

nn
in

g 
(E

RP
) S

of
tw

ar
e 

&
 H

os
tin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$4

7,
88

0
$3

5,
91

0
Pa

rk
s E

le
ct

ric
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 P
ow

er
 C

irc
ui

ts
 a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 E

le
ct

ric
al

 W
or

k 
at

 th
e 

Ro
bl

ar
 F

ac
ili

ty
$2

,7
75

$2
,7

75
Pa

ro
di

 In
ve

st
ig

at
iv

e 
So

lu
tio

ns
Pr

e-
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t B
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$2

4,
60

0
$2

0,
25

0
Pa

yc
he

x,
 In

c.
Pa

yr
ol

l P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

$2
1,

63
2

$2
0,

30
8

PG
H 

W
on

g 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$8

7,
97

0
$8

7,
97

0
Pl

at
in

um
 A

dv
iso

rs
, L

LC
St

at
e 

Le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
Ad

vo
ca

cy
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
20

,0
00

$1
00

,0
00

Po
rt

ol
a 

Sy
st

em
s,

 In
c.

SM
AR

T 
St

at
io

n 
N

et
w

or
k 

Co
nf

ig
ur

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$2

77
,2

84
$2

69
,9

04
Pu

bl
ic

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ge

m
en

t, 
In

c.
Fi

na
nc

ia
l A

dv
iso

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$5
,0

00
$0

Pu
bl

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ge
m

en
t, 

In
c.

Ar
bi

tr
ag

e 
Re

ba
te

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
$2

,0
00

$0
Ra

ilP
ro

s,
 In

c.
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r L

ar
ks

pu
r E

xt
en

sio
n

$7
61

,6
53

$7
09

,2
33

Re
fo

re
st

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
, I

nc
.

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
Co

nt
ro

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

3,
20

6
$2

0,
57

9
Se

rv
Pr

o 
of

 L
ak

e 
M

en
do

ci
no

 a
nd

 S
on

om
a 

Co
un

ty
Bi

oh
az

ar
d 

Cl
ea

n-
U

p 
an

d 
Ha

zm
at

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

4,
36

0
$0

Sh
im

m
ic

k 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Co

, I
nc

.
D/

B 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 IO
S2

, H
ay

st
ac

k,
 O

M
F,

 S
ta

tio
n 

Fi
ni

sh
es

 a
nd

 P
at

hw
ay

$6
,5

49
,5

11
$4

,2
61

,7
31

SP
TJ

 C
on

su
lti

ng
N

et
w

or
k 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, S

ec
ur

ity
, M

ig
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

Se
tu

p 
Se

rv
ic

es
$3

89
,8

80
$1

96
,8

98
St

ac
y 

an
d 

W
itb

ec
k/

He
rz

og
, J

V
De

sig
n/

 B
ui

ld
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 C

iv
il,

 T
ra

ck
 &

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
s I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
f I

O
S-

1
$1

0,
91

1,
64

3
$9

,8
49

,1
09

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

on
tr

ol
 B

oa
rd

M
ira

 M
on

te
 S

ite
 C

le
an

up
 P

ro
gr

am
$6

,4
00

$3
,5

82
St

ev
e 

Ta
yl

or
 E

xc
av

at
io

n
Ve

hi
cl

e 
De

te
ct

or
 L

oo
p 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
2,

32
3

$1
2,

32
3

ST
V,

 In
c.

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Br
id

ge
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
00

,0
00

$8
9,

24
3

Su
m

ito
m

o 
Co

rp
or

at
io

n
M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
 &

 D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 V
eh

ic
le

s
$1

2,
43

5,
63

4
$1

,3
33

,3
96

Su
m

m
it 

Si
gn

al
, I

nc
.

IS
TE

A 
- C

on
st

ru
ct

in
g 

Bl
ac

k 
Po

in
t B

rid
ge

 A
ut

om
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

$1
94

,2
50

$1
94

,2
50

Su
m

m
it 

Si
gn

al
, I

nc
.

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Ca

ll-
O

ut
 S

er
vi

ce
s f

or
 T

ra
ck

 a
nd

 S
ig

na
ls

$6
0,

00
0

$2
6,

96
0

Su
m

m
it 

Si
gn

al
, I

nc
.

Tr
ac

k 
an

d 
Si

gn
al

 In
sp

ec
tio

ns
$8

5,
11

0
$7

6,
89

6
Sw

ift
ly

, I
nc

.
AV

L 
M

ob
ile

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

an
d 

W
eb

sit
e 

In
te

rf
ac

e
$9

,9
00

$9
,9

00
Th

e 
GB

S 
Gr

ou
p

In
te

rn
et

 C
on

ne
ct

iv
ity

 (W
i-F

i) 
fo

r S
M

AR
T 

Tr
ai

ns
$8

44
,5

00
$7

85
,0

64
U

ta
h 

Tr
an

sit
 A

ut
ho

rit
y

DM
U

 W
he

el
 T

ru
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$3

,2
62

$0
Va

n 
Sc

oy
oc

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Fe
de

ra
l L

eg
isl

at
iv

e 
Ad

vo
ca

cy
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$4
8,

00
0

$4
0,

00
0

W
BE

De
sig

n 
an

d 
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 S
ec

ur
ity

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

$2
07

,0
72

$1
67

,2
10

Xe
nt

ra
ns

, I
nc

.
DM

U
 W

iF
i D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$5
4,

09
0

$5
4,

09
0

Ze
ba

 C
on

su
lti

ng
, I

nc
.

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
Ad

ve
rt

isi
ng

 C
on

su
lta

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
4,

53
6

$1
2,

26
8

To
ta

ls
$4

0,
41

3,
52

9
$2

3,
22

3,
65

1

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 2

*A
ct

ua
ls-

To
-D

at
e 

in
cl

ud
es

 in
vo

ic
es

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

as
 o

f J
un

e 
1,

 2
01

7,
 b

ut
 m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ro

ce
ss

ed
 in

 S
M

AR
T'

s F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ys
te

m
.

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 1

6-
17

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 1

6-
1717

   
 

Ac
tu

al
s-

To
-D

at
e

Page 14 of 257



Page 15 of 257



Contractor and Scope Type

 Proposed 
Amendment 
Amount 

 New Not‐to‐
Exceed 
Amount 

New 
Expiration 
Date

Emtec Consulting Services, LLC :  Oracle Accounting System Support Services
•  On‐Call support for SMART's Enterprise Resource Planning Software (ERP).                 
•  Support includes: Incident Management, Planned Support, Root‐Cause Analysis &  
Problem Management, and related Service Requests.   
•  SMART's Enterprise Resource Planning Software includes:    General Ledger, 
Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable, Cash Management, Fixed Assets, Purchasing, 
Project Costing, and Project Controls.                                                               

Administration: 
Finance

65,000$          165,000$      6/30/2018

Public Financial Management:  Financial Advisory Services                    
• Financial model advisory services       
• Assistance with annual rating agency evaluations    
• Strategic plan and debt analysis 

Administration: 
Finance

15,000$          125,000$      6/30/2018

Netwoven, Inc. : Design Information Architecture for Document and Project 
Management Technology      
•  Maintenance and monitoring of internal Sharepoint site for operations and capital 
management

Administration: 
Information 
Technology

46,050$          265,892$      6/30/2018

Hanson Bridgett, LLP:  Legal Services ‐ Union Negotiations                                                  
•  Labor negotiations with three employee unions including legal advice on employee 
benefits,  pensions, and wage rules.                                         

Administration: 
Legal and  
Human 
Resources

75,000$          370,000$      6/30/2018

STV, Inc.  On‐Call Railroad Bridge Inspection Services   
•   On‐Call Engineering and Inspection Support for Railroad Bridges in compliance 
with 49 CFR 213 &237     
•  Evaluates bridge ratings, state of good repair assessment, load ratings, and bridge 
measurements for all bridges in SMART's inventory.                      
•  Inspection reports and repair recommendations.

Capital:  Bridge 
Management

50,000$          150,000$      6/30/2018

GHD, Inc.:  Clean Water Compliance, AutoCAD Management, Traffic and Hydraulic 
Analysis    
•  Autocad drawing support for compiling as‐built conditions of railroad 
•  Drainage design modifications in response to storm issues      
•  As‐needed specialty engineering for areas including hydraulics, drainage and traffic  

Capital: Program 
Management

100,000$        1,224,000$   6/30/2018

Mgrodner, LLC:  Project Management Services       
•  Expert  technical solutions for  rail engineering   
•  Coordination of rail activation activities with civil engineering project needs

Capital: Program 
Management

100,000$        649,716$      6/30/2018

WBE, Inc:  Station Surveillance Equipment
 •  Design and Installation of video surveillance equipment for newly constructed 
Petaluma and Airport Blvd Park & Ride Lots   
•  WBE has previously designed and furnished security equipment at all SMART 
stations and Park & Rides and their continued use will enable a seemless integration 
of the new Park & Ride Lot Security equipment to our current system.                              

Capital: Station 
Infrastructure

50,000$          342,072$      12/31/2017

Portola Systems, Inc. :  SMART Station Network Configuration Services  
•  CISCO SMARTnet 24/7 Warranty and Support Services for  one year.    
•  Resolve critical issues with all hardware and software in the SMART Station 
Network; provide replacement parts when neccesary 
•  All updates, upgrades to operating systems, security, and product alerts are 
included for these station devices.                                                            

Operations:  
Information 
Technology

94,066$          1,332,776$   6/30/2018



THIRD AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AND EMTEC GLOBAL SERVICES, LLC 
 

This Third Amendment dated as of _________, 2017 (the “Third Amendment”) to the 
Agreement for Consultant Services (“Original Agreement”) by and between the Sonoma-
Marin Area Rail Transit District (“SMART”) and Emtec Global Services, LLC (“EGS”) 
and the Scope of Work (“SOW”) by and between SMART and Emtec Consulting 
Service, LLC (“CONSULTANT”), both dated as of January 1, 2016 (together the 
“Agreement,” as amended by the First Amendment, Second Amendment, and now this 
Third Amendment).   
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into the SOW to 
provide ClearCARE® support services for SMART’s Oracle Fusion Enterprise Resource 
Planning Software (ERP); and 

 
WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT entered into the First and Second 

Amendments dated July 1, 2016 and November 1, 2016 to increase the not-to-exceed 
amount and extend the term of the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, SMART would like to increase the not-to-exceed amount by 

$65,000 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $165,000, and to extend the term to June 30, 
2018; and  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the 
covenants contained herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that: 

 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

 
1. “5.  Service Fees and Expenses” The following sentence from Section 5 of the SOW 

is amended as follows: 
 
Emtec’s professional fees related to the SOW shall not exceed $165,000.   
  

2. “ARTICLE 6.  TERM OF AGREEMENT” Article 6 of the Agreement is amended 
as follows: 
 
“ARTICLE 6. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall 
remain in effect until June 30, 2018 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the 
provisions of Article 7 below.” 
 

Page 16 of 257



3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 
the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 
and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 
any provision of the Agreement. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-----------------------------THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK------------------ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 257



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Third 
Amendment as set forth below. 

 
 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
               Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 
  
   
      EMTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 
 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
 

 Its __________________________________ 
 
 
 
                                                                APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Dated: _______________                      By_________________________________ 
                                                                      District Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 18 of 257



FIFTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AND PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 

This FIFTH AMENDMENT dated as of __________, 2017 (the “Fifth 
Amendment”) to the Agreement by and between the SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL 
TRANSIT DISTRICT (“SMART”) and PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
(“CONSULTANT”), dated as of February 1, 2011 (the “Original Agreement,” and as 
supplemented and amended by the First, Second, Third, Fourth Amendments, and this 
Fifth Amendment, the “Agreement”).   
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into the Original 
Agreement for the purpose of providing municipal finance advisory services associated 
with Sales Tax Revenue Bond Series 2011 (BONDS 2011) to SMART; and 

 
WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into various 

Amendments to the Agreement between May 1, 2013 and June 1, 2016, to increase the 
not-to-exceed amount and extend the term of the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, SMART desires to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the 

Agreement to June 30, 2018, and to increase the not-to-exceed amount by $15,000 for a 
total not-to-exceed amount of $125,000. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the 
covenants contained herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. “ARTICLE 5.  PAYMENT”  Article 5 of the Agreement is amended as follows: 
 
In addition to the not-to-exceed amount set forth in the Original Agreement, the 
contract amount shall be increased by an amount not-to-exceed $15,000 for a total 
not-to-exceed amount of $125,000 for the Agreement.   
 

2. ARTICLE 6.  “TERM OF AGREEMENT” is hereby deleted and replaced in 
its entirety with the following: 
 
“ARTICLE 6.  TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall 
remain in effect until June 30, 2018, unless terminated earlier in accordance with 
the provisions of Article 7 below.” 

 
 
 

Page 19 of 257



3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented 
hereby, the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits 
thereto is, and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, 
and nothing contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or 
otherwise affect any provision of the Agreement. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-------------------------THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK---------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20 of 257



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fifth Amendment as 
set forth below. 
 
 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
               Farhad Mansourian, General Manager  
  
   

 
PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
 

         Its __________________________________ 
 
 
                                                          
                                                               APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
Dated: _______________                     By______________________________ 
                                                                      District Counsel 
 

Page 21 of 257



TWELFTH AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA 

RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT AND NETWOVEN, INC. 
 

 This Twelfth Amendment, dated as of __________, 2017 (the “Twelfth Amendment”), is 
to that certain Agreement for Professional Services between Netwoven, Inc. (“CONSULTANT”) 
and the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (“SMART”), dated as of August 20, 2009 and 
identified as Contract Number #IT-PS-09-001 (the “Original Agreement,” and as previously 
supplemented and amended by the First, Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Seventh, Eighth, Ninth 
Tenth, and Eleventh Amendment (collectively the “Amendments”), and as further supplemented and 
amended by this Twelfth Amendment, the “Agreement”).   
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into the Original 
Agreement on August 20, 2009, for the provision of design information architecture for 
document and project management technology solutions and related services; and 

 
 WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into various Amendments 
to the Agreement between November 8, 2009 and July 1, 2016, to amend the scope of services, 
increase the not-to-exceed amount, and extend the term of the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, SMART desires to amend the Agreement to increase the not-to-exceed 

amount by $46,050, for a total not-to-exceed amount of $265,892, and extend the term of the 
Agreement to June 30, 2018.  

 
 NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. “ARTICLE 4.  PAYMENT” Article 4 of the Agreement is amended as follows: 
 
In addition to the not-to-exceed amount set forth in the Original Agreement, the 
contract amount shall be increased by an amount not-to-exceed $46,050, for a total 
not-to-exceed amount of $265,892 for the Agreement.   
 

2. “ARTICLE 5.  TERM OF AGREEMENT” is hereby deleted and replaced in its 
entirety with the following: 

 
“ARTICLE 5.  TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall 
remain in effect until June 30, 2018, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the 
provisions of Article 6 below.” 
 

 

Page 22 of 257



3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 
the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 
and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 
any provision of the Agreement. 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Twelfth Amendment 
as of the date first set forth above. 
  
      NETWOVEN, INC.      
 
       

Page 23 of 257



 
Dated: _________________   By____________________________________       
                Consultant 
 
 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
 
Dated: _________________   By____________________________________          
            Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 
                                                                          
                                                                          
 
      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
Dated: _________________   By____________________________________         
            District Counsel 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24 of 257



FIFTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AND HANSON BRIDGETT, LLP 
 

This FIFTH AMENDMENT dated as of ___________, 2017 (the “Fifth 
Amendment”) to the Agreement by and between the SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL 
TRANSIT DISTRICT (“SMART”) and HANSON BRIDGETT, LLP 
(“CONSULTANT”), dated as of June 20, 2012 (the “Original Agreement,” and as 
amended by the First, Second, Third, Fourth Amendments and now this Fifth 
Amendment, the “Agreement”).   

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into the Original 
Agreement to provide specialized legal expertise in public employee benefits, public 
transportation issues, and intellectual property matters; and 
 

WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into various 
Amendments to the Agreement between July 1, 2013 and February 15, 2017, to update 
the Scope of Services, increase the not-to-exceed amount, and extend the term of the 
Agreement; and 

 
 WHEREAS, SMART desires to amend the Agreement to increase the not-to-
exceed amount by $75,000, for a total not-to-exceed amount of $370,000, and to extend 
the term to June 30, 2018; and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the 
covenants contained herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. “ARTICLE 2.  COMPENSATION” is hereby amended so that compensation 
for services shall not exceed $370,000. 

 
2. “ARTICLE 3.  TERM” is hereby deleted and replaced in its entirety with the 

following: 
 
“ARTICLE 3.  TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect until 
June 30, 2018, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of 
Article 8 below.”  

 
3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented 

hereby, the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits 
thereto is, and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, 
and nothing contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or 
otherwise affect any provision of the Agreement. 

Page 25 of 257



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fifth 
Amendment as set forth below. 
 
 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
               Farhad Mansourian, General Manager  
  
   

 
HANSON BRIDGETT, LLP 

 
 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 

                Madeline Chun, Partner 
 
 
 
                                                          
                                                               APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
Dated: _______________                     By______________________________ 
                                                                      District Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26 of 257



FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AND STV, INC. 
 

This First Amendment dated as of___________, 2017 (the “First Amendment”) to the 
Agreement for Consultant Services by and between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit 
District (“SMART”) and STV, Inc. (“CONSULTANT”), dated as of September 22, 2016 
(the “Original Agreement,”).   
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into the Original 
Agreement to provide On-Call support services, railroad bridge inspection, engineering, 
and related services; and 

 
WHEREAS, SMART desires to amend the Agreement to increase the not-to-

exceed amount by $50,000, for a total not-to-exceed amount of $150,000 and to extend 
the term to June 30, 2018; and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the 
covenants contained herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. “ARTICLE 5.  PAYMENT” Article 5 of the Agreement is amended as follows: 

 
In addition to the not-to-exceed amount set forth in the Original Agreement, the 
contract amount shall be increased by an amount not-to-exceed $50,000, for the 
provisions of services, for an aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $150,000 for the 
Agreement.   

 
2. “ARTICLE 6.  TERM OF AGREEMENT” Article 6 of the Agreement is amended 

as follows: 
 
“ARTICLE 6. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall 
remain in effect until June 30, 2018 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the 
provisions of Article 7 below.” 
 

3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 
the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 
and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 
any provision of the Agreement. 

 
 
 

Page 27 of 257



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Amendment as 
set forth below. 

 
 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
               Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 
  
   
      STV, INC. 
 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
 

 Its __________________________________ 
 
 
 
                                                                APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Dated: _______________                      By_________________________________ 
                                                                       District Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 28 of 257



FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT  

AND GHD, INC. 
 
 

 This Fifth Amendment dated as of ________, 2017 (the “Fifth Amendment”), to the 
Agreement for Consultant Services by and between GHD, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as 
“CONSULTANT”) and the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (hereinafter referred to as 
“SMART”), dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Original Agreement,” as amended and 
supplemented by the First Amendment, Second Amendment, Third Amendment, Fourth 
Amendment, and now this Fifth Amendment, the “Agreement”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT and SMART previously entered the Original Agreement to 
develop professional engineering support for such tasks as Autocad drawing management and 
design, hydraulics and hydrology assistance, traffic engineering, and technical field and office 
support services in support of SMART Project design and construction; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT and SMART previously entered into various Amendments 

to the Agreement between February 1, 2014 and March 1, 2017 to increase the not-to-exceed 
amount, add geotechnical work to the scope of work, and extend the term of the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT and SMART desire to amend the Agreement to increase 

the not-to-exceed amount by $100,000, for a total not-to-exceed amount of $1,224,000, and to 
extend the term to June 30, 2018; and 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. “ARTICLE 5.  PAYMENT” Article 5 of the Agreement is amended as follows: 
 
In addition to the not-to-exceed amount set forth in the Original Agreement, the 
contract amount shall be increased by an amount not-to-exceed $100,000, for the 
provisions of the services, for an aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $1,224,000, for 
the Agreement. 
 

2. ARTICLE 6.  “TERM OF AGREEMENT” is hereby deleted and replaced in its 
entirety with the following: 
 
“ARTICLE 6. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall 
remain in effect until June 30, 2018, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the 
provisions of Article 7 below.” 
 

Page 29 of 257



3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 
the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 
and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 
any provision of the Agreement. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
------------------------------THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK--------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30 of 257



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fifth Amendment as of the 
date first set forth above. 
  
      

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
             Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 
 
  
 

 GHD, INC. 
 

 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
            Consultant 
 
 
 
                                                         APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Dated: _______________                  By______________________________ 
      District Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 31 of 257



SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AND M GRODNER, LLC 
 

This SEVENTH AMENDMENT dated as of __________, 2017 (the “Seventh 
Amendment”) to the Agreement by and between the SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL 
TRANSIT DISTRICT (“SMART”) and M GRODNER, LLC (“CONSULTANT”), dated 
as of April 1, 2012 (the “Original Agreement,” and as supplemented by previous 
Amendments, and this Seventh Amendment, the “Agreement”).   
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into the Original 
Agreement for the purpose of providing project management services for the SMART 
project; and 
 

WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into various 
Amendments to the Agreement between June 1, 2012 and December 1, 2016, to increase 
the not-to-exceed amount and extend the term of the Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, SMART desires to amend the Agreement to increase the not-to-
exceed amount by $100,000 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $649,716, and to extend 
the term of the Agreement to June 30, 2018. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the 
covenants contained herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. “ARTICLE 4.  TERM OF AGREEMENT” is hereby deleted and replaced in its 

entirety with the following: 
 
“ARTICLE 4.  TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall 
remain in effect until June 30, 2018, unless terminated earlier in accordance with 
the provisions of Article 8 below.” 
 

2. “ARTICLE 5.  REIMBURSEMENT” is revised as follows: 
 
Consultant shall be paid on a time and expense basis at an hourly rate of $195 per 
hour; provided, however, that total payments to Consultant shall not exceed 
$649,716, without the prior written approval of SMART.   
 
 
 
 

Page 32 of 257



3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented 
hereby, the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits 
thereto is, and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, 
and nothing contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or 
otherwise affect any provision of the Agreement. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
---------------------------THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK-------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33 of 257



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Seventh 
Amendment as set forth below. 

 
 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
               Farhad Mansourian, General Manager  
  
   

 
M GRODNER, LLC 

 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 

                Michael Grodner, Consultant 
 
 
 
                                                          
                                                               APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
Dated: _______________                     By______________________________ 
                                                                      District Counsel 

Page 34 of 257



THIRD AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AND WBE. 
 

This Third Amendment dated as of __________, 2017 (the “Third Amendment”) 
to the Agreement for Consultant Services by and between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail 
Transit District (“SMART”) and WBE (“CONSULTANT”), dated as of August 29, 2016 
(the “Original Agreement,” and as amended by the First, Second Amendment, and now 
this Third Amendment, the “Agreement”).   
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into the Original 
Agreement to furnish and install station security surveillance equipment; and 

 
WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered various 

Amendments to the Agreement between November 30, 2016 and May 3, 2017, add 
additional scope of work, increase the not-to-exceed amount, and to extend the term; and 

 
WHEREAS, SMART desires to amend the Agreement to add additional work to 

the scope of services, increase the not-to-exceed amount by $50,000 for a total not-to-
exceed amount of $342,072, and extend the term of the Agreement to December 31, 2017 
with all other provisions of the Agreement remaining the same. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the 
covenants contained herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF SERVICES shall be amended as follows: 

 
In addition to the scope of services set forth in the Original Agreement and any 
previous Amendments, the contractor shall perform the following services for which 
consultant shall be paid, as full compensation for the satisfactory completion of work 
in accordance with the budget established in Exhibit A: 
 
a) Design and Installation of the following Video Surveillance System for the 

Petaluma Parking Lot.  
 

WBE will install (1) 180 degree camera on (1) new Pole to view the parking lot 
area.  WBE will equip the pole with a Solar Array to provide necessary power 
with battery backup.  This camera will match similar installations at other 
SMART locations and will connect to the existing Sonoma County Avigilon 
Server.  All work to be approved by SMART prior to initiation and will require 
sign-off upon successful completion of work.   

Page 35 of 257



 (1) Avigilon 3x3MP WDR Day/Night Pendant Mount Cameras 
 (1) Avigilon Pendant Wall Mount Adapters 
 (1) Avigilon Pole Mount Adapters 
 Lot – 15FB Pole with Base Foundation, Solar Array and Control Panel 
 Lot – Wireless Point to Point Connection back to Petaluma Canopy Network 
 
Warranty on new equipment listed above is for one (1) year.  All labor is 
warranted for ninety (90) days.  All work will be performed by IBEW Local #6 or 
#551 Technicians and Electricians.  All work to be performed during normal 
business hours on consecutive business days. 

 
(b) Design and Installation of the following Video Surveillance System for the 

Airport Blvd Parking Lot. 
 

WBE to install (2) 180 degree cameras on (2) existing Light Poles to view the 
parking lot area.  These cameras will match similar installations at other SMART 
locations and will connect to the existing Sonoma County Avigilon Server. 

 
 (2) Avigilon 3x3MP WDR Day/Night Pendant Mount Cameras 
 (2) Avigilon Pendant Wall Mount Adapters 
 (2) Avigilon Pole Mount Adapters 
 (1) Vigitron Ethernet Extender 
 (2) Vigitron Ethernet Transceivers 
 Lot – Cat 6 Plenum and Plant Grade Cable 

 
WBE to install (2) 180 degree cameras on (2) existing Light Poles to view the 
parking lot area.  These cameras will match similar installations at other SMART 
locations and will connect to the existing Sonoma County Avigilon Server.  All 
work to be approved by SMART prior to initiation and will require sign-off upon 
successful completion of work. 
 
Warranty on new equipment listed above is for one (1) year.  All labor is 
warranted for ninety (90) days.  All work will be performed by IBEW Local #6 or 
#551 Technicians and Electricians.  All work to be performed during normal 
business hours on consecutive business days.   

 
Any damage to SMART property caused by WBE will be WBE’s sole responsibility. 

 
2. “ARTICLE 4.  TERM OF AGREEMENT” Article 4 of the Agreement is amended 

as follows: 
 
“ARTICLE 4. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall 
remain in effect until December 31, 2017 unless terminated earlier in accordance with 
the provisions below.” 

 

Page 36 of 257



 
3. ARTICLE 5 PAYMENT shall be amended as follows: 

 
In addition to the not-to-exceed amount set forth in the Original Agreement, the 
contract amount shall be increased by an amount not-to-exceed $50,000, for the 
provisions of services, for an aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $342,072 for the 
Agreement.   
 

4. EXHIBITS.  The following exhibit is attached hereto and incorporated herein:  
 

(a) Exhibit A: Fee Schedule 
 

5. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 
the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 
and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 
any provision of the Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
--------------------------THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK-------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 37 of 257



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Third 
Amendment as set forth below. 

 
 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
               Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 
  
   
      WBE 
 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
 

 Its __________________________________ 
 
 
 
                                                                APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Dated: _______________                      By_________________________________ 
                                                                       District Counsel 
 
 
 
 

Page 38 of 257



EXHIBIT A 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

Job Description Project Total 

Petaluma Parking Lot Video Surveillance $34,931.00  

Airport Blvd Parking Lot Video Surveillance $13,807.00  

Total $48,738.00  

 
* All labor, materials, state sales tax, insurance, and shipping fees are included in the 
project totals listed above. 
* Warranty on new equipment is one (1) year 
* Warranty on labor is for ninety (90) days. 

Page 39 of 257



THIRD AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AND PORTOLA SYSTEMS, INC. 
 

This Third Amendment dated as of _________, 2017 (the “Third Amendment”) to 
the Agreement for Consultant Services by and between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail 
Transit District (“SMART”) and Portola Systems, Inc. (“CONSULTANT”), dated as of 
April 6, 2016 (the “Original Agreement,” and as amended by the First Amendment, 
Second Amendment, and now this Third Amendment, the “Agreement”).   
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into the Original 
Agreement to provide station network configuration services for its SMART stations; and 

 
WHEREAS, SMART desires to amend the Agreement to add additional scope of 

work, to increase the not-to-exceed amount by $94,066.10, for a total not-to-exceed 
amount of $1,332,776.10, and to extend the term to June 30, 2018; and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the 
covenants contained herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. “ARTICLE 5.  PAYMENT” Article 5 of the Agreement is amended as follows: 

 
In addition to the not-to-exceed amount set forth in the Original Agreement, the 
contract amount shall be increased by an amount not-to-exceed $94,066.10, for the 
provisions of the services, for an aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $1,332,776.10, 
for the Agreement. 
 

2. “ARTICLE 6.  TERM OF AGREEMENT” Article 6 of the Agreement is amended 
as follows: 
 
“ARTICLE 6. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall 
remain in effect until June 30, 2018 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the 
provisions of Article 7.” 

 
3. EXHIBITS.  The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein: 

 
(a) EXHIBIT A: SCOPE OF WORK 
 

All references in the Original Agreement and First Amendment to Exhibit A shall 
include reference to Exhibit A of this Third Amendment. 
 

 

Page 40 of 257



(b) EXHIBIT B: SCHEDULE OF RATES 
 

Exhibit B in the Original Agreement shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced 
with the Exhibit B of this Third Amendment. 

 
4. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 

the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 
and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 
any provision of the Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
--------------------------THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK--------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41 of 257



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Third Amendment as 
set forth below. 

 
 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
               Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 
  
   
      PORTOLA SYSTEMS, INC. 
 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
 

 Its __________________________________ 
 
 
 
                                                                APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Dated: _______________                      By_________________________________ 
                                                                        District Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42 of 257



EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 

All work described below is in addition to the work described in the Exhibit A of the 
Original Agreement and any addendums made by all previous Amendments.  Task 
Number 9 has been added to the scope of work to add one-year of Cisco SMARTnet 
coverage for hardware and software associated with the SMART Station Network.  
Portola will provide SMART with the following services:   

 

Task Number 9 – Cisco SMARTnet Services 

 24/7 access to Cisco Technical Assistance Center to resolve critical issues with all 
devices covered under Cisco SMARTnet 

 Replacement of covered devices when required will take place within a four (4) 
hour delivery window. 

 All updates and upgrades of operating system software are provided for devices 
covered under Cisco SMARTnet. 

 Security and Product alerts will be provided for all covered devices to include: 

o Setting up an alert management workflow for determining which Cisco 
published product alerts and security advisories are relevant for the 
devices purchased. 

 Product lifecycle management for all covered devices to include: 
o Providing enhanced visibility into the installed base to quickly identify 

any Cisco products that are reaching end of life, end of sale, or end of 
support. 

 Service Coverage Management 
o Including installation of regular base collection and flexible reporting 

capabilities to efficiently manage the Cisco devices and service contracts. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43 of 257



 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
SCHEDULE OF RATES 

 
Task 
No. 

Task Description 
Milestone 
Amount 

Cumulative 
Amount 

1 Design Meetings and Design Approval $121,246  $121,246  

2 Hardware / Software / Materials Procurement $784,410  $905,656  

3 Lab Configuration / Testing $60,623  $966,279  

4 Field Implementation / Installation / Testing $60,623  $1,026,902  

5 Validation, Documentation, Final Delivery $36,374  $1,063,276  

6 Final Acceptance $60,624  $1,123,900  

7 One Year Network Maintenance (Billed Monthly After Final Acceptance) $88,560  $1,212,460  

8 

Milestone 1 – Wi-Fi Network Engineering $11,100 $1,223,560 

Milestone 2 – VenTek Fare Collection Support $6,550 $1,230,110 

Milestone 3 – Test / Replace data cables at Cotati & Santa Rosa Downtown $3,600 $1,233,710 

Milestone 4 (Optional) – Time & Materials for any additional testing and data 
cable replacement as needed  

$5,000 $1,238,710 

9 One-Year Product Coverage - Cisco SMARTnet Services (24 x 7 x 4) 94,066.10 1,332,776.10 

   Contract Total $1,332,776.10  $1,332,776.10 

 
The fully burdened hourly rate for Milestone 4 will be charged at $100.00 per hour.  

Page 44 of 257



Page 45 of 257



Page 46 of 257



FIFTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT  

AND LTK ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
 This Fifteenth Amendment, dated as of ____________, 2017 (the “Fifteenth 
Amendment”), is to that certain Agreement for Consultant Services between LTK Engineering 
Services (“CONSULTANT”) and the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (“SMART”), 
dated as of October 23, 2009, and further identified as Contract Number #VS-PS-09-001 (the 
“Original Agreement,” as previously amended, and as amended by this Fifteenth Amendment, 
the “Agreement”).   
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into the Original 
Agreement dated as of October 23, 2009, for the provision of Vehicle and Systems Design 
Services for SMART’s commuter rail project in Sonoma and Marin Counties; and 

 
WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into various Amendments 

to the Agreement between January 21, 2010 and December 1, 2016, to provide for additional 
personnel to assist with operational and vehicle and systems design support, increase the contract 
not-to-exceed amount, and to extend the term for the agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT and SMART desire to further amend the Agreement in 

order to increase the not-to-exceed amount by $711,500, for a total not-to-exceed amount of 
$19,556,401.00, and to extend the term of the agreement to June 30, 2018. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. PAYMENT.  “ARTICLE 5.  PAYMENT” is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced 
with the following: 

 
“ARTICLE 5.  PAYMENT.  For all services and incidental costs required 
hereunder, Consultant shall be paid on a cost-plus-fixed fee basis in accordance 
with the budget set forth in individual task orders to be negotiated; provided, 
however, that Consultant agrees to perform all services described therein for an 
amount not to exceed the amount negotiated, regardless of whether it takes 
Consultant more time to complete or costs more than anticipated.  The not-to-
exceed (NTE) amount for this Agreement shall be $19,556,401.00.” 
 
 

Page 47 of 257



 
 

2. EXHIBITS.  The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein: 
 

(a) EXHIBIT A:  SCOPE OF WORK 
 

All references in the Original Agreement to Exhibit A, as previously amended, shall 
include reference to Exhibit A, respectively, to this Fifteenth Amendment. 
 

3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented 
hereby, the Agreement, together with all exhibits thereto is, and shall continue to 
be, in full force and effect, and nothing contained herein shall, or shall be 
construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect any provision of the 
Agreement.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48 of 257



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fifteenth Amendment as 
of the date first set forth above. 
  
      LTK ENGINEERING SERVICES   
   
       
Dated: _________________   By____________________________________ 
       

      Its ____________________________________ 
            
 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
Dated: _________________   By____________________________________          
           Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 
 
 
 
                                                                APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
Dated: _______________                      By______________________________ 
            Tom Lyons, District Counsel 
 
 
 
 

Page 49 of 257



EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
General 

This amendment extends LTK’s current contract to continue to provide Systems, Train Signaling, 
Positive Train Control (PTC), Communications, and Vehicle technical support services.  Amendment 15 
extends the services of key LTK staff to directly support SMART staff and continue to reside full-time in 
SMART offices. LTK Key Staff will work directly under the direction of SMART staff. 

Key Staff: 

 Lisa Cobb: LTK Contract Manager and Vehicle Technical Expert 
 Aaron Parkes: Train Control and PTC Specialist 
 Mark Golucki: Communications Specialist 
 Kelly Barry:  Signaling and System Inspector 
 Michael Guthrie:  Vehicle Inspector 

Key Responsibilities 

 Provide management and oversight of the SMART passenger vehicle contract 
 Provide daily management and oversight of the Systems and Communications Contract 
 Oversee implementation, testing, commissioning, and trouble-shooting of Vehicles, Signaling 

and Communications Systems 
 Conduct design review of signaling, train control, communications and related design submittals 
 Trouble shoot issues and problems as they arise, and develop solutions with designers, 

manufactures, suppliers and installers 
 Approve PTC submittals and work with the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) to secure 

approval. 
 Prepare PTC document amendments for SMART’s submission to the Federal Railroad 

Administration 
 Continue in role as third party support for traffic signals and grade crossing design and 

diagnostic review 
 Prepare reports and presentations as-needed 
 Serve as quiet zone liaison 
 Continue to manage the Portola station network contract and coordinate with SMART staff for 

the additional platform devices to be added – fare vending, cameras, Emergency Telephones, etc. 
 Continue support for on-DMU WiFi contract. 
 Continue to support radio issues as they arise. 
 Continue as point person for Sonic Agreement, including new installations, WiFi at stations, 

fiber installations, and interoffice network connections.   
 Continue work and coordination on the railroad central control system at the Rail Operations 

Center, working with operations support systems engineer to develop a warranty reporting and 
tracking system. 

Page 50 of 257



 Continue coordination and implementation of SMART’s communication network. 
 Coordination on DMU and signals interfaces between the car manufacturer and signal supplier 
 Assist on the cab signal/DMU interface as needed to address on-car issues that may be based in 

either the car or the signal system 
 Assist on other technical support duties as needed 
 Assist with compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations 
 Test witness for locomotive control line testing, high-speed testing and PTC testing. The total 

duration of these tests is scheduled at five-to-six months. 
 Oversight lead on punch list closeout  
 Field liaison for warranty administration 
 General field support for the signaling, communications and vehicle work 
 Review signals redline drawings and as-built documentation to assure conformance with the 

contract 
 Support lead signals consultant in the field, assisting with troubleshooting and communication of 

electronics problems  
 Provide training and mentoring to SMART staff 
 Assist in transitioning tasks and responsibilities to SMART staff 

Page 51 of 257



Page 52 of 257



Page 53 of 257



 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 
 This agreement (“Agreement”), dated as of __________, 2017 (“Effective Date”) is by 
and between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (hereinafter “SMART”), and Maze & 
Associates (hereinafter “Consultant”). 
 

R E C I T A L S 
 
 WHEREAS, Consultant represents that it is a duly qualified provider of municipal 
audit services, employs professional staff properly licensed as California Certified Public 
Accountants, and is experienced in the areas of public agency auditing, implementation of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board statements, and related services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of SMART, it is necessary and 
desirable to employ the services of Consultant (i) to conduct the annual Independent Audit for 
fiscal years ending June 30, 2017, June 30, 2018, and June 30, 2019, respectively; (ii) to render 
the appropriate audit reports and other documentation required by applicable statutes and 
regulatory agencies; and (iii) to assist with implementation of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board statements, as applicable. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual 
covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

A G R E E M E N T 
 

RECITALS. 

The above Recitals are true and correct. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS. 

The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein: 

(a) Exhibit A:  Scope of Work  

(b) Exhibit B:  Schedule of Rates 

 
 
REQUEST FOR SERVICES. 

Initiation Conference.  SMART’s Chief Financial Officer, Erin McGrath, will initiate all requests 
for services through an Initiation Conference, which may be in person, by telephone, or by email.  

Page 54 of 257



During the Initiation Conference, the Chief Financial Officer and Consultant will establish and 
agree on a specific task for the project. 

Amount of Work.  SMART does not guarantee a minimum or maximum amount of work under 
this Agreement. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

Scope of Work.  Consultant shall perform services within the timeframe outlined in Exhibit A 
(cumulatively referred to as the “Scope of Work”). 

Cooperation With SMART.  Consultant shall cooperate with the Chief Financial Officer in the 
performance of all work hereunder.   

Performance Standard.  Consultant shall perform all work hereunder in a manner consistent with 
the level of competency and standard of care normally observed by a person practicing in 
Consultant’s profession.  If SMART determines that any of Consultant’s work is not in 
accordance with such level of competency and standard of care, SMART, in its sole discretion, 
shall have the right to do any or all of the following:  (a) require Consultant to meet with 
SMART to review the quality of the work and resolve matters of concern; (b) require Consultant 
to repeat the work at no additional charge until it is satisfactory; (c) terminate this Agreement 
pursuant to the provisions of Article 7; or (d) pursue any and all other remedies at law or in 
equity. 

Assigned Personnel.   

(c) Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform work hereunder.  In the 
event that at any time SMART, in its sole discretion, desires the removal of any person or 
persons assigned by Consultant to perform work hereunder, Consultant shall remove such 
person or persons immediately upon receiving written notice from SMART. 

(d) Any and all persons identified in this Agreement or any exhibit hereto as the project 
manager, project team, or other professional performing work hereunder on behalf of the 
Consultant are deemed by SMART to be key personnel whose services were a material 
inducement to SMART to enter into this Agreement, and without whose services 
SMART would not have entered into this Agreement.  Consultant shall not remove, 
replace, substitute, or otherwise change any key personnel without the prior written 
consent of SMART.  Key personnel shall be as listed in the Schedule of Rates. 

(e) In the event that any of Consultant’s personnel assigned to perform services under this 
Agreement become unavailable due to resignation, sickness or other factors outside of 

(f) Consultant’s control, Consultant shall be responsible for timely provision of adequately 
qualified replacements. 

(g) Consultant shall assign the following key personnel for the term of this Agreement: 
David Alvey, CPA, and Vikki Rodriguez, CPA.                                                                                                                        

Page 55 of 257



PAYMENTS. 

Consultant shall invoice SMART on a monthly basis, detailing the tasks performed pursuant to 
the Scope of Work requested by the SMART Chief Financial Officer, and the hours worked.  
SMART shall pay Consultant within 30 days after submission of the invoices.  

Consultant shall be paid on a time and expense basis in accordance with Exhibit B; provided, 
however, that total payments to Consultant shall not exceed $128,818.  Consultant shall submit 
its invoices in arrears on a monthly basis in a form approved by the Chief Financial Officer.  The 
invoices shall show or include: (i) the task(s) performed; (ii) the time in quarter hours devoted to 
the task(s); (iii) the hourly rate or rates of the persons performing the task(s); and (iv) copies of 
receipts for reimbursable materials/expenses, if any.  All reimbursable expenses must comply 
with SMART’s Travel Guidelines and must receive prior approval.  Consultant’s reimbursement 
for materials/expenses shall not include items already included in Consultant’s overhead as may 
be billed as a part of its labor rates set forth in Exhibit B.  SMART will not reimburse 
Consultant for travel time, unless authorized by Project Manager in writing.     

Consultant must submit all invoices on a timely basis, but no later than thirty (30) days from the 
date the services/charges were incurred. District shall not accept invoices submitted by 
Consultant after the end of such thirty (30) day period without District pre-approval. Time is of 
the essence with respect to submission of invoices and failure by Consultant to abide by these 
requirements may delay or prevent payment of invoices or cause such invoices to be returned to 
the Consultant unpaid. 

TERM OF AGREEMENT.  

The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect until June 30, 2020 with an option for two (2) 
one (1) year extensions, provided that changes in the terms and conditions of each one (1) year 
extension are mutually agreed upon by both parties unless terminated earlier in accordance with 
the provisions of Article 7 below.   

 
TERMINATION. 

Termination Without Cause.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, at any 
time and without cause, both parties shall have the right, at their sole discretion, to terminate this 
Agreement by giving 30 days written notice to the other party.  

Termination for Cause.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, should 
Consultant fail to perform any of its obligations hereunder, within the time and in the manner 
herein provided, or otherwise violate any of the terms of this Agreement, SMART may 
immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Consultant written notice of such termination, 
stating the reason for termination.  

Delivery of Work Product and Final Payment Upon Termination.  In the event of termination by 
either party, Consultant, within 14 days following the date of termination, shall deliver to 
SMART all materials and work product subject to Section 12.08 and shall submit to SMART an 

Page 56 of 257



invoice showing the services performed, hours worked, and copies of receipts for reimbursable 
expenses up to the date of termination. 

Payment Upon Termination.  Upon termination of this Agreement by SMART, Consultant shall 
be entitled to receive as full payment for all services satisfactorily rendered and expenses 
incurred hereunder, an amount which bears the same ratio to the total payment specified in the 
Agreement as the services satisfactorily rendered hereunder by Consultant bear to the total 
services otherwise required to be performed for such total payment; provided, however, that if 
services are to be paid on an hourly or daily basis, then Consultant shall be entitled to receive as 
full payment an amount equal to the number of hours or days actually worked prior to 
termination times the applicable hourly or daily rate; provided further that if SMART terminates 
the Agreement for cause pursuant to Section 7.02, SMART shall deduct from such amount the 
amount of damage, if any, sustained by SMART by virtue of the breach of the Agreement by 
Consultant. 

Authority to Terminate.  The Board of Directors has the authority to terminate this Agreement on 
behalf of SMART.  In addition, the Chief Financial Officer or General Manager, in consultation 
with SMART Counsel, shall have the authority to terminate this Agreement on behalf of 
SMART. 

INDEMNIFICATION 

Consultant agrees to accept all responsibility for loss or damage to any person or entity, 
including SMART, and to indemnify, hold harmless, and release SMART, its officers, agents, 
and employees, from and against any actions, claims, damages, liabilities, disabilities, or 
expenses, that may be asserted by any person or entity, including Consultant, to the extent caused 
by the Consultant’s negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct in its performance or 
obligations under this Agreement.  Consultant agrees to provide a complete defense for any 
claim or action brought against SMART based upon a claim relating to Consultant’s 
performance or obligations under this Agreement.  Consultant’s obligations under this Section 8 
apply whether or not there is concurrent negligence on SMART’s part, but to the extent required 
by law, excluding liability due to SMART’s conduct.  SMART shall have the right to select its 
legal counsel at Consultant’s expense, subject to Consultant’s approval, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld.  This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by any 
limitation on the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to or for Consultant or its 
agents under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefits acts, or other employee benefit acts. 

INSURANCE.   

With respect to performance of work under this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain 
and shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and other agents to maintain, insurance as 
described below.   

Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Workers’ Compensation as required by the State of 
California, with Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability insurance with limit of no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

Page 57 of 257



General Liability Insurance.  Commercial General Liability insurance covering products-
completed and ongoing operations, property damage, bodily injury and personal injury using an 
occurrence policy form, in an amount no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, and $2,000,000 
aggregate.   

Automobile Insurance.  Automobile Liability insurance covering bodily injury and property 
damage in an amount no less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for each occurrence.  Said 
insurance shall include coverage for owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles.   

Endorsements.  Prior to commencing work, Consultant shall file Certificate(s) of Insurance with 
SMART evidencing the required coverage and endorsement(s) and, upon request, a certified 
duplicate original of any of those policies.  Said endorsements and Certificate(s) of Insurance 
shall stipulate: 

(h) SMART, its officers, and employees shall be named as additional insured on all policies 
listed above.  

(i) That the policy(ies) is Primary Insurance and the insurance company(ies) providing such 
policy(ies) shall be liable thereunder for the full amount of any loss or claim which 
Licensee is liable, up to and including the total limit of liability, without right of 
contribution from any other insurance effected or which may be effected by the Insureds. 

(j) Inclusion of the Insureds as additional insureds shall not in any way affect its rights either 
as respects any claim, demand, suit or judgment made, brought or recovered against 
Licensee.  Said policy shall protect Consultant and the Insureds in the same manner as 
though a separate policy had been issued to each, but nothing in said policy shall operate 
to increase the insurance company’s liability as set forth in its policy beyond the amount 
or amounts shown or to which the insurance company would have been liable if only one 
interest had been named as an insured. 

(k) Consultant hereby grants to SMART a waiver of any right to subrogation which any 
insurer of said Consultant may acquire against SMART by virtue of the payment of any 
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be 
necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of 
whether or not SMART has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the 
insurer. 

(l) The insurance policy(ies) shall be written by an insurance company or companies 
acceptable to SMART.  Such insurance company shall be authorized to transact business 
in the state of California. 

 SMART reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances. 
 
Deductibles and Retentions.  Consultant shall be responsible for payment of any deductible or 
retention on Consultant’s policies without right of contribution from SMART.  Deductible and 
retention provisions shall not contain any restrictions as to how or by whom the deductible or 

Page 58 of 257



retention is paid.  Any deductible of retention provision limiting payment to the name insured is 
not acceptable. 

Claims Made Coverage.  If any insurance specified above is written on a claims-made coverage 
form, Contractor shall: 

(m) Ensure that the retroactive date is shown on the policy, and such date must be before the 
date of this Agreement or beginning of any work under this Agreement; 

(n) Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three (3) years following 
project completion, including the requirement of adding all additional insureds; and 

(o) If insurance is cancelled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 
policy form with a retroactive date prior to Agreement effective date, Contractor shall 
purchase “extending reporting” coverage for a minimum of three (3) years after 
completion of the work. 

Documentation.  The following documentation shall be submitted to SMART: 

(p) Properly executed Certificates of Insurance clearly evidencing all coverages and limits 
required above.  Said Certificates shall be submitted prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  Consultant agrees to maintain current Certificates of Insurance evidencing 
the above-required coverages and limits on file with SMART for the duration of this 
Agreement. 

(q) Copies of properly executed endorsements required above for each policy.  Said 
endorsement copies shall be submitted prior to the execution of this Agreement.  
Consultant agrees to maintain current endorsements evidencing the above-specified 
requirements on file with SMART for the duration of this Agreement. 

(r) Upon SMART’s written request, Consultant shall provide certified copies of the 
insurance policies to SMART.  Said policy copies shall be submitted within thirty (30) 
days of SMART’s request.  After the Agreement has been signed, signed Certificates of 
Insurance shall be submitted for any renewal or replacement of a policy that already 
exists, at least ten (10) days before expiration or other termination of the existing policy. 

Policy Obligations.  Consultant’s indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by the 
foregoing insurance requirements. 

Material Breach.  If Consultant, for any reason, fails to maintain insurance coverage, which is 
required pursuant to this Agreement, the same shall be deemed a material breach of this 
Agreement.  SMART, in its sole option, may terminate this Agreement and obtain damages from 
Consultant resulting from said breach.  Alternatively, SMART may purchase such required 
insurance coverage, and without further notice to Consultant, SMART may deduct from sums 
due to Consultant any premium costs advanced by SMART for such insurance.  These remedies 
shall be in addition to any other remedies available to SMART. 

Page 59 of 257



PROSECUTION OF WORK. 

When work is requested of Consultant by SMART, all due diligence shall be exercised 
and the work accomplished without undue delay, within the performance time specified in the 
Task Order.  Performance of the services hereunder shall be completed within the time required 
herein, provided, however, that if the performance is delayed by earthquake, flood, high water, or 
other Act of God, the time for Consultant’s performance of this Agreement shall be extended by 
a number of days equal to the number of days Consultant has been delayed. 

EXTRA OR CHANGED WORK.   

Extra or changed work or other changes to the Agreement may be authorized only by 
written amendment to this Agreement, signed by both parties.  Minor changes, which do not 
increase the amount paid under the Agreement, and which do not significantly change the scope 
of work or significantly lengthen time schedules may be executed by the General Manager in a 
form approved by SMART Counsel.  The Board of Directors, General Manager or Chief 
Financial Officer must authorize all other extra or changed work.  The parties expressly 
recognize that SMART personnel are without authorization to order extra or changed work or 
waive Agreement requirements.  Failure of Consultant to secure such written authorization for 
extra or changed work shall constitute a waiver of any and all right to adjustment in the 
Agreement price or Agreement time due to such unauthorized work and thereafter Consultant 
shall be entitled to no compensation whatsoever for the performance of such work.  Consultant 
further expressly waives any and all right or remedy by way of restitution and quantum meruit 
for any and all extra work performed without such express and prior written authorization of 
SMART. 

REPRESENTATIONS OF CONSULTANT. 

Standard of Care.  SMART has relied upon the professional ability and training of Consultant as 
a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Consultant hereby agrees that all its work 
will be performed and that its operations shall be conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted and applicable professional practices and standards as well as the requirements of 
applicable federal, state and local laws, it being understood that acceptance of Consultant’s work 
by SMART shall not operate as a waiver or release.   

Status of Consultant.  The parties intend that Consultant, in performing the services specified 
herein, shall act as an independent contractor and shall control the work and the manner in which 
it is performed.  Consultant is not to be considered an agent or employee of SMART and is not 
entitled to participate in any pension plan, worker’s compensation plan, insurance, bonus, or 
similar benefits SMART provides its employees.  In the event SMART exercises its right to 
terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article 7, above, Consultant expressly agrees that it shall 
have no recourse or right of appeal under rules, regulations, ordinances, or laws applicable to 
employees.   

Taxes.  Consultant agrees to file federal and state tax returns and pay all applicable taxes on 
amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and responsible to pay such 

Page 60 of 257



taxes and other obligations, including but not limited to state and federal income and FICA taxes.  
Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold SMART harmless from any liability which it may incur 
to the United States or to the State of California as a consequence of Consultant’s failure to pay, 
when due, all such taxes and obligations.  In case SMART is audited for compliance regarding 
any withholding or other applicable taxes, Consultant agrees to furnish SMART with proof of 
payment of taxes on these earnings. 

Records Maintenance.  Consultant shall keep and maintain full and complete documentation and 
accounting records concerning all services performed that are compensable under this 
Agreement and shall make such documents and records available to SMART for inspection at 
any reasonable time.  Consultant shall maintain such records for a period of four (4) years 
following completion of work hereunder. 

Conflict of Interest.  Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state 
law or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of its services 
hereunder.  Consultant further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement no person 
having any such interests shall be employed.  In addition, if requested to do so by SMART, 
Consultant shall complete and file and shall require any other person doing work under this 
Agreement to complete and file a “Statement of Economic Interest” with SMART disclosing 
Consultant’s or such other person’s financial interests. 

Nondiscrimination.  Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
rules, and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in employment because of race, color, 
ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marital status, age, medical condition, pregnancy, 
disability, sexual orientation or other prohibited basis, including without limitation, SMART’s 
Non-Discrimination Policy.  All nondiscrimination rules or regulations required by law to be 
included in this Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
Assignment Of Rights.  Consultant assigns to SMART all rights throughout the world in 
perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent, right to ideas, in and to all versions of 
the plans and specifications, if any, now or later prepared by Consultant in connection with this 
Agreement.  Consultant agrees to take such actions as are necessary to protect the rights assigned 
to SMART in this Agreement, and to refrain from taking any action which would impair those 
rights.  Consultant’s responsibilities under this provision include, but are not limited to, placing 
proper notice of copyright on all versions of the plans and specifications as SMART may direct, 
and refraining from disclosing any versions of the plans and specifications to any third party 
without first obtaining written permission of SMART.  Consultant shall not use or permit another 
to use the plans and specifications in connection with this or any other project without first 
obtaining written permission of SMART.  

Ownership And Disclosure Of Work Product.  All reports, original drawings, graphics, plans, 
studies, and other data or documents (“documents”), in whatever form or format, assembled or 
prepared by Consultant or Consultant’s subcontractors, consultants, and other agents in 
connection with this Agreement shall be the property of SMART.  SMART shall be entitled to 

Page 61 of 257



immediate possession of such documents upon completion of the work pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Consultant shall promptly 
deliver to SMART all such documents, which have not already been provided to SMART in such 
form or format, as SMART deems appropriate.  Such documents shall be and will remain the 
property of SMART without restriction or limitation. Consultant may retain copies of the above- 
described documents but agrees not to disclose or discuss any information gathered, discovered, 
or generated in any way through this Agreement without the express written permission of 
SMART. 

DEMAND FOR ASSURANCE.   

 Each party to this Agreement undertakes the obligation that the other’s expectation of 
receiving due performance will not be impaired.  When reasonable grounds for insecurity arise 
with respect to the performance of either party, the other may in writing demand adequate 
assurance of due performance and until such assurance is received may, if commercially 
reasonable, suspend any performance for which the agreed return has not been received.  
“Commercially reasonable” includes not only the conduct of a party with respect to performance 
under this Agreement, but also conduct with respect to other agreements with parties to this 
Agreement or others.  After receipt of a justified demand, failure to provide within a reasonable 
time, but not exceeding thirty (30) days, such assurance of due performance as is adequate under 
the circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this Agreement.  Acceptance of any 
improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the aggrieved party’s right to demand 
adequate assurance of future performance.  Nothing in this Article 13 limits SMART’s right to 
terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article 7. 
 
ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION.   

 Neither party hereto shall assign, delegate, sublet, or transfer any interest in or duty under 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other, and no such transfer shall be of 
any force or effect whatsoever unless and until the other party shall have so consented. 
METHOD AND PLACE OF GIVING NOTICE, SUBMITTING INVOICES AND 
MAKING PAYMENTS.   

All notices, invoices, and payments shall be made in writing and shall be given by 
personal delivery, U.S. Mail or email.   Notices, invoices, and payments shall be addressed as 
follows: 

If to SMART:     Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 

     Petaluma, CA 94954 
     billing@sonomamarintrain.org  

  
If to Consultant:    David Alvey, Vice President 

Maze & Associates 
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 

Page 62 of 257

mailto:billing@sonomamarintrain.org


 
    
 
 

 
When a notice, invoice or payment is given by a generally recognized overnight courier 

service, the notice, invoice or payment shall be deemed received on the next business day.  When 
a copy of a notice, invoice or payment is sent by facsimile or email, the notice, invoice or 
payment shall be deemed received upon transmission as long as (1) the original copy of the 
notice, invoice or payment is promptly deposited in the U.S. mail and postmarked on the date of 
the facsimile or email (for a payment, on or before the due date), (2) the sender has a written 
confirmation of the facsimile transmission or email, and (3) the facsimile or email is transmitted 
before 5 p.m. (recipient’s time).  In all other instances, notices, invoices and payments shall be 
effective upon receipt by the recipient.  Changes may be made in the names and addresses of the 
person to whom notices are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this paragraph. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.   

No Waiver of Breach.  The waiver by SMART of any breach of any term or promise contained 
in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term or provision or any 
subsequent breach of the same or any other term or promise contained in this Agreement.  

Construction.  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, ordinance, regulation, 
or law.  The parties covenant and agree that in the event that any provision of this Agreement is 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of 
the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, 
impaired, or invalidated thereby.  Consultant and SMART acknowledge that they have each 
contributed to the making of this Agreement and that, in the event of a dispute over the 
interpretation of this Agreement, the language of the Agreement will not be construed against 
one party in favor of the other.  Consultant and SMART acknowledge that they have each had an 
adequate opportunity to consult with counsel in the negotiation and preparation of this 
Agreement. 

Consent.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of one party is required to an act 
of the other party, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create 
and the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties. 

Applicable Law and Forum.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the 
substantive law of California, regardless of the law of conflicts to the contrary in any 
jurisdiction.  Venue for any action to enforce the terms of this Agreement or for the breach 
thereof shall be in the Superior Court of the State of California in the County of Marin. 

Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference.  They are not 

Page 63 of 257



a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or interpretation. 

Merger.  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the Agreement between the 
parties hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the 
terms of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1856.  No modification of 
this Agreement shall be effective unless and until such modification is evidenced by a writing 
signed by both parties. 

Time of Essence.  Time is and shall be of the essence of this Agreement and every provision hereof. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. 
 
 
CONSULTANT: ___________________________ 
 
 
By:         
 

Page 64 of 257



Its :        
 
Date:        
 
 
 
SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT (SMART) 
 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 
 
Date: ___________________________________ 
 
 
CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE ON FILE WITH AND  
APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE FOR SMART:  
 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 Kenneth Hendricks, Administrative Analyst 
 
Date:  ____________________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR SMART: 
 
 
By:   ___________________________________ 
 Tom Lyons, District Counsel 
 
Date: ___________________________________

Page 65 of 257



EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK  

 

Consultant will audit the financial statements of SMART as of and for the years ending 
June 30, 2017, 2018 and 2019, with an option for years ending June 30, 2020 and 2021.  
Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provided for certain 
required supplementary information (RSI) such as management’s discussion and analysis 
(MD&A), to supplement SMART’s basic financial statements.  Such information, although 
not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational economic or historical context.  As 
part of our engagement, Consultant will apply certain limited procedures to SMART’s RSI in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with SMART’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge Consultant 
obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements.  Consultant will not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because of the limited procedures do not 
provide Consultant with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.   

Any additional information provided by SMART for the Government Finance Officers 
Association’s recommended elements in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, 
including the introductory and statistical sections prepared by SMART’s management will 
not be audited by Consultant.  However, as a member of the GFOA, consultant will advise 
and recommend changes in response to GFOA comments on prior year reports.  

If required, Consultant will conduct a Single Audit of SMART’s federal financial assistance 
programs and render professional reports thereon.  The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards (the Schedule) will not be audited but will be subject to “in-relation-to” procedures 
applied during the audit of the basic financial statements.  Consultant will subject the 
Schedule to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and perform 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and will provide an 
opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Consultant will prepare a management letter that includes required audit communications and 
findings and recommendations (if applicable). 

Consultant will assist SMART in compiling California State Controller’s Transit Operator’s 
Financial Report and submissions for federal TDA data and/or National Transit Database 
financial reports as required.   

Consultant will also provide a confidential review of the District’s Information Systems to 
include the network environment housing its financial systems.  This review will be 
conducted by qualified information security professionals and based on the certification and 

Page 66 of 257



accreditation framework developed by the National institute of Standards and Technology for 
the Federal Information Security Management Act.    

Audit Objective 

The objective of the audit is the expression of opinions as to whether SMART's financial 
statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of the Schedule when considered 
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  The objective also includes reporting 
on:  

• Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with laws, 
regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards.  

• Internal control related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) 
on compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards.  

The reports on internal control and compliance will each include a statement that the report is 
intended for the information and use of the Board Directors; management; specific legislative 
or regulatory bodies; federal awarding agencies; and if applicable, pass-through entities and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.  If 
during the audit Consultant becomes aware that SMART is subject to an audit requirement 
that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, Consultant will communicate to 
SMART that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy 
the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.  On the date hereof, Consultant 
and SMART are not aware of any such additional audit requirements. 

The audit will be conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; 
the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and 
the provisions of Title 2 CFR Part 200, and will include tests of the accounting records, a 
determination of major program(s), and other procedures Consultant considers necessary to 
enable Consultant to express such opinions and to render the required reports. If Consultant 
opinions on the financial statements or the Single Audit compliance opinions are other than 
unqualified, Consultant will fully discuss the reasons with SMART in advance. If, for any 
reason, Consultant are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed 
opinions, Consultant may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this 
engagement.  

SMART’s Management Responsibilities  

Page 67 of 257



Management is responsible for the basic financial statements and all accompanying 
information as well as all representations contained therein. Management is also responsible 
for identifying government award programs and understanding and complying with the 
compliance requirements, and for preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards in accordance with federal requirements. As part of the audit, Consultant will assist 
with preparation of SMART’s financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, and related notes. SMART is responsible for making all management decisions and 
performing all management functions relating to the financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes and for accepting full responsibility for 
such decisions. SMART will be required to acknowledge in the management representation 
letter Consultant’s assistance with preparation of the financial statements and the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards and that SMART has reviewed and approved the financial 
statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their 
issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, SMART is required to designate 
an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee any non-audit services 
Consultant provides and for evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and 
accepting responsibility for them. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, 
including internal controls over compliance, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing 
activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met and that there is 
reasonable assurance that government programs are administered in compliance with 
compliance requirements. Management is also responsible for the selection and application 
of accounting principles; for the fair presentation in the financial statements of the respective 
financial position of SMART and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and 
for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements.  

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information 
available to Consultants and for ensuring that management and financial information is 
reliable and properly recorded. Management’s responsibilities also include identifying 
significant vendor relationships in which the vendor has the responsibility for program 
compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Management's 
responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements 
and for confirming to Consultant in the representation letter that the effects of any 
uncorrected misstatements aggregated by Consultant during the current engagement and 
pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

SMART is responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to 
prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud, or illegal 
acts affecting SMART involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles 
in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. SMART’s responsibilities include informing Consultant of 
knowledge any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud or illegal acts affecting SMART 
received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or 
others. In addition, SMART is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the entity 

Page 68 of 257



complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. With regard to 
the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements 
published electronically on your Internet website, SMART understands that electronic sites 
are a means to distribute information, and therefore, Consultant is not required to read the 
information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the 
electronic site with the original document. Additionally, as required by federal regulations, it 
is SMART’s responsibility to follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings 
and to prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan. 
SMART is responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. SMART agrees to include our report on 
the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have 
reported on the supplementary information. SMART also agrees to present the 
supplementary information with the audited financial statements to users of the 
supplementary information.  

Management is responsible for establishment and maintenance of a process for tracking the 
status of audit findings and recommendations.  Management is also responsible for 
identifying for us previous audits or other engagements or studies related to the objectives 
discussed in the Audit Objectives section.  This responsibility includes relaying to Consultant 
corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from 
those audits or other engagements or studies.  Management is also responsible for providing 
management's view on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as its 
planned corrective actions, and the timing and format for providing that information. 
 
Deliverables 
 
Consultant shall prepare and submit a preliminary draft of findings and recommendations, 
material weaknesses identified as a result of the evaluation in internal control systems, a 
summary of all instances of noncompliance with federal and state compliance requirements, 
and an identification of total amounts questioned.  The preliminary draft should be submitted 
no later than October 15 following the end of the fiscal year under review, unless otherwise 
authorized by SMART’s Chief Financial Officer.  
 
Concurrently with submittal of the preliminary draft, the Consultant shall conduct an exit 
conference with the Chief Financial Officer, and other appropriate SMART personnel to 
review the preliminary draft and discuss findings. 
 
At the conclusion of the audit, the Consultant shall provide:  

• One (1) unbound reproducible master of each auditor prepared report  

• An electronic PDF file of each auditor prepared report 

• Twenty (20) bound copies of each final auditor-prepared report 
 
The Consultant may be required to attend a minimum of one Board of Directors meeting for 
the purpose of discussing the audit and its conclusions.    

Page 69 of 257



 
Working Papers   
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Consultant and constitutes 
confidential information.  However, pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, 
Consultant may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to Department of 
Transportation or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the 
U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to 
resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities.  We will notify SMART of 
any such request.  If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under 
the supervision of Consultant’s personnel.  Furthermore, upon request, Consultant may 
provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties.  These parties 
may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, 
including other governmental agencies. 
  
It is Consultant’s policy to keep records related to this engagement for seven years.  
However, Consultant does not keep any original client records, so Consultant will return 
those to SMART at the completion of the services rendered under this agreement.  When 
records are returned to SMART, it is SMART’s responsibility to retain and protect the 
records for possible future use, including potential examination by any government or 
regulatory agencies.  SMART acknowledges and agrees that upon the expiration of the 
seven-year period Consultant shall be free to destroy our records to this engagement. 
 
In addition, Consultant shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of successor auditors and 
allow successor auditors to review working papers relating to matters of continuing 
accounting significance.   
 
SMART should be aware that services under this Agreement may be provided by a non-
licensee owner (that is, by an owner of the Consultant who, because of his or her specialty, is 
not individually licensed as a Certified Public Accountant). 

 

Page 70 of 257



EXHIBIT B 
SCHEDULE OF RATES  

 
 
 
 

Initial Three Year Term
Fiscal Year 2016-17 40,540$          
Fiscal Year 2017-18 43,594$          
Fiscal Year 2018-19 44,684$          

Subtotal Initial Contract Term 128,818$       
One Year Options
Fiscal Year 2019-20 45,802$          
Fiscal Year 2020-21 46,946$          

Total Not-To-Exceed 350,384$       

* Assumes one major federal program for Single Audit Review

Fiscal Year 2016-17 5,355$            
Fiscal Year 2017-18 5,489$            
Fiscal Year 2018-19 5,626$            
Fiscal Year 2019-20 5,767$            
Fiscal Year 2020-21 5,911$            

Additional Programs would require  amendment and  per additional 
program are as follows:

FEES INCLUSIVE OF ALL SERVICES*

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71 of 257



Page 72 of 257



Page 73 of 257



THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT  

AND RAILPROS, INC. 
 

 This Third Amendment dated as of ____________, 2017 (the “Third Amendment”), to 
the Agreement for Consultant Services by and between Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 
(“SMART”) and RailPros, Inc. (“CONSULTANT”), dated as of November 19, 2015 (the 
“Original Agreement,” as amended and supplemented by the First Amendment, Second 
Amendment, and now this Third Amendment). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT and SMART previously entered the Original Agreement to 
provide Preliminary Engineering Design for the Larkspur Extension Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT and SMART desire to amend the Agreement to add 

additional scope of services, increase the not-to-exceed amount by $369,342, for a total not-to-
exceed amount of $2,195,426, and to extend the term to December 31, 2018. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. “ARTICLE 5.  PAYMENT” Article 5 of the Agreement is amended as follows: 
 
In addition to the not-to-exceed amount set forth in the Original Agreement, the 
contract amount shall be increased by an amount not-to-exceed $369,342, for the 
provisions of the services, for an aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $2,195,426, for 
the Agreement. 

 
2. “ARTICLE 6.  TERM OF AGREEMENT” Article 6 of the Agreement is amended 

as follows: 
 
“ARTICLE 6. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall 
remain in effect until December 31, 2018 unless terminated earlier in accordance with 
the provisions of Article 7.” 

 
3. EXHIBITS.  The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated 

herein: 
 
 (a) EXHIBIT A:  SCOPE OF WORK 
 
All references in the Original Agreement, First Amendment, and Second 
Amendment to Exhibit A shall include reference to Exhibit A of this Third 
Amendment. 

Page 74 of 257



 
(c) EXHIBIT C: Fee and Hourly Rates 
 
The attached Exhibit C represents the fee and hourly rate schedule for the 
additional work described in Exhibit A Scope of Work. 
 

4. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 
the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 
and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 
any provision of the Agreement. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75 of 257



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Third Amendment as 
of the date first set forth above. 
  
      

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
             Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 
 
  
 

 RAILPROS, INC. 
 

 
Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
            Consultant 
 
 
 
                                                         APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Dated: _______________                  By______________________________ 
      Tom Lyons, District Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76 of 257



EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
DESIGN SUPPORT DURING CONSTRUCTION SCOPE OF SERVICES  

June 14, 2017 (rev. 1) 
 

SONOMA MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 
Summary Scope and Budget for Larkspur Extension  

 
Project Description and Understanding 
 
RailPros provided design for the Design/Build Bridging Documents for the Larkspur Extension. 
This scope would extend RailPros’ services to support construction (“Design Support During 
Construction” or “DSDC”). This support would include review of the Design/Build (D/B) 
contractor’s interim and final design plan submittals, periodic field review of the D/B’s 
construction activities, and verification testing of the D/B’s inspection program. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Schedule: 
Continuing professional services support for the Larkspur Extension (LE) design and 
construction. The LE contract is scheduled to be awarded on June 21, 2017.  
 
General Scope: 
It is assumed that the District will be the prime point of contact for the design-build contractor, 
and that the District will provide most construction support. The following elements have been 
scoped on a level of effort basis, commensurate with the time indicated in the accompanying 
schedule.  
 
TASK 1: PRE-CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 

2.1 Support Contract Finalization 
Provide support for finalizing drawings and Contract Documents with conformed 
information.  
 

2.2 Kick-Off Meeting 
Attendance at design kick-off meeting at SMART’s offices 
 

2.3 75% Design Submittal Review 
Contract Documents allow Contractor to break construction into 5 packages. This effort 
assumes review of three of the packages at the 75% level, with review focused on 
railroad track, rail structures, and hydraulics. Minor effort is assumed for review of 
general civil plans.  
 
 

Page 77 of 257



 
2.4 100% Design Submittal Review 

Contract Documents allow Contractor to break construction into 5 packages. This effort 
assumes review of three of the packages at the 100% level, with review focused on 
railroad track, rail structures, and hydraulics. Minor effort is assumed for review of 
general civil plans. This effort is assumed to be less intense than the 75% review.  
 

2.5 Issued For Construction Design Submittal Review 
Contract Documents allow Contractor to break construction into 5 packages. This effort 
assumes review of three of the packages at the Issued For Construction (IFC) level, with 
review focused on railroad track, rail structures, and hydraulics. Minor effort is assumed 
for review of general civil plans. This effort is assumed to be less intense than the 100% 
review.  
 

2.6 Design Meetings 
Assumes 3 meetings at the District offices to review Design Builder’s submittals.  
 

2.7 Design RFI Reviews 
Review formal RFIs submitted by the Design Builder regarding the design. It has been 
assumed that the District would respond to most of these, though some allowance has 
been made for structure-related RFIs and track-related RFIs 
 

2.8 FTA Support 
Provide approximately 40 hours for MGrodner LLC to support interactions with the 
FTA. 

 
TASK 1: PRE-CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 

2.1 Construction Meeting Attendance 
Attend 64 weekly construction meetings (with site inspection on the same day). Assumes 
16 months of construction at 4 meetings or site visits per month.  
 

2.2 Railroad Construction Submittal Reviews 
Assumes review of up to 10 railroad-related submittals. Assumes the District will 
perform most reviews.  
 

2.3 Construction RFI Reviews 
Assumes review of up to 10 contractor requests for information during construction. 
Assumes the District will perform most reviews.  
 

2.4 Construction QA Inspection Coordination 
Coordinate with testing firm for independent inspection of design builder’s work.  
Proposed testing includes: 

 2 days of soil and base material testing 
 2 days of HMA testing 

Page 78 of 257



 2 days of concrete testing (assumed to be associated with pours for the cast-in-
place concrete bridges) 

 1 day of railroad ballast testing 
 1 day of ultrasonic testing of rail welds (approx. 1% of the welds, assuming 39’ 

rails) 
 1 day of magnetic particle testing of rail welds (approx. 1% of the welds, 

assuming 39’ rails) 
 

2.5 Change Order Support 
Provide for support for review of change order requests.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79 of 257



EXHIBIT C 
FEE AND HOURLY RATES 

 
 
 

TASK DESCRIPTION BUDGET 

TASK 1 – PRE-CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT  $96,327  

TASK 2 - CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT  $263,665  

SUBTOTAL   $359,992  

OTHER DIRECT COSTS  $9,350  

TOTAL  $369,342  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80 of 257



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81 of 257



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82 of 257



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83 of 257



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84 of 257



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85 of 257



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86 of 257



Page 87 of 257



Page 88 of 257



Page 89 of 257



Page 90 of 257



Page 91 of 257



Page 92 of 257



Page 93 of 257



Page 94 of 257



Page 95 of 257



Page 96 of 257



Page 97 of 257



Page 98 of 257



Page 99 of 257



Page 100 of 257



Page 101 of 257



Page 102 of 257



Page 103 of 257



Page 104 of 257



Page 105 of 257



Page 106 of 257



Page 107 of 257



Page 108 of 257



Page 109 of 257



Page 110 of 257



Page 111 of 257



Page 112 of 257



Page 113 of 257



Page 114 of 257



Page 115 of 257



Page 116 of 257



Page 117 of 257



Page 118 of 257



Page 119 of 257



Page 120 of 257



Page 121 of 257



Page 122 of 257



Page 123 of 257



Page 124 of 257



Page 125 of 257



Page 126 of 257



Page 127 of 257



Page 128 of 257



Page 129 of 257



Page 130 of 257



Page 131 of 257



Page 132 of 257



Page 133 of 257



Page 134 of 257



Page 135 of 257



Page 136 of 257



Page 137 of 257



Page 138 of 257



Page 139 of 257



Page 140 of 257



Page 141 of 257



Page 142 of 257



Page 143 of 257



Page 144 of 257



Page 145 of 257



Page 146 of 257



Page 147 of 257



Page 148 of 257



Resolution No. 2017-04 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

June 21, 2017  
 

Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE CITY OF SAN RAFAEL FOR THE 
LARKSPUR EXTENSION PROJECT   
              

 
WHEREAS, SMART is advancing the Larkspur Extension Project – a 2.2-mile extension of 

the SMART rail system to Larkspur; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City constructed a new roadway, Andersen Drive, across the SMART 

railroad track; and  
 
WHEREAS, at the time, the California Public Utilities Commission (“CPUC”) provided 

conditional approval for an at-grade crossing where Andersen Drive crossed the railroad track, 
which expires upon regularly scheduled train service; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City has prepared and submitted a new at-grade crossing application to 

the CPUC for the Andersen Drive crossing which is currently under review by the CPUC; and   
 
WHEREAS, in order to support City’s application, the City developed a concept to re-

align and close two at-grade crossings nearby: Francisco Boulevard and Irwin Street by flipping, 
the railroad right-of-way with the City road – Francisco Boulevard West between Second Street 
and Rice Drive (“the Francisco Blvd. West Flip”); and  

 
WHEREAS, this concept puts the railroad right-of-way up against US101 and maximizes 

space for the City to develop the roadway and possibly a new bicycle and pedestrian pathway; 
and   

WHEREAS, the City has developed construction documents for the construction of the 
Andersen at-grade crossing and requested that SMART construct the crossing as part of the rail 
extension, and the City is funding 100% of the cost; and 

 
 WHEREAS, to support the Francisco Blvd. West Flip, it is necessary for the Parties to 
exchange land at no cost to either party; and    

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the construction of the Larkspur Extension Project, 

SMART and the City of San Rafael desire to cooperate on: (1) the construction of the Andersen 
Drive at-grade crossing; (2) the re-alignment of Francisco Blvd. West (the Francisco Blvd. West 
Flip); and (3) exchanging certain parcels of land to accommodate the Francisco Blvd. West Flip;  
and  

 
WHEREAS,  SMART and the City of San Rafael have memorialized the terms of their 

cooperation in a proposed Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) attached hereto as Exhibit 
A and incorporated herein by reference; and  

 

Page 149 of 257



Resolution No. 2017-04 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

June 21, 2017  
 

Page 2 of 2 

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2017, at a regularly scheduled meeting, the City Council of the 
City of San Rafael approved and authorized the City Manager to execute the MOU attached as 
Exhibit A; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of SMART finds that cooperation between SMART and 

the City of San Rafael on the terms set forth in the MOU attached as Exhibit A, will promote 
cost savings, public health, safety and welfare.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin 

Area Rail Transit District hereby approves and authorizes the General Manger to execute the 
Memorandum of Understanding with the City of San Rafael attached hereto as Exhibit A.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin Area 
Rail Transit District held on the 21st day of June, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
DIRECTORS: 
AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN: 

       ________________________________ 
       Debora Fudge, Chair, Board of Directors 
       Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Leticia Rosas-Mendoza, Clerk of the Board of Directors 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

Page 150 of 257



Page 151 of 257



Page 152 of 257



Page 153 of 257



Page 154 of 257



Page 155 of 257



Page 156 of 257



Page 157 of 257



Page 158 of 257



Page 159 of 257



Page 160 of 257



Page 161 of 257



Page 162 of 257



Page 163 of 257



Page 164 of 257



Page 165 of 257

YMSerrano
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

YMSerrano
Typewritten Text

YMSerrano
Typewritten Text



Page 166 of 257



Page 167 of 257



Page 168 of 257



Page 169 of 257



Page 170 of 257



Page 171 of 257



Page 172 of 257



Page 173 of 257



Page 174 of 257



Page 175 of 257



Page 176 of 257



Page 177 of 257



Page 178 of 257



Page 179 of 257



Page 180 of 257



Page 181 of 257



Page 182 of 257



Page 183 of 257



Page 184 of 257



Page 185 of 257



Page 186 of 257



Page 187 of 257



Page 188 of 257



Page 189 of 257



Page 190 of 257



Page 191 of 257



Page 192 of 257



Page 193 of 257



Page 194 of 257



Page 195 of 257



Page 196 of 257



Page 197 of 257



Page 198 of 257



Page 199 of 257



Page 200 of 257



Page 201 of 257



Page 202 of 257



1 Mobilization (3% Max) 1 LS $70,000 $70,000
2 Surveying and Construction Staking 1 LS $45,000 $45,000
3 Construction Signs and Traffic Control 1 LS $80,000 $80,000
4 Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS $265,025

Sawcut and Remove Curb and Gutter 1,661 LF $25 $41,525
Sawcut and Remove Sidewalk and Median Island 940 LF $25 $23,500
Remove Trees and Vegetation 1 LS $20,000 $20,000
Sawcut and Roadway Excavation 1800 CY $100 $180,000

5 Water Pollution Control 1 LS $25,000 $25,000
6 Minor Concrete

4" Thick PCC Sidewalk 2,740 SF $20 $54,800
6" Thick PCC Sidewalk (Bike Path and Median) 13,020 SF $28 $364,560
Modified Type A Curb and Gutter 1,255 LF $60 $75,300
Modified 24" Type A Curb and Gutter 15 LF $200 $3,000
Type E Curb 1,215 LF $35 $42,525

7 Cold Plane Asphalt Concrete (d=2") 3,723 SY $4 $14,892
8 Import Borrow 100 CY $150 $15,000
9 Aggregate Base (Class II) 1,370 CY $70 $95,874

10 HMA (Type A) 1,919 TON $140 $268,644
11 Chainlink Fence 6' 660 LF $40 $26,400
12 Chainlink Fence 4' 490 LF $35 $17,150
13 Drainage Improvements  

Storm Drain Pipe (12-inch PVC) 288 LF $180 $51,840
Storm Drain Pipe (18-inch PVC) 37 LF $200 $7,400
Storm Drain Pipe (4-inch PVC) 122 LF $240 $29,280
Abandon And Remove Storm Drain Facilities 1 LS $20,000 $20,000
Storm Drain Manhole Type A 1 EA $5,500 $5,500
Storm Drain Manhole Type B 2 EA $7,000 $14,000
Storm Drain Catch Basin Type B 1 EA $5,500 $5,500
Storm Drain Catch Basin Type C 1 EA $5,500 $5,500

14 Erosion Control
Hydroseed 12,195 SF $0.65 $7,927
Fiber Roll 1,170 LF $4 $4,680

15 Roadside Signs
Relocate Existing Sign to New Post 6 EA $200 $1,200
Install New Sign on New Post 20 EA $300 $6,000
Pedestrian Barridate 1 EA $1,000 $1,000

16 Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings
Thermoplastic Pavment Marking 3,510 SF $6.00 $21,060
Thermoplastic Pavment Marking (Green Bike 610 SF $8.00 $4,880
Thermoplastic Pavment Marking (Detail 12) 100 LF $2.70 $270
Thermoplastic Pavment Marking (Detail 13) 42 LF $2.70 $113
Thermoplastic Pavment Marking (Detail 22) 40 LF $2.00 $80
Thermoplastic Pavment Marking (Detail 24) 1,255 LF $3.00 $3,765
Thermoplastic Pavment Marking (Detail 27B) 761 LF $2.00 $1,522
Thermoplastic Pavment Marking (Detail 38) 213 LF $2.00 $426
Thermoplastic Pavment Marking (Detail 39) 395 LF $2.00 $790
Thermoplastic Pavment Marking (Detail 39A) 220 LF $2.00 $440

17 Landscape Improvements
Install New Tree 21 EA $500 $10,500
Irrigation 1 LS $25,000 $25,000

18 Lighting and Electrical Improvements
Traffic Signal Improvements 1 LS $474,000 $474,000
Railroad Crossing Improvements 1 LS $355,000 $355,000

$2,520,844
$378,127

$2,900,000

NOTES/ASSUMPTIONS:

2. City will furnish the signal controller and controller cabinet.

1. The Consultant has no control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment, or over the 
Contractor's methods of determining prices or over competitive bidding or Market Conditions.  
Opinions of probable cost, as provided here, are made on the basis of the Consultant's 
experience and qualifications and represent the Consultant's judgment as a design professional 
familiar with the construction industry.  The Consultant cannot and does not guarantee that 
proposals, bids, or actual construction costs will not vary from the opinion of probable cost 
prepared for the owner. 

Item 
No. Description Quantity Unit CostUnit Lump Sum 

Breakdown

 Andersen Drive Rail Crossing Improvements Project 
 Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

November 1, 2016 (100% PS&E)

Subtotal
15% Contingency

Total

Total Cost

Prepared by S. Hays and M. Wages; Checked by J. Pulliam and K. Aguigui

K:\BAY_RDWY\097023029 - San Rafael-Anderson Dr-JEP\04 Estimates\2016-10-27 - 100% Cost Estimate\2016.10.24 - Andersen Cost Estimate_100%.xls
6:51 PM, 11/2/2016 1 of 1

1,200,000 *Grade Crossing Control Equipment           
Grade Crossing Roadway Panels            400,000

$ 4,500,000

Exhibit B-1

_______

* See Exhibit B-2

_______

Page 203 of 257



Andersen Drive Breakout 

Unit Qty. Cost Extension Material Cost Taxable Tax/Handling
Location: CIL 754+20 - Anderson Dr Aux.

10' x 10' Relay House 4 Gate EA 1 $256,500.00 $256,500.00 $256,500.00 y $26,932.50

House Installation LS 1 $12,247.20 $12,247.20 $0.00 n $0.00

Pedestrian Gate EA 2 $12,568.50 $25,137.00 $25,137.00 y $2,639.39

Install Pedestrian Gate EA 2 $2,326.05 $4,652.10 $0.00 n $0.00

Interconnect to Traffic Controller LS 1 $712.80 $712.80 $712.80 y $74.84

Furnish and Install Termination Shunts LS 1 $1,012.50 $1,012.50 $1,012.50 y $106.31

Battery Bank for Gates & Lights LS 1 $2,976.75 $2,976.75 $2,976.75 y $312.56

Battery Bank for Tracks & Electronics LS 1 $2,126.25 $2,126.25 $2,126.25 y $223.26

Cable 7C #6 LF 740 $18.56 $13,734.40 $13,734.40 y $1,442.11

Cable 7C #14 LF 520 $9.71 $5,049.20 $5,049.20 y $530.17

Cable 12C #14 LF 500 $16.64 $8,320.00 $8,320.00 y $873.60

Cable 2C #6 TW LF 440 $7.68 $3,379.20 $3,379.20 y $354.82

Pull All Cables LF 2200 $3.62 $7,964.00 $0.00 n $0.00

Terminate & Test All Cables EA 16 $45.23 $723.68 $0.00 n $0.00

Rack Cables EA 8 $89.10 $712.80 $0.00 n $0.00

Misc. Tools & Hdwr (Racking & Terminating) LS 1 $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 y $4.20

Location Total $345,287.88 $318,988.10 $33,493.75

Location: CIL 760+20 - Anderson Dr Main.

10' x 10' Relay House 4 Gate EA 1 $256,500.00 $256,500.00 $256,500.00 y $26,932.50

House Installation LS 1 $12,247.20 $12,247.20 $0.00 n $0.00

Crossing Gate Complete EA 2 $10,303.20 $20,606.40 $20,606.40 y $2,163.67

Pedestrian Gate EA 2 $12,568.50 $25,137.00 $25,137.00 y $2,639.39

Gate Installation EA 2 $4,660.20 $9,320.40 $0.00 n $0.00

Install Pedestrian Gate EA 2 $2,326.05 $4,652.10 $0.00 n $0.00

Cantilever W/22' Arm EA 1 $15,427.80 $15,427.80 $15,427.80 y $1,619.92

Cantilever Installation EA 1 $4,660.20 $4,660.20 $0.00 n $0.00

Furnish and Install Termination Shunts LS 2 $1,012.50 $2,025.00 $2,025.00 y $212.63

Battery Bank for Gates & Lights LS 2 $2,976.75 $5,953.50 $5,953.50 y $625.12

Battery Bank for Tracks & Electronics LS 0 $2,126.25 $0.00 $0.00 y $0.00

Cable 7C #6 LF 2260 $18.56 $41,945.60 $41,945.60 y $4,404.29

Cable 7C #14 LF 1560 $9.71 $15,147.60 $15,147.60 y $1,590.50

Pull All Cables LF 3820 $3.62 $13,828.40 $0.00 n $0.00

Terminate & Test All Cables EA 20 $45.23 $904.60 $0.00 n $0.00

Rack Cables EA 10 $89.10 $891.00 $0.00 n $0.00

Misc. Tools & Hdwr (Racking & Terminating) LS 1 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 y $5.25

Location Total $429,296.80 $382,792.90 $40,193.25

Total with tax $848,271.69

DIRECT 

COST % TOTAL COST

GC's/MOBILIZATION,DE-MOB/WARRANTY $848,272 5% $42,414

PROJECT MGT/ENGINEERING/DESIGN $848,272 15% $127,241

MANUALS/DOCUMENTATION/TRAINING/TOOLS $848,272 2% $16,965

SPARE PARTS $848,272 5% $42,414

TESTING/CUTOVER/FLAGGING $848,272 5% $42,414

BONDS & INSURANCE $848,272 2% $16,965

INDIRECT COST $288,412

DIRECT AND INDIRECT COST WITHOUT OVERHEAD & 

PROFIT $1,136,684

OVERHEAD & PROFIT $848,272 10% $84,827

GRAND TOTAL $1,221,511

Note: This estimate is an excerpt from LTK's 25% cost estimate for the 

Larkspur Extension project. It reflects design, material, and labor costs related 

to the Andersen Drive at-grade crossing. The estimate does not include any 

estimated costs for train control or wayside signaling equipment unrelated to 

the crossing. Also, upon request from SMART, LTK's recommended 30% 

contingency has been removed from the estimate . It is understood that 

contingency will be dealt with separately between SMART and the City of San 

Rafael.

Rev 1 SMART Systems Larkspur Extension 25 Percent Cost Estimate - Andersen Drive Breakout

Page 1 of 1 

11/16/2016

Exhibit B-2

Page 204 of 257



LA
R

K
S

P
U

R
 E

X
TE

N
S

IO
N

 3
0%

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y

N
O

T 
FO

R
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

28' MIN

Ex
hi

bi
t D

-1

Page 205 of 257

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Text Box
Current SMART R.O.W to become City of San Rafael - Flip land exchange

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Text Box
Current City of San Rafael R.O.W to become SMART - Flip land exchange

buzz.berger
Text Box
LEGEND

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Rectangle

athleiji
Polygon

athleiji
Polygon

athleiji
Polygon

athleiji
Polygon

mwiltermood
Rectangle

mwiltermood
Text Box
Approximate Future Right-of-Way Exchange Between SMART and City of San Rafael (Francisco Blvd. W flip) 

mwiltermood
Polygon

mwiltermood
Rectangle

mwiltermood
Snapshot



LA
R

K
S

P
U

R
 E

X
TE

N
S

IO
N

 3
0%

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y

10
1

10
1

Ex
hi

bi
t D

-2

Page 206 of 257

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Rectangle

athleiji
Polygon

athleiji
Polygon

athleiji
Rectangle

athleiji
Text Box
Current SMART R.O.W to become City of San Rafael - Flip land exchange

athleiji
Rectangle

athleiji
Text Box
Current City of San Rafael R.O.W to become SMART - Flip land exchange

athleiji
Text Box
LEGEND

athleiji
Typewritten Text
SMART ROW to remain SMART 

mwiltermood
Arrow

mwiltermood
Rectangle

mwiltermood
Text Box
Approximate Future Right-of-Way Exchange Between SMART and City of San Rafael (Francisco Blvd. W flip) 



LA
R

K
S

P
U

R
 E

X
TE

N
S

IO
N

 3
0%

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y

N
O

T 
FO

R
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

10
1

Ex
hi

bi
t D

-3

Page 207 of 257

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Polygon

athleiji
Polygon

athleiji
Polygon

athleiji
Rectangle

athleiji
Text Box
Current SMART R.O.W to become City of San Rafael - Flip land exchange

athleiji
Rectangle

athleiji
Text Box
Current City of San Rafael R.O.W to become SMART - Flip land exchange

athleiji
Text Box
LEGEND

mwiltermood
Rectangle

mwiltermood
Text Box
Approximate Future Right-of-Way Exchange Between SMART and City of San Rafael (Francisco Blvd. W flip) 

mwiltermood
Rectangle

mwiltermood
Snapshot



LA
R

K
S

P
U

R
 E

X
TE

N
S

IO
N

 3
0%

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y

N
O

T 
FO

R
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

28' MIN

Ex
hi

bi
t E

-1

Page 208 of 257

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Text Box
Approximate outline of City property (in final configuration)

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Text Box
Approximate outline of SMART property (in final configuration)

buzz.berger
Text Box
City of San Rafael Excess Land to Become SMART Property

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Text Box
LEGEND

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Polygon



LA
R

K
S

P
U

R
 E

X
TE

N
S

IO
N

 3
0%

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y

N
O

T 
FO

R
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

10
1

10
1

Ex
hi

bi
t E

-2

Page 209 of 257

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Text Box
Approximate outline of City property (in final configuration)

buzz.berger
Text Box
LEGEND

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Text Box
Approximate outline of SMART property (in final configuration)

buzz.berger
Polygon



LA
R

K
S

P
U

R
 E

X
TE

N
S

IO
N

 3
0%

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y

N
O

T 
FO

R
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

10
1

Ex
hi

bi
t E

-3

Page 210 of 257

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Polygon

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Text Box
Approximate outline of City property (in final configuration)

buzz.berger
Text Box
LEGEND

buzz.berger
Rectangle

buzz.berger
Text Box
Approximate outline of SMART property (in final configuration)



Page 211 of 257



Page 212 of 257



Page 213 of 257



BO
AR

D
 O
F 
D
IR
EC

TO
RS

BU
D
G
ET

 P
RE

SE
N
TA
TI
O
N

U
pd

at
ed

 Ju
ne

 2
1,
 2
01

7

Page 214 of 257



O
VE

RV
IE
W


FY
 2
01

6‐
17

 Y
ea

r‐
En

d 
Re

po
rt

»
Fi
na

l R
ev
en

ue
s 
an

d 
Ex
pe

ns
es
 

»
Su

m
m
ar
y 
of
 C
ha

ng
es


FY
 2
01

7‐
18

 A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge
t P

ro
po

sa
l

»
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 

»
Re

ve
nu

es
 

»
Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s 
by
 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

»
Ca

pi
ta
l B

ud
ge
t

»
Ad

m
in
ist
ra
tio

n 
Bu

dg
et

»
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 B
ud

ge
t

»
Re

se
rv
es


Q
ue

st
io
ns
 

2

Page 215 of 257



FY
 2
01

6‐
17

 Y
EA

R‐
EN

D
 R
EP

O
RT

RE
VE

N
U
ES


O
rig

in
al
ly
 B
ud

ge
te
d:
 

$1
26

.8
 m

ill
io
n

»
Al
l r
ev
en

ue
s 
in
cl
ud

in
g 

gr
an

ts
 a
nd

 fu
nd

 b
al
an

ce


Re

vi
se
d:
 

$1
34

 m
ill
io
n

»
Hi
gh

er
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
fu
nd

 
ba

la
nc
e 
du

e 
to
 p
ro
je
ct
 

sh
ift
s a

nd
 a
ud

ite
d 
fin

an
ci
al
s

3

Fu
nd

 B
al
an

ce
 

Av
ai
la
bl
e

59
%

Sa
le
s/
U
se
 T
ax
es

27
%

In
te
re
st
/L
ea

se
/M

isc
.

1%

In
te
rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta
l  

‐G
ra
nt
s

13
%

TO
TA

L 
RE

VE
N
U
ES
 

$1
34

m
ill
io
n

Page 216 of 257



FY
 2
01

6‐
17

 Y
EA

R‐
EN

D
 R
EP

O
RT

EX
PE

N
D
IT
U
RE

S 


Bu

dg
et
: $

10
5 
m
ill
io
n


Cu

rr
en

t Y
ea

r‐
en

d:
 $
85

 
m
ill
io
n


Ch

an
ge
s:
 

»
Sh

ift
 in

 p
ay
m
en

ts
 to

 v
eh

ic
le
 

m
an

uf
ac
tu
re
r 

»
Sh

ift
 in

 L
ar
ks
pu

r s
ta
rt
up

 a
ct
iv
iti
es

»
Sa
la
ry
 sa

vi
ng

s f
ro
m
 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

an
tic

ip
at
ed

 h
iri
ng

 sc
he

du
le

»
Fu

el
 &
 se

rv
ic
es
 sa

vi
ng

s r
es
ul
tin

g 
fr
om

 sh
ift
 in

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 st
ar
tu
p

4

Sa
la
rie

s a
nd

 
Be

ne
fit
s

19
%

Se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd

 
Su

pp
lie
s

13
%

O
th
er
 C
ha

rg
es
 (D

eb
t 

Se
rv
ic
e)

17
%

Ca
pi
ta
l 

Im
pr
ov

em
en

ts
 &
 

Eq
ui
pm

en
t

51
%

TO
TA

L
EX

PE
N
D
IT
U
RE

S 
$8

5 
m
ill
io
n 

Page 217 of 257



FY
 2
01

7‐
18

 P
RO

PO
SE
D
 B
U
D
G
ET


O
ng

oi
ng

 a
nd

 N
ew

 C
ap

ita
l P
ro
je
ct
s

»
Fi
na

l 4
 P
at
hw

ay
 S
eg
m
en

ts
 in

 P
ha

se
 1
, o

ng
oi
ng

 d
es
ig
n

»
La
rk
sp
ur
 E
xt
en

sio
n


Pa
ss
en

ge
r O

pe
ra
tio

ns
»
Pa
ss
en

ge
r‐
fa
ci
ng

 se
rv
ic
es
: f
ar
e 
co
lle
ct
io
n,
 w
ifi
, b

us
 c
on

ne
ct
io
ns
, 

»
Ra

il,
 si
gn

al
, c
ro
ss
in
g,
 st
at
io
n 
an

d 
pa

th
w
ay
 m

ai
nt
en

an
ce


SM

AR
T 
Ad

m
in
ist
ra
tiv

e
»
In
cr
ea
se
s f
or
 li
ab

ili
ty
 in
su
ra
nc
e

»
O
ng

oi
ng

 in
ve
st
m
en

t i
n 
m
ar
ke
tin

g,
 sa

fe
ty
 o
ut
re
ac
h

»
Ad

di
tio

na
l a
cc
ou

nt
in
g 
an

d 
co
de

 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
st
af
f

5

Page 218 of 257



FY
 2
01

7‐
18

 P
RO

PO
SE
D
 B
U
D
G
ET

RE
VE

N
U
E 
O
VE

RV
IE
W


To
ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s 
$1

14
 

m
ill
io
n

»
Pr
oj
ec
tio

n 
of
 2
%
 g
ro
w
th
 

in
 sa

le
s t
ax

»
La
rk
sp
ur
 e
xt
en

sio
n 
gr
an

t
»
G
ra
nt
 fo

r 4
 n
ew

 ra
il 
ca
rs

»
Av

ai
la
bl
e 
fu
nd

 b
al
an

ce
 o
f 

$5
4 
m
ill
io
n

»
Fa
re
/p
ar
ki
ng

 re
ve
nu

e 
of
 

$2
.9
8 
m
ill
io
n

6

Av
ai
la
bl
e 
Fu

nd
 

Ba
la
nc
e

48
%

Sa
le
s/
U
se
 T
ax
es

33
%

In
te
re
st
 &
 L
ea
se
, 

M
isc

. 
1%

G
ra
nt
s &

 
In
te
rg
ov

er
nm

en
t

16
%

Ch
ar
ge
s f
or
 

Se
rv
ic
es
 ‐‐

Fa
re
s 

&
 F
ee

s
2%

TO
TA

L 
AV

AI
LA

BL
E 
RE

VE
N
U
ES
 

$1
14

m
ill
io
n

Page 219 of 257



FY
 2
01

7‐
18

 P
RO

PO
SE
D
 B
U
D
G
ET

EX
PE

N
DI
TU

RE
S 
O
VE

RV
IE
W


To
ta
l e
xp
en

di
tu
re
s 

pr
oj
ec
te
d 
$1

02
 m

ill
io
n


Pr
es
en

te
d 
in
 th

re
e 

de
pa

rt
m
en

ts
 ‐‐

»
Ad

m
in
ist
ra
tio

n:
 $
42

 m
ill
io
n 

(In
cl
ud

es
 d
eb

t s
er
vi
ce
, 

de
pr
ec
ia
tio

n)
 

»
Ca

pi
ta
l p

ro
je
ct
s:
 $
38

 m
ill
io
n

»
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 : 
$2

1 
m
ill
io
n

7

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
21

%

Ca
pi
ta
l P
ro
je
ct
s

37
%

Ad
m
in
ist
ra
tio

n
12

%

De
pr
ec
ia
tio

n
16

%

De
bt
 S
er
vi
ce

14
%

PR
O
PO

SE
D
 E
XP

EN
D
IT
U
RE

S 
BY

 F
U
N
CT

IO
N

To
ta
l $

10
2 
m
ill
io
n

Page 220 of 257



CA
PI
TA

L
BU

D
G
ET

 F
IS
CA

L
YE

AR
 2
01

7‐
18


To
ta
l E
xp
en

di
tu
re
s 
of
 $
38

 m
ill
io
n 
w
ill
 p
ay
 fo

r:

»
Co

ns
tr
uc
tio

n 
of
 fo

ur
 p
at
hw

ay
 se

gm
en

ts
»
Fi
na

l V
eh

ic
le
 a
cc
ep

ta
nc
e 
pa

ym
en

ts
»
Co

ns
tr
uc
tio

n 
of
 Je

nn
in
gs
 c
ro
ss
in
g 
(F
un

de
d 
by

 C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta
 R
os
a)

»
De

sig
n 
fo
r P

ay
ra
n
to
 S
ou

th
po

in
tp

at
hw

ay
»
De

sig
n/
bu

ild
 p
ha

se
 o
f L
ar
ks
pu

r e
xt
en

sio
n 
pr
oj
ec
t 

»
O
ng

oi
ng

 d
es
ig
n 
an

d 
pr
og

re
ss
 p
ay
m
en

ts
 a
dd

iti
on

al
 fo

ur
 c
ar
s

»
O
ng

oi
ng

 p
er
m
itt
in
g 
an

d 
m
iti
ga
tio

n 
co
st
s

8

Page 221 of 257



AD
M
IN
IS
TR

AT
IO
N
 B
U
D
G
ET

9


In
cr
ea

se
 in

 in
su
ra
nc
e 
an

d 
re
te
nt
io
n 
fo
r l
ia
bi
lit
ie
s


In
cr
ea

se
 in

 d
eb

t s
er
vi
ce
 fo

r 
bo

nd


Su

pp
or
t f
or
 n
ew

 w
eb

sit
e,
 

on
go

in
g 
m
ar
ke
tin

g 
an

d 
sa
fe
ty
 

ou
tr
ea

ch


In
cr
ea

se
 in

 In
fo
rm

at
io
n 

Te
ch
no

lo
gy
 s
er
vi
ce
s,
 

m
on

ito
rin

g


In
cr
ea

se
d 
em

er
ge
nc
y 
re
sp
on

se
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss


Ad

di
tio

na
l s
ta
ff 
fo
r c

od
e 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e,
 re

ve
nu

e 
ac
co
un

tin
g,
 D
ist
ric

t 
m
an

ag
em

en
t

Sa
la
rie

s a
nd

 
Be

ne
fit
s

13
%

Se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd

 
Su

pp
lie
s

10
%

De
bt
 S
er
vi
ce

34
%

De
pr
ec
ia
tio

n
37

%

In
su
ra
nc
e 
an

d 
Re

te
nt
io
n

6%

AD
M
IN
IS
TR

AT
IO
N
 E
XP

EN
SE
S 

TO
TA

L 
$4

2 
m
ill
io
n

Page 222 of 257



O
PE

RA
TI
O
N
S 
BU

D
G
ET

 F
Y
20

17
‐1
8

To
ta
l e
xp
en

di
tu
re
s 
of
 $
22

 
m
ill
io
n


Fu

ll 
st
af
fin

g,
 e
qu

ip
m
en

t, 
sp
ar
e 
pa

rt
s,
 

co
m
m
un

ic
at
io
ns
, t
ra
in
in
g


Cu

st
om

er
 se

rv
ic
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
 

an
d 
re
la
te
d 
ne

ed
s


Pa
ss
en

ge
r‐
fa
ci
ng

 s
er
vi
ce
s:
 

fa
re
 c
ol
le
ct
io
n,
 w
ifi
, b

us
 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
, a
pp

lic
at
io
ns


Ra

il,
 si
gn

al
, c
ro
ss
in
g,
 

st
at
io
n 
ne

ed
s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ra
il 
sc
ru
bb

er
 a
nd

 p
at
hw

ay
 

m
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 e
qu

ip
m
en

t


SM
AR

T 
“a
m
ba

ss
ad

or
s”
 to

 
as
sis

t w
ith

 ri
de

rs

10

Sa
la
rie

s a
nd

 
Be

ne
fit
s

56
%

Se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd

 
Su

pp
lie
s

33
%Ca
pi
ta
l 

Eq
ui
pm

en
t &

 
Re

pl
ac
em

en
t

8%

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Co

nt
in
ge
nc
y

3%

O
PE

RA
TI
O
N
S 
D
EP
AR

TM
EN

T
To
ta
l E
xp

en
di
tu
re
s $

22
 m

ill
io
n

Page 223 of 257



FI
SC

AL
 R
ES
ER

VE
S 
D
ET
AI
LS
 F
Y 
20

17
‐1
8

RE
SE
RV

ES
:


Ap

pr
op

ria
te
d 
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C
on

tin
ge
nc
y 
of
 $
60

0,
00

0

»
Fu

el
, E
qu

ip
m
en

t n
ee

ds


Se

lf 
In
su
ra
nc
e 
Re

te
nt
io
n 
of
 $
1,
00

0,
00

0


Re

se
rv
e 
fu
nd

 fo
r O

pe
ra
tio

ns
: $

16
.2
 M

ill
io
n

»
Em

er
ge
nc
ie
s

»
Ec
on

om
ic
 d
ow

nt
ur
n,
 fa

re
 re

ve
nu

e 
flu

ct
ua

tio
n


Es
ta
bl
is
hm

en
t o

f E
qu

ip
m
en

t R
ep

la
ce
m
en

t f
un

d:
 In

iti
al
 d
ep

os
it 
$5

25
,0
00


Ca

pi
ta
l R

es
er
ve
: $

10
 m

ill
io
n

»
Cl
os
eo

ut
 o
f p

ro
je
ct
 (s
ev
er
al
 re

gu
la
to
ry
 is
su
es
 p
en

di
ng

)

»
Se
tu
p 
of
 si
nk

in
g 
fu
nd

s f
or
 re

pl
ac
em

en
t o

f m
aj
or
 e
qu

ip
m
en

t o
ve
r t
im

e

»
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 n
ee

ds
 th

at
 m

ay
 a
ris
e 
du

rin
g 
se
rv
ic
e

11

Page 224 of 257



Resolution No. 2017-05 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

June 21, 2017 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A REVISED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
AND AN ANNUAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-18, PROVIDING FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT 
OF NEW DISTRICT EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE SECTIONS 105050 AND 
105052(b) AND FIXING THE COMPENSATION AND SALARY OF ALL DISTRICT EMPLOYEES FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2017-18, ADOPTING A STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2017-18, AND DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO INVEST CERTAIN FUNDS UNDER THE CONTROL OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
              

WHEREAS, Section 8.01 of Article VIII of the Administrative Code of the Sonoma-Marin 
Area Rail Transit District (“SMART”) requires that the Board of Directors (“Board”) adopt an 
annual budget for the ensuing fiscal year no later than the District’s June meeting; and 

WHEREAS, a preliminary Revised Budget for Fiscal Year 2016-17 and an Annual Budget 
for Fiscal Year 2017-18 was prepared by the Chief Financial Officer and presented to the Board 
at its May 17, 2017 meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the preliminary Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-18 has been available for 
public inspection since May 17, 2017, in excess of the minimum 10-day public inspection period 
prescribed by the Administrative Code; and 

WHEREAS, at its duly noticed meetings on May 17, 2017, and June 21, 2017, the Board 
fully reviewed and considered the Revised Budget for Fiscal Year 2016-17 and the Annual 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-18, at which time all interested persons were given the opportunity 
to hear and be heard; and 

WHEREAS, at its meeting on May 17, 2017 meeting, the Board duly considered the 
creation of employee positions and the fixing of the compensation and salary for those newly 
created positions as well as the adjustment of the compensation and salary of some existing 
positions; and 

WHEREAS, certain non-cash transactions such as the recording of donated assets that 
do not require appropriation authority and are not included in the annual budget but must be 
recorded during the preparation of financial statements for each fiscal year; and  

 

Page 225 of 257



WHERAS,  California Government Code Section 53607 authorizes the Board to delegate 
to the Chief Financial Officer the authority to invest certain funds of SMART on deposit with the 
County of Sonoma Treasury for up to one year; and 

WHEREAS, included in the delegation of authority for investments is the authority to 
transfer funds between accounts in order to maximize investment returns for the District; and  

WHEREAS, upon such delegation the Chief Financial Officer assumes full responsibility 
for those transactions until the Board revokes this authority or does not renew the annual 
delegation by resolution; and 

WHEREAS, nothing in this resolution limits the Chief Financial Officer’s authority 
pursuant to Government Code Sections 53635 and 53684; and 

WHEREAS, all investments are reported monthly to the Board of Directors as required 
by Government Code Section 53646; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 53646 requires that the Chief Financial 
Officer annually submit a statement of investment policy to the Board for its review and 
approval; and 

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer presented and the Board duly considered the 
Statement of Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2017-18 at a noticed public meeting of the Board 
of Directors on June 21, 2017. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Revised Fiscal Year 2016-17 Budget and 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 Annual Budget for the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District attached 
hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the funding for this Final Budget is being provided to 
SMART by way of Measure Q sales tax, reimbursements from grants from the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission, property revenues, Sonoma County’s Measure M, and Federal 
Transit Administration Funds, among other funds, all as more fully described in Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that based upon competent evidence and acting pursuant to 
the provisions of the Enabling Legislation, the salaries, wages, compensation and expenses for 
management and non-management employees for Fiscal Year 2017-18 shall be as provided for  
also in Exhibit A, Table 4,  SMART Position Authorizations, and such compensation shall be 
compensation in full for all official services performed by such managers and employees, unless 
expressly provided otherwise. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Financial Officer is authorized to complete any 
necessary budgetary and accounting transfers and adjustments to implement the adopted FY 
2017-18 budget and to re-establish valid prior year encumbrances in FY 2017-18. Such 
adjustments shall include but not be limited to decreasing appropriations in any and all funds 
associated with projects initiated prior to the 2017-18 fiscal year-end to meet actual available 

Page 226 of 257



resources. Authority includes budgetary and accounting adjustments necessary to assign year-
end actual fund balances, and increasing or decreasing appropriations for previously approved 
projects, operations and maintenance expenses and budgetary and accounting adjustments 
necessary to assign actual fund balances. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, in accordance with the provisions of Government Code 
Section 53646, the Statement of Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2017-18 attached hereto as 
Exhibit B is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, pursuant to Government Code Section 53607, the Board 

of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District hereby delegates to the Chief 
Financial Officer the authority to create and maintain accounts as necessary for management of 
the District’s funds, including the ability to invest and reinvest funds in the Sonoma County 
Treasury for a period of one year. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Financial Officer is authorized, as part of 
preparing the financial statements for the fiscal year, to record necessary non-cash transactions 
such as those related to donated assets as necessary for the proper presentation and recording 
of assets held by the Agency.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin 
Area Rail Transit District held on the 21st day of June, 2017, by the following vote:  

 
DIRECTORS: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 

 

              ________________________________         

Debora Fudge, Chair, Board of Directors       
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District   

ATTEST:  
 

_____________________________________________ 

Leticia Rosas-Mendoza, Clerk of the Board of Directors                 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District

Page 227 of 257



EXHIBIT A 
 

REVISED FINAL BUDGET REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 and 
ANNUAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 AND RELATED POSITION AUTHORIZATIONS 

 
 
 
 

Page 228 of 257



 

 

 

SONOMA‐MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 
PROPOSED BUDGET: FISCAL YEAR 2017‐18 

and 
Fiscal Year 2016‐17 Year‐End Report 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  JUNE 21, 2017   

Page 229 of 257



 

PROPOSED BUDGET: FISCAL YEAR 2017‐18 
and Fiscal Year 2016‐17 Year‐End Report 

 

 

CONTENTS 

1. OVERVIEW:  YEAR‐END FINANCIAL REPORT AND PROPOSED BUDGET  

TABLE 1:  OVERVIEW FY 2016‐17 and FY 2017‐18 
 

2. YEAR‐END FINANCIAL REPORT:  FY 2016‐17 REVISED  

OVERVIEW 

TABLE 2:  FY 2016‐17 YEAR‐END REPORT 

DISCUSSION ‐‐ YEAR‐END REPORT 
 

3. PROPOSED BUDGET: FY 2017‐18  

OVERVIEW 

TABLE 3:  PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2017‐18 

DISCUSSION ‐‐ PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

TABLE 4:  POSITION AUTHORIZATION FY 2017‐18 

 

 

 

 

   

Page 230 of 257



 

 
 

OVERVIEW 
SMART’s two‐year budget document contains both the Fiscal Year 2016‐17 Year‐End Financial Report, which 
reflects financial changes since the budget was approved in June 2016, and the Proposed Fiscal Year 2017‐18 
Annual Budget to begin in July 2017. The Year‐End Financial Report reflects ongoing capital activity on 
completion of the Phase 1 project, as well as ramp up for the Larkspur extension.  The Proposed Annual 
Budget contains both ongoing Phase 1 project activities and our projected costs for a full year of passenger 
service.  
 
TABLE 1 (below) provides a combined, broad overview of SMART’s budget, including the final report on the 
end of Fiscal Year 2016‐17 and the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2017‐18.  This chart also shows funds 
available in SMART’s Beginning Fund Balance, which are not annual revenues but contain sales tax funds 
reserved for completion of the capital project, startup activities, and future financial needs. Detailed 
discussion of the annual components of each fiscal year and additional charts are provided in the pages that 
follow, including a breakout of expenditures by Administration, Operations and Capital expenditures.   
 

 

 

   

TABLE 1

FY 2016‐17  FY 2016‐17   FY 2017‐18 

 APPROVED BUDGET ALL 
DEPARTMENTS 

 YEAR END ACTUALS & 
ESTIMATES

ALL DEPARTMENTS  

 PROPOSED BUDGET: ALL 
DEPARTMENTS 

REVENUES
Beginning Fund Balance 67,014,497                                   78,674,736                              54,362,265                                  
Sales/Use Taxes 36,286,248                                   36,286,248                              37,011,973                                  
Interest and Lease Earnings  864,697                                         961,154                                    689,088                                        
Intergovernmental Revenues ‐ Grants 20,522,580                                   17,580,611                              18,641,961                                  
Charges for Services ‐‐ Fares, Parking and Fees 2,006,000                                      53,343                                      2,980,000                                     
Miscellaneous Revenues  60,000                                            334,573                                    50,000                                           
TOTAL REVENUES INCLUDING FUND BALANCE 126,754,022                                 133,890,665                           113,735,288                                

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and Benefits 16,503,572                                   15,578,572                              18,866,052                                  
Services and Supplies 12,107,969                                   10,873,445                              14,549,441                                  
Other Charges and Payments 13,663,527                                   13,773,099                              14,314,100                                  
Buildings, Capital Improvements, and Equipment 58,346,630                                   39,877,764                              38,445,239                                  
Interfund Transfers (1,196,770)                                    (1,066,770)                              (1,208,467)                                   
Contingency & Equipment Reserve 600,000                                         492,290                                    1,125,000                                     
Depreciation 5,191,464                                      5,191,464                                15,698,600                                  
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 105,216,392 84,719,863 101,789,965

BUDGET REPORT: SUMMARY OF ALL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Page 231 of 257



 

 
 

YEAR‐END FINANCIAL REPORT:  FY 2016‐17 ACTUALS AND ESTIMATES 

 
YEAR‐END FINANCIAL REPORT OVERVIEW – TABLE 2: 

The Year‐end Fiscal Year 2016‐17 Financial Report reflects both actual revenues and expenditures to date 
and estimates for the final weeks of the fiscal year.   TABLE 2, on the following pages, detail the changes 
from the Budget as approved by the Board, including subsequent amendments.  Where there is a significant 
change of $25,000 or more, we have provided an explanation of those changes.    A more detailed discussion 
of the Year‐End Financial Report is provided after presentation of TABLE 2.  

   

Page 232 of 257



 FY 2016‐17  FY 2016‐17 

DESCRIPTION  APPROVED BUDGET 
  YEAR‐END ACTUALS 

& ESTIMATES 

REVENUES:

Sales/Use Taxes
Board of Equalization Cost on Taxes 842,890               847,860             
Sales Tax withheld by Trustee 13,600,350         13,600,350        
Net Sales Tax  21,843,008         21,838,038        

Total Sales/Use Taxes 36,286,248               36,286,248              Sales tax anticipated to be on budget

Intergovernmental Revenues
State ‐ Grant Funds 2,104,500            469,683              Tied to expenditures that have shifted to new Fiscal Year
Federal ‐ ISTEA  ‐                        182,499              Project closeout originally anticipated in prior year
Federal ‐ Grant Funds 7,152,966            8,087,468           Pathway costs shifted from prior year for  completion
Other Governments 2,478,177            2,881,949           Project reimbursements from Santa Rosa, Sonoma and Marin
Measure M ‐ Sonoma County 350,000               10,000                 Tied to pathway design occurring in FY2018
MTC ‐ Bridge Tolls 8,436,937            5,949,012           Funds shifted to FY2018 to match rail vehicle expenditures

Total Intergovernmental Revenues 20,522,580               17,580,611             

Use of Money/Property
Interest Earnings 377,500               473,957              Higher fund balance and resulting earnings
Rent ‐ Real Estate 487,197               487,197             

Total Use of Money/Property 864,697                     961,154                   

Charges for Services
Fare Revenue 1,976,000                  ‐                             Fare revenue shifted to FY18
Other Charges ‐ Fees, Reimbursements 30,000                  53,343                 Higher right‐of‐entry permit fees

Total Charges for Services 2,006,000                  53,343                     

Miscellaneous Revenues
Sale ‐ Lease/Purchase ‐                        261,855              Real estate option payments
Miscellaneous Revenue 60,000                  72,718                

Total Miscellaneous Revenues 60,000                        334,573                   

TOTAL REVENUES  59,739,525          55,215,929        

PAGE 1 of 3 (Continued Next Page)

TABLE 2
YEAR-END FINANCIAL REPORT:  FY 2016-17 REVISED BUDGET

ADMINISTRATION, CAPITAL AND OPERATIONS

 EXPLANATION OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 

Page 233 of 257



 FY 2016‐17  FY 2016‐17 

DESCRIPTION  APPROVED BUDGET 
  YEAR‐END ACTUALS 

& ESTIMATES 

TABLE 2
YEAR-END FINANCIAL REPORT:  FY 2016-17 REVISED BUDGET

ADMINISTRATION, CAPITAL AND OPERATIONS

 EXPLANATION OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 

EXPENDITURES:
ADMINISTRATION
Salaries and Benefits

Employee Salaries 3,269,600            3,269,600          
Employee Benefits 930,337               930,337             

Total Salaries and Benefits 4,199,937                  4,199,937                

Services and Supplies
Communications 55,026                  174,070              One‐time  termination charges ‐ internet provider switch for ongoing savings
Insurance 2,073,693            1,629,128           Decreased amount due to shift in passenger operations
Maintenance‐Facilities 13,502                  17,530                
Miscellaneous Expense 41,600                  36,900                
Office Expense 118,480               96,725                
Postage, Printing, Periodicals 39,700                  29,200                
Accounting/ Payroll Services 85,701                  84,401                
Professional Services  906,796               753,004              Reduced need for IT consulting
Agency Extra Help 100,000               50,000                 Reduced need for staff coverage
Board of Equalization Administrative Fees 842,890               847,860             
Legal Services 485,000               751,500             
Rents/Leases 680,369               710,910             
Computer Software and Hardware 394,198               268,810             
Public Outreach 573,000               520,100             
Training, Travel and Memberships 149,873               112,792             

Increase due to labor  negotiations, regulatory expertise (see writeup p.  236) 
Includes new lease for Cotati customer service
Shift of hardware purchases to FY18
Savings on printing/other services
Based on actual expenses to date

Mileage Expense 48,020                  37,640                
Total Services and Supplies 6,607,848            6,120,569          

Other Charges and Payments
Bond Principal, Interest 13,600,350         13,600,350        
Settlements 113
Depreciation 5,191,464            5,191,464          

Total Other Charges 18,791,814               18,791,927             
Buildings & Capital Improvements (Capital Assets)

Equipment  69,000                  63,210                
Total Buildings and Capital Improvements 69,000  63,210

Contingencies
Total Contingencies

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES 29,668,599               29,175,644             

CAPITAL
Salaries and Benefits

Employee Salaries 937,971               837,971             
Employee Benefits 258,799               228,799             

Total Salaries and Benefits 1,196,770                  1,066,770                 Based on projected actuals

Services and Supplies
Maintenance‐Facilities ‐  17,819                 Repair of signal equipment during construction
Professional Services ‐ Project 364,500               239,383              Reduction of work with Real Estate Consultants
Computer Software and Hardware 21,605                  ‐ Cost reduced, shifted to next year
 Memberships 2,000  500
Training, Travel 5,000  5,000
Permits/Fees ‐  45,000                 Permits and fees associated with Capital Project
Mileage Expense ‐  10,000                 Mileage reimbursement for site visits
Total Services and Supplies 393,106               317,703             

Other Charges and Payments
Other Governments 63,177                  172,636              Cooperative work with jurisdictions 

Total Other Charges 63,177  172,636

PAGE 2 of 3 (continued)

Page 234 of 257



 FY 2016‐17  FY 2016‐17 

DESCRIPTION  APPROVED BUDGET 
  YEAR‐END ACTUALS 

& ESTIMATES 

TABLE 2
YEAR-END FINANCIAL REPORT:  FY 2016-17 REVISED BUDGET

ADMINISTRATION, CAPITAL AND OPERATIONS

 EXPLANATION OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 

CAPITAL (continued)

Buildings & Capital Improvements (Capital Assets)
Land 231,000               574,181              Mira Monte monitoring, Larkspur Extension Real Estate Costs
Buildings & Improvements ‐  ‐
Machinery and Equipment  35,100                  32,710                
Capital Equipment ‐ Work in Progress 22,446,083         14,125,175         Shift of Rail Car Payments to FY18
Intangible Asset ‐  2,000 Utility Easments
Infrastructure 32,409,448         23,970,676         Shift of some Larkspur Extension costs to FY18

Total Buildings and Capital Improvements 55,121,631               38,704,742             

Interfund Transfers
Salaries and Benefits Transfer ‐ Capital (1,196,770)          (1,066,770)          Accounting adjustment for salaries included in asset amounts

Total Interfund Transfer (1,196,770)                (1,066,770)              

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 55,577,914               39,195,080             

OPERATIONS
Salaries and Benefits

Employee Salaries 8,582,462            7,982,460          
Employee Benefits 2,524,403            2,329,405          

Total Salaries and Benefits 11,106,865               10,311,865         Savings due to vacancies

Services and Supplies
Uniform Expense 141,436               141,436             
Communications 57,176                  147,484              Cell service for DMU WIFI, radio equipment, phone service
Maintenance‐Equipment 62,000                  70,858                
Maintenance‐Radios 122,095               119,095             
Maintenance‐Revenue Vehicles ‐  122,608             
Maintenance‐Railway 474,000               397,905              Slightly lower costs for debris removal, repair and clean‐up
Maintenance of Signals 225,000               225,000             
Maintenance‐Buildings/Facilities 21,400                  71,530                
Maintenance ‐ Pathway ‐  ‐
Printing Services 10,000                  5,000
Office Expense 162,549               120,661              Savings based on actuals
Special Services‐Operations 1,245,000            492,841              Tied to passenger operations ‐ shifted to FY18
Rents/Leases ‐ Equipment 66,600                  118,930              Increased need for rental of specialty equipment
Minor Equipment 275,005               406,834              Ramping up inventory for all operations
Computer Software and Hardware 21,000                  239,301              Connectivity and security for Roblar Facility, maintenance managmt. system
Training,Travel and Memberships 323,500               253,700              Savings based on actuals (Relocation reimbursements, specialized training)
Fuel and Lubricants 1,256,654            848,224              Cost of diesel fuel/lubricants adjusted pending full passenger runs
Miscellaneous 24,500                  15,642                
Professional Services  286,800               282,642              Increased IT services for connectivity between systems
Utilities 332,300               355,481             

Total Services and Supplies 5,107,015            4,435,173          

Buildings & Capital Improvements (Capital Assets)
Vehicles, Equipment  2,849,185            899,330              Some equipment purchases shifted to FY18
Software/ Intangible Assets 306,813               210,481              Shift of non‐capital costs to Computer software

Total Buildings and Capital Improvements 3,155,998                  1,109,811                

Contingencies
Operating Contingencies 600,000               492,290              Remaining balance

Total Contingencies 600,000  492,290
TOTAL OPERATIONS EXPENDITURES 19,969,878               16,349,139             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 105,216,392       84,719,863          
PAGE 3 of 3

Page 235 of 257



FISCAL YEAR 2016‐17 YEAR‐END REPORT: DISCUSSION 

Below are further details on the FY 2016‐17 Year‐End Financial Report. 

TABLE 2: YEAR‐END FINANCIAL REPORT DISCUSSION 

Revenues:   

Final revenues for Fiscal Year 2016‐17 are anticipated to be $55,215,929.  They were reduced by $4.5 million 
from the originally proposed budget primarily due to two changes: loss of fare revenue with a delay in the 
start of passenger service and a shift in grant funding related to rail vehicle payment timing.  Below are 
further details on changes from the original budget: 

 Sales tax is still projected to be on target at 3% higher than the prior year.   We have noticed a
flattening of revenue growth, but are not yet recommending a change in expectations.

 State Cap and Trade funds for the 8th and 9th rail vehicle sets are tied to the completion of
milestones that are not anticipated to be reached before June and are shifted to the next year.

 Similarly, Bridge Toll funds for final acceptance of the 7th rail vehicle set are also shifted to the new
fiscal year.

 The final option payment on a 2009 Railroad Square property sale.
 Interest earnings were increased to reflect good performance by the Sonoma County Pool and

higher fund balance during the year.

Expenditures: 

Year‐end expenditures are projected to be $84,719,863.  In Table 2 they are separated by capital, 
administrative and operations uses.  This is necessary for reporting at the state and federal level and 
provides additional clarity on the ongoing vs. one‐time expenditures.  Final expenditures in the year‐end 
report, as a whole, are lower than the approved budget.  Notable changes are discussed in more detail 
below. 

Administration:  Total expenditures on District administration are projected to be reduced from $29,668,599 
to $29,175,644.  Some notable changes are: 

 Decrease in insurance costs due to shift in carrying passengers and thus the execution of new
policies.

 Decrease in computer equipment costs related to shifts in purchasing of replacement hardware to
new fiscal year

 Although offset by other decreases, legal costs did increase as a result of increased time on labor
negotiations, specialized expertise for freight negotiation, and increased claims activities.

Other notable changes are explained in Table 2. 

Page 236 of 257



Capital: Total expenditures on capital projects are reduced from $55,577,914 to $39,195,080.   This is 
primarily due to the following changes: 

 A reduction in Capital Equipment by $8.3 million related to anticipated delay in payments to the car
builder pending final acceptance of the rail vehicles and completion of milestones for the new 8th

and 9th vehicle sets.  Those payments are shifted to Fiscal Year 2017‐18.
 Shifts in Larkspur extension project costs to the next fiscal year following delays related to San

Rafael‐related project elements.

Other changes are listed in Table 2. 

Operations:  Total expenditures in the Operations Department have been reduced from $19,969,878 to 
$16,349,139.  Notable changes are outlined below: 

 Operations special services, which includes contracted operations needs such as fare machine
maintenance, emergency bus services and security is reduced by $752,159 due to the shift in the
start of service reducing the need for those services.

 Fuel and lubricants are reduced $408,430 to match anticipated year‐end amounts and are tied to
the shift in startup schedules.

 Computer and communications costs were both increased related to increasing needs for train WiFi,
connectivity at our Roblar facility, and integration of numerous systems within operations.

 Equipment and vehicles decreased by $1.9 million due to removal of wheel truing equipment and
locomotive from budget.  Costs of both exceeded available funds and are other options are being
considered.

Please reference Table 2 for other details on changes.  

Page 237 of 257



PROPOSED BUDGET: FY 2017‐18 

PROPOSED BUDGET TABLES OVERVIEW  

TABLE 3, which spans the following three pages, shows the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2017‐18.  It is 
divided into Revenues and Expenditures.  All Revenues are combined into one section.  Expenditures are 
divided into three subsections: Administration, Capital and Operations.    Where there is an annual change 
of significance over the prior year, we have provided an explanation of those changes.    More detailed 
discussion of the Fiscal Year 2017‐18 Proposed Budget can be found following TABLE 3.   Finally, TABLE 4, 
which follows the budget discussion, contains the Personnel and Position Authorizations for Fiscal Year 
2017‐18 and includes a column showing any changes from the prior year.   

Page 238 of 257



 FY 2016‐17  FY 2017‐18 

DESCRIPTION
  YEAR‐END ACTUALS 

& ESTIMATES  PROPOSED BUDGET

REVENUES:

Sales/Use Taxes
Board of Equalization Cost on Taxes 847,860                 890,253                Increase in state collection costs
Sales Tax withheld by Trustee 13,600,350           14,204,100          Debt schedule increase
Net Sales Tax  21,838,038           21,917,620         

Total Sales/Use Taxes 36,286,248                 37,011,973                Assumption of 2% increase

Intergovernmental Revenues
State ‐  Grants and Rail/Transit 469,683                 4,321,096            State Commuter Rail/STA Funding, Additional Rail Sets 
Federal ‐ ISTEA  182,499                 ‐ Project completed in FY17
Federal ‐ Grant Funds 8,087,468             8,157,643            Larkspur Extension Project ongoing
Other Governments 2,881,949             1,805,000            Construction of Jennings Crossing
Measure M ‐ Sonoma County 10,000  285,000                Sonoma Pathway Project ‐ Payran to Southpoint design
MTC ‐ Bridge Tolls 5,949,012             4,073,222            7th car set final funding, Larkspur extension, transit connection signs

Total Intergovernmental Revenues 17,580,611                 18,641,961               

Use of Money/Property
Interest Earnings 473,957                 295,000                Reduction due to drawdown of fund balances
Rent ‐ Real Estate 487,197                 394,088                Reduction due to lease termination for Larkspur Extension

Total Use of Money/Property 961,154 689,088

Charges for Services
Fare Revenue ‐  2,925,000 New
Parking Revenue ‐  25,000 New
Other Charges ‐ Fees, Reimbursements 53,343  30,000                  Dispatch payments

Total Charges for Services 53,343 2,980,000                 

Miscellaneous Revenues
Sale ‐ Lease/Purchase 261,855                 ‐ Prior Revenue not continued
Miscellaneous Revenue 72,718  50,000                 

Total Miscellaneous Revenues 334,573 50,000

TOTAL REVENUES  55,215,929           59,373,023         

PAGE 1 of 3 (Continued Next Page)

TABLE 3
PROPOSED BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

ADMINISTRATION, CAPITAL AND OPERATIONS

EXPLANATION OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES

Page 239 of 257



 FY 2016‐17  FY 2017‐18 

DESCRIPTION
  YEAR‐END ACTUALS 

& ESTIMATES  PROPOSED BUDGET

TABLE 3
PROPOSED BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

ADMINISTRATION, CAPITAL AND OPERATIONS

EXPLANATION OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES

EXPENDITURES:
ADMINISTRATION
Salaries and Benefits

Employee Salaries 3,269,600             4,103,790           
Employee Benefits 930,337                 1,205,496           

Total Salaries and Benefits 4,199,937  5,309,286                  Step adjustments, benefit cost increases, filling of vacant positions

Services and Supplies
Communications 174,070                 46,700                  Elimination of one‐time costs 
Insurance 1,629,128             2,677,667            Increased liability insurance limits, self insured retention
Maintenance‐Facilities 17,530  17,530                 
Miscellaneous Expense 36,900  43,600                 
Office Expense 96,725  123,030                Savings in prior year not rebudgeted
Postage, Printing, Periodicals 29,200  35,500                 
Accounting/ Payroll Services 84,401  86,000                 
Professional Services  753,004                 908,534                Increased for IT needs and emergency response
Agency Extra Help 50,000  100,000                Placeholder for short term leave coverage if needed
Board of Equalization Administrative Fees 847,860                 890,253                State fee increases
Legal Services 751,500                 525,000                Prior year rail  legal expertise complete
Rents/Leases 710,910                 741,194                Increase scheduled in current lease and new Cotati lease
Computer Software and Hardware 268,810                 318,401                Replacement computers/software; license renewals
Public Outreach 520,100                 312,000                Prior year startup marketing complete
Training, Travel and Memberships 112,792                 187,300                Increase for staff training, recruitment of Deputy General Manager
Mileage Expense 37,640  37,740                 
Total Services and Supplies 6,120,569             7,050,449           

Other Charges and Payments
Bond Principal, Interest 13,600,350           14,204,100          Debt schedule increase
Settlements 113 ‐
Depreciation 5,191,464             15,698,600          Non‐cash accounting entry tied to placing infrastructure in service

Total Other Charges 18,791,927                 29,902,700               
Buildings & Capital Improvements (Capital Assets)

Equipment  63,210  85,000                  Server hardware replacements
Total Buildings and Capital Improvements 63,210 85,000

Contingencies
Operating Contingencies ‐ ‐

Total Contingencies
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES 29,175,644                 42,347,435               

CAPITAL
Salaries and Benefits

Employee Salaries 837,971                 919,013               
Employee Benefits 228,799                 289,454               

Total Salaries and Benefits 1,066,770  1,208,467                  Step adjustments, benefit cost increases

Services and Supplies
Maintenance‐Facilities 17,819  ‐ All facilities costs in operations following acceptance
Postage, Printing, Periodicals ‐ 5,000
Professional Services ‐ Project 239,383                 243,000               
Computer Software and Hardware ‐ 12,645                 
Memberships 500 2,000
Training, Travel 5,000 5,000
Permits/Fees 45,000  50,000                 
Mileage Expense 10,000  10,000                 
Total Services and Supplies 317,703                 327,645              

Other Charges and Payments
Other Governments 172,636                 110,000                Cooperative work with jurisdictions 

Total Other Charges 172,636 110,000

PAGE 2 of 3 (continued)

Page 240 of 257



 FY 2016‐17  FY 2017‐18 

DESCRIPTION
  YEAR‐END ACTUALS 

& ESTIMATES  PROPOSED BUDGET

TABLE 3
PROPOSED BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

ADMINISTRATION, CAPITAL AND OPERATIONS

EXPLANATION OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES

CAPITAL (continued)

Buildings & Capital Improvements (Capital Assets)
Land 574,181                 2,754,000            Land purchase set‐aside for Larkspur extension
Machinery and Equipment  32,710  ‐
Capital Equipment ‐ Work in Progress 14,125,175           9,203,450            Railcar final acceptance and new 7th and 8th Set payments
Intangible Asset 2,000  ‐
Infrastructure 23,970,676           25,157,870          Larkspur Extension; Novato, San Rafael, Cotati and other pathway work

Total Buildings and Capital Improvements 38,704,742                 37,115,320               

Interfund Transfers
Salaries and Benefits Transfer ‐ Capital (1,066,770)            (1,208,467)          

Total Interfund Transfer (1,066,770)                  (1,208,467)               

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 39,195,080                 37,552,965               

OPERATIONS
Salaries and Benefits

Employee Salaries 7,982,460             9,516,920           
Employee Benefits 2,329,405             2,831,379           

Total Salaries and Benefits 10,311,865           12,348,298          Filling of vacant positions, step and benefit costs  

Services and Supplies
Uniform Expense 141,436                 230,064                Uniforms, protective equipment ‐ based on hiring and replacement
Communications 147,484                 191,007                Multiple digital communication systems management
Maintenance‐Equipment 70,858  188,000                Truck and heavy equipment maintenance
Maintenance‐Radios 119,095                 128,675               
Maintenance‐Revenue Vehicles 122,608                 274,169                Train Wheel truing, vehicle calibration tools, spart parts
Maintenance‐Railway 397,905                 397,165                Contract reduction due to hiring of permanent staff
Maintenance of Signals 225,000                 128,320                Contract reduction due to hiring of permanent staff
Maintenance‐Buildings/Facilities 71,530  240,660                Station, platform and facilities cleaning, spare parts
Maintenance ‐ Pathway ‐ 42,500                  Fence repair, weed abatement; new category
Printing Services 5,000 5,000
Office Expense 120,661                 155,000                Growth for additional facilities and staff
Special Services‐Operations 492,841                 ‐ Category discontinued, moved to professional services
Agency Extra Help ‐ 100,000                Allowance for temporary staff as necessary
Rents/Leases ‐ Equipment 118,930                 77,880                  Equipment purchases replace leases
Minor Equipment 406,834                 227,800                Decrease due to prior year purchases of necessary equipment
Computer Software and Hardware 239,301                 214,754               
Training,Travel and Memberships 253,700                 254,300               
Fuel and Lubricants 848,224                 1,423,607           
Miscellaneous 15,642  65,000                 
Professional Services  282,642                 2,403,538           
Utilities 355,481                 423,910               

Increased in anticipation of full passenger operations
Increased for unanticipated daily operating needs
Fare machine maintenance, bus connections, other (see writeup p. 244 ) 
Projected increase in Utilities  ‐ water, garbage, power

Total Services and Supplies 4,435,173             7,171,347           

Buildings & Capital Improvements (Capital Assets)
Buildings & Improvements ‐  15,000 Rail Operations Facility improvements
Vehicles, Equipment  899,330                 1,229,919            Rail scrubbing machine, Pathway maintenance vehicle, extra  wheel set
Software/ Intangible Assets 210,481                 ‐ Maintenance Management System complete

Total Buildings and Capital Improvements 1,109,811  1,244,919                 

Equipment Replacement
Annual Allocation  525,000 Allocation for future equipment replacement schedule

525,000

Contingencies
Operating Contingencies 492,290                 600,000                Contingency for emergencies, unanticipated equipment

Total Contingencies 492,290 600,000

TOTAL OPERATIONS EXPENDITURES 16,349,139                 21,889,565               

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 84,719,863           101,789,965         
PAGE 3 of 3

Page 241 of 257



PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017‐18 BUDGET: DISCUSSION 

TABLE 3:  PROPOSED BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2017‐18 

Overview: 

The Fiscal Year 2017‐18 budget proposal contains all the anticipated revenues and expenses related to final 
completion of the Phase 1 project, continuation and ramp‐up of the Larkspur extension, and a full year of 
passenger service operations.  There will continue to be a difference between revenues and expenditures 
since we will not be charging full fares until September.  In addition, the passage of SB 1 by the State will 
bring revenues to the District, but will only start beginning January of 2018.  As a result of this difference, 
again we are anticipating that operating expenditures will be $3.5 million higher than revenues.   However, 
as we discussed last year at this time, we have been protecting a minimum fund balance in all of our 
financial calculations in order to cover this unique scenario.  In addition, in future years, we will have a full 
year of fare revenue and additional state operating funds.   Our anticipated operating reserve balance, at 
the close of Fiscal Year 2017‐18, is projected to be $16.2 million.  We continue to think that a healthy 
reserve is key to the ongoing stability of the District.  Further, a healthy capital reserve to prepare for 
unforeseen expenses that a new agency could experience is also critical.  Rail accidents, unforeseen 
regulatory demands and operating realities could mean a number of unanticipated capital expenses in our 
first year of operations.  In addition, we are holding funds for equipment replacement in the future, as well 
as, unanticipated capital project closeout costs.  For all of these reasons, we are maintaining a total $10 
million capital reserve. 

Below is a discussion of all revenues and expenditures changes of note in Table 3, the Proposed Budget for 
Fiscal Year 2017‐18.  

Revenues: 

Revenues available to fund the budget in Fiscal Year 2017‐18, not including available fund balance, are 
$59,373,023.  Revenues include sales tax, new state rail funding, passenger fares and parking fees, and 
grants for ongoing capital expenses.  Some highlights are outlined below: 

 As reported during the year, we are beginning to see a slowdown in the growth of sales tax funds in
the last three quarters of revenue. As a result, we are budgeting for a more conservative 2%
increase in sales tax for the new fiscal year.

 Fare revenue of $2,925,000 is included in anticipation of full fare service beginning September 2017.
 Grant funding of $12.6 million is tied to ongoing pathway projects, ramp up of the Larkspur

extension, final payments for rail cars and initial payments for the 7th and 8th car sets.
 Conservative projections of $25,000 related to parking at SMART‐owned lots is included.
 A decrease of $178,957 in interest earnings as a result of the drawdown of fund balance set aside

for the project.

Expenditures: 

Administration: 

There are a few notable increases that lead to an increased overall administrative budget for Fiscal Year 
2017‐18 from $29,175,644 to $42,347,435.  Those changes are as follows: 

 Increase of $1,048,539 in liability and self‐insured retention costs related to the start of passenger
service and a general increase in claims activity.

Page 242 of 257



 Debt service costs increase by $603,750 in accordance with the 2012 bond sale structure.
 Significant increase in depreciation expense as our new infrastructure and vehicles are placed into

service. This does not result in actual spending but is required for transparency in financial
reporting.

 Salary and benefits increase of $1.1 million to fund needed new positions, benefit cost increases,
and implementation of regular salary step increments within approved salary ranges.

Capital:  

Capital Budget expenditures in Fiscal Year 2017‐18 decrease from $39,195,080 to $37,552,965.  The 
Proposed Capital Budget includes final payments for completion of Phase 1, including acceptance of all 
systems, facilities and rail car sets.   In addition, the following are also included in Capital expenditures: 

 Authorization of $1.4 million for progress payments for additional four rail cars funded by the State
of California Cap and Trade funds.

 Payments of $7.5 million to vehicle manufacturer for original seven rail car sets.

 Shift of $2 million for completion of pathway segments in Novato (Franklin to Grant and Rush Creek
to Novato North station) that were delayed due to permitting.

 Appropriation of $13.4 million in anticipated expenditures for the Larkspur extension project.

 Inclusion of $1.8 million for the City of Santa Rosa for the Jennings Avenue crossing paid entirely by
the City of Santa Rosa.

 Deletion of vacant and unused positions and addition of a new Associate Engineer position and
reclassification of Three Junior Engineers to Assistant Engineers to allow for the progression of
engineering positions for current staff.  Engineering positions are funded primarily by grant and
other funds for projects.

Operations: 

The Proposed Operations Budget shows increases in SMART operating costs from $16,349,139 to 
$21,889,565 primarily due to increased services related to startup of passenger services.   This level of 
expenditure is necessary to provide 24‐hour dispatching, seven‐day‐a week scheduled service, train and 
signal operation, vehicle maintenance and regulatory tracking, and maintenance of all SMART infrastructure 
and facilities (including track, structures, grade crossings, communications, signals and pathway).  Significant 
highlights include the following: 

 Salary and benefits increase of $2 million.  This increase is for two reasons: first, the addition of 2
Engineer‐Conductors, 2 vehicle Maintenance Technicians, 1 Track Maintainer, and 1 Signal
Technician. Second, an increase due to anticipated staffing compared to the prior year. Positions are
listed in further detail in Table 4.

Page 243 of 257



 Decreases in Maintenance of Signals totaling $96,680 due to hiring of permanent staff. Previously
SMART relied on contracts for these functions.

 Increase of $169,130 for Maintenance of Facilities to ensure stations are cleaned and well‐
maintained, which includes additional signage, parts and services.

 Deletion of Special Services‐Operations account and shift of those expenses to Professional Services.
Total budget for Professional Services is $2.4 million.  This is an increase of $2.1 million over the
prior year due to the start of service.  It includes large contracts for maintenance and management
of fare vending machines, payments to transit operators for bus connectors to future SMART
stations, customer service provided by Golden Gate, expertise in operational technical systems,
hosting and maintenance of WiFi, and emergency bus bridge services.

 Expenditures of $1,423,607 for fuel and other necessary fluids.  This budget is a conservative
estimate of costs based on our anticipated vehicle performance and includes contingency for
fluctuation of costs.

 Vehicles and Equipment (Capitalized): A total of $1,229,919 which includes the purchase of
additional wheel sets for seamless maintenance and truing of wheels throughout the year, a new
vehicle specifically for pathway maintenance, a forklift, and a scrubber for ongoing conditioning of
the rails.

 Creation of an equipment replacement fund with an allocation of $525,000 tied to vehicles and
other equipment.  This will be an ongoing annual allocation to provide for the replacement of
equipment as needed in the future.

 The budget also includes an appropriated contingency of $600,000 to allow for necessary
expenditures not anticipated at budget time, but which may arise during regular operations.  In the
current year this funding was used only for emergency costs related to flooding during the storms.
Given the startup nature of SMART there are likely a number of logistical or service needs that could
require these resources.   Operational needs above the contingency amount will be brought to the
Board for their consideration, and would be funded by available operating fund balance.

Page 244 of 257



 

 
 

 

TABLE 4, on the following pages, contains the Personnel and Position Authorizations for Fiscal Year 2017‐18 
and includes a column showing any significant changes from the prior year.  In addition to noted changes, 
we have adjusted the salary ranges to make them more uniform, with regular steps for advancement within 
a salary range.  In a number of cases, our salary ranges were overly broad and we have thus adjusted them 
to a more standard 20% range from top to bottom.  There are very few significant changes as a result and 
only two of our positions, Accountant and Real Estate Specialist, required a top step shift of 10%.   

 

Page 245 of 257



TABLE 4

Position FTE

Low High Low High

ADMINISTRATIVE

Accountant  2 68,266                82,971                32.82             39.89 Added One

Accounting and Payroll Assistant 1 49,525                60,195                23.81             28.94          

Administrative Analyst/ Contracts 1 75,338                91,582                36.22             44.03          

Administrative Assistant 2 44,866                54,538                21.57             26.22          

Assistant Planner* 1 64,979                78,978                31.24             37.97          

Assistant General Counsel 1 129,709             157,664             62.36             75.80          

Chief of Police 1 154,190             187,408             74.13             90.10          

Chief Financial Officer 1 207,355             252,054             99.69             121.18        

Clerk of the Board 1 68,266                82,971                32.82             39.89          

Code Compliance Officer 2.5 50,752                61,693                24.40             29.66           Added One

Communications and Marketing Manager 1 120,453             146,411             57.91             70.39          

Community Outreach Coordinator 1 66,602                80,954                32.02             38.92          

Community Outreach Specialist 1 103,854             126,256             49.93             60.70          

Deputy General Manager 1 227,781             276,869             109.51           133.11        

Fiscal Manager  1 117,520             142,834             56.50             68.67          

General Counsel  1 207,355             252,054             99.69             121.18        

General Manager  1 ‐                      293,655             141.18        

Human Resources Manager 1 114,650             139,360             55.12             67.00          

Human Resources Principal Analyst 1 103,854             126,256             49.93             60.70          

Information Systems Specialist 1 114,650             139,360             55.12             67.00          

Legal Administrative Assistant 1 61,838                75,171                29.73             36.14          

Payroll Technician 1 49,525                60,195                23.81             28.94          

Procurement Coordinator 1 96,450                117,229             46.37             56.36           Title Change

Programming and Grants Manager 1 126,547             153,816             60.84             73.95          

Real Estate Officer 1 71,718                87,173                34.48             41.91           Title Change

Real Estate Manager 1 143,166             174,034             68.83             83.67           Title Change

Senior Administrative Assistant 1 61,838                75,171                29.73             36.14          

Senior Administrative Analyst 1 85,238                103,626             40.98             49.82          

Senior Planner 1 85,238                103,626             40.98             49.82          

Subtotal Administrative Full Time Equivalents (FTE) 32.5

CAPITAL POSITIONS

Assistant Engineer * 5 81,141                98,634                39.01             47.42           Added Three

Associate Engineer* 1 96,450                117,229             46.37             56.36           New 

Chief Engineer 1 170,186             206,877             81.82             99.46          

Construction Manager *  0 158,038             192,109             75.98             92.36           Deleted

Deputy Project Manager * 1 170,186             206,877             81.82             99.46          

Junior Engineer * 1 71,718                87,173                34.48             41.91           Deleted Four

Project Extra hires *  
Up to total 

amount  50,000               

Construction Engineer *  1 106,454             129,397             51.18             62.21           New Title

Senior Rail Engineer * 0 143,166             174,034             68.83             83.67           Deleted

Subtotal Capital Full Time Equivalents (FTE) 10

Table 4 : Continued on Next Page (Page 1 of 2)

Fiscal Year 2017‐18 : Proposed Position Authorization (Revised)

Salary Range Annual Salary Range: Hourly
CHANGE 

Page 246 of 257



TABLE 4

Position FTE

Low High Low High

Fiscal Year 2017‐18 : Proposed Position Authorization (Revised)

Salary Range Annual Salary Range: Hourly
CHANGE 

OPERATIONS POSITIONS

Administrative Services Manager 1 81,141                98,634                39.01             47.42          

Assistant Superintendent of Transportation 1 98,862                120,162             47.53             57.77          

Bridge Tender* 2 43,763                53,206                21.04             25.58          

Controller /Supervisor 10 89,565                108,867             43.06             52.34          

Conductor** 11 58,864                71,552                28.30             34.40          

Engineer‐Conductor** 23 69,971                85,051                33.64             40.89           Added Two

Extra Hires Operations
Up to total 

amount               190,400 

Facilities Maintenance Supervisor 1 89,565                108,867             43.06             52.34          

Facilities Maintenance Technician 2 54,662                66,435                26.28             31.94          

Laborers 5 43,763                53,206                21.04             25.58          

Operations Manager 1 170,186             206,877             81.82 99.46

Parts Clerk 2 56,014                68,099                26.93 32.74

Railroad Information Systems Specialist 1 101,338             123,157             48.72 59.21

Safety & Compliance Officer 1 109,117             132,642             52.46 63.77

Signal Supervisor 2 96,450                117,229             46.37 56.36

Signal Technician 9 75,338                91,582                36.22 44.03 Added One

Superintendent of  Vehicle Maintenance 1 117,520             142,834             56.50 68.67

Superintendent of Transportation 1 117,520             142,834             56.50 68.67

Superintendent Signals and Way 1 117,520             142,834             56.50 68.67

Track Maintainer 5 57,429                69,805                27.61 33.56 Added One

Track Maintenance Supervisor 2 91,790                111,592             44.13 53.65

Vehicle Maintenance Supervisor 4 91,790                111,592             44.13 53.65

Vehicle Maintenance Technician 10 69,971                85,051                33.64 40.89 Added Two

Subtotal Operations Full Time Equivalents (FTE)** 85

TOTAL  ALL SMART DEPARTMENTS 127.5
*  Denotes Limited‐Term  Position Dependent on Project need

** Engineer/Conductor  may be filled by Conductors, Total FTE  for both positions combined is 23

Table 4 : Page 2 of 2

Page 247 of 257



EXHIBIT B 

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 

 

1.0  Policy: 
This investment policy is intended to outline the guidelines and practices to be used in 
effectively managing the SMART District (District’s) available cash and investment portfolio. 
District monies not required for immediate cash requirements will be invested in compliance 
with the California Government Code Section 53600, et seq.  
 
2.0  Scope:  
This policy applies to all the financial assets accounted for in the District’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report and any new fund created by the District, unless specifically exempted. 
The investment of bond proceeds will be governed by the provisions of relevant bond 
documents.  
  
3.0  Prudence:  
The Board of Directors and Chief Financial Officer adhere to the guidance provided by the 
“prudent investor rule,” California Government Code Section 53600.3, which obligates a 
fiduciary to ensure that “when investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, 
or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions 
and the anticipated needs of the agency that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and 
familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like character and with like 
aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the agency.  Within the 
limitations of this section and considering individual investments as part of an overall strategy, 
investments may be acquired as authorized by law.” 
 
4.0  Objectives: 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 53600.5, and in order of importance, 
the Chief Financial Officer shall adhere to the following three criteria: 

 
(a) Safety of Principal – Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the 

investment program. Investments of the District shall be undertaken in a manner 
that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. 

(b) Liquidity – Investments shall be made whose maturity date is compatible with 
cash flow requirements and which will permit easy and rapid conversion into 
cash without substantial loss of value. 

 
(c) Return on Investment – The District’s investment portfolio shall be designed with 

the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and 

Page 248 of 257



economic cycles, taking into account the District’s investment risk constraints 
and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. 

 
5.0  Delegation of Authority:   
The authority of the Board to purchase or sell securities for the District’s portfolio, may be 
delegated by the Board to the Chief Financial Officer, who shall thereafter assume full 
responsibility for those transactions until the delegation of authority is revoked.  The Chief 
Financial Officer shall act in accordance with established written procedures and internal 
controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment policy.  
 
The oversight responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to the Chief 
Financial Officer who shall monitor and review all investments for consistency with this 
Investment Policy.  
 
The Chief Financial Officer may delegate investment decision making and execution authority to 
an independent SEC-registered investment advisor. The advisor shall comply with this Policy 
and such other written instructions as are provided by the Chief Financial Officer. 

 
6.0  Investment Procedures: 
 The Chief Financial Officer shall establish written operational procedures pertaining to the 
investment of District funds.  These procedures shall be compliant with the parameters and 
limits set forth by this investment policy.  The procedures should regulate actions regarding: 
safekeeping, repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, banking service contracts, and 
collateral/depository agreements. Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority 
to persons responsible for investment transactions. No person may engage in an investment 
transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by 
the Chief Financial Officer.  

 
7.0  Ethics and Conflicts of Interest:  
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business 
activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment 
program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions. Employees and 
investment officials shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they 
conduct business to the Chief Financial Officer. They shall further disclose any personal 
financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the investment 
portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking personal investment 
transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of the 
District. 
 
8.0  Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions:   
For brokers/dealers of government securities and other investments, the Chief Financial Officer 
shall select only brokers/dealers who are licensed and in good standing with the California 
Department of Securities, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the National Association of 
Securities Dealers or other applicable self-regulatory organizations.  Before engaging in 

Page 249 of 257



investment transactions with a broker/dealer, the Chief Financial Officer shall obtain a signed 
verification form that attests the individual has reviewed the District’s Investment Policy, and 
intends to present only those investment recommendations and transactions to the District 
that is appropriate under the terms and conditions of the Investment Policy. 
 
If an Investment Advisor is authorized to conduct investment transactions on the District’s 
behalf, the Investment Advisor may use their own list of approved broker/dealers and financial 
institutions for investment purposes. 
 
9.0  Authorized and Suitable Investments: 
The District is governed by the California Government Code, Sections 53600, et seq.  Within the 
context of these limitations, the investments listed below are authorized.  Those investments 
not identified are considered to be ineligible.   
 

1. U.S. Treasury Obligations. United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills, or certificates of 
indebtedness, or those for which the full faith and credit of the United States are 
pledged for the payment of principal and interest. 

 
2. U.S. Agency Obligations. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored 

enterprise obligations, participations, or other instruments, including those issued by 
or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States 
government-sponsored enterprises. 

 
3. California State and Local Agency Obligations. Obligations of the State of California or 

any local agency within the state, including bonds payable solely out of revenues from 
a revenue producing property owned, controlled or operated by the state or any local 
agency or by a department, board, agency or authority of the state or any local 
agency. 
 

4. Other State Obligations. Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 
United States in addition to California, including bonds payable solely out of the 
revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a 
state or by a department, board, agency, or authority of any of the other 49 United 
States, in addition to California. 

 
5. Bankers’ Acceptances. Time drafts or bills of exchange that are drawn on and 

accepted by a commercial bank and brokered to investors in the secondary market. 
The maximum maturity of an issue will be 180 days. Securities eligible for investment 
under this subdivision shall be rated in the highest letter and number category by 
nationally recognized statistical-rating organization. The maximum exposure shall be 
no more than 40% of the portfolio value.  However, no more than 30 percent of the 
agency’s money may be invested in the bankers' acceptances of any one commercial 
bank pursuant to this section. 

 

Page 250 of 257



6. Commercial Paper. Commercial paper of “prime” quality of the highest ranking or of 
the highest letter and number rating as provided for by a nationally recognized 
statistical-rating organization. The entity that issues the commercial paper shall meet 
all of the following conditions in either paragraph a or paragraph b:  

 
a. The entity meets the following criteria: (i) Is organized and operating in the 

United States as a general corporation. (ii) Has total assets in excess of five 
hundred million dollars ($500,000,000). (iii) Has debt other than commercial 
paper, if any, that is rated “AA” or higher by a nationally recognized statistical-
rating organization. 

 
b. The entity meets the following criteria: (i) Is organized within the United States 

as a special purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company. (ii) Has 
program wide credit enhancements including, but not limited to, over 
collateralization, letters of credit, or surety bond. (iii) Has commercial paper that 
is rated “AA” or higher, or the equivalent, by a nationally recognized statistical-
rating organization. 

 
Eligible commercial paper shall have a maximum maturity of 270 days or less. The 
District may invest no more than 25 percent of its money in eligible commercial paper. 
The District may purchase no more than 10 percent of the outstanding commercial 
paper of any single issuer. 

 
7. Medium-Term Notes. Medium-term notes are defined in Government Code Section 

53601 as all corporate and depository institution debt securities with a maximum 
remaining maturity of five years or less, issued by corporations organized and 
operating within the United States or by depository institutions licensed by the United 
States or any state and operating within the United States. Notes eligible for 
investment under this subdivision shall be rated “AA” or better by a nationally 
recognized statistical-rating organization. Purchases of medium-term notes shall not 
include other instruments authorized by section 53601 and may not exceed 30% of 
the portfolio value. 
 

8. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit. Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a 
nationally or state-chartered bank, a savings association or a federal association (as 
defined by Section 5102 of the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a 
state-licensed branch of a foreign bank. Securities eligible for investment under this 
subdivision shall be rated in the highest letter and number category by a nationally 
recognized rating service for short-term ratings (A-1/P1/F-1) and AA or better for 
longer-term ratings. Purchases of negotiable certificates of deposit may not exceed 30 
percent of the District’s aggregate portfolio.  

 
9. Time Deposits. The District may invest in non-negotiable time deposits (CDs) that are 

FDIC insured or fully collateralized in a state or national bank, savings association or 

Page 251 of 257



federal association, federal or state credit union located in California, including U.S. 
branches of foreign banks licensed to do business in California. To be eligible to 
receive local agency deposits, a financial institution must receive a minimum overall 
“satisfactory rating” for meeting the credit needs of California Communities in its most 
recent evaluation. CDs are required to be collateralized as specified under 
Government Code Section 53630 et seq. The District, at its discretion, may waive the 
collateralization requirements for any portion that is covered by federal deposit 
insurance. The District shall have a signed agreement with any depository accepting 
District funds per Government Code Section 53649. No deposits shall be made at any 
time in CDs issued by a state or federal credit union if a member of the Governing 
Council or the Finance Director serves on the board of directors or any committee 
appointed by the board of directors of the credit union. In accordance with 
Government Code Section 53638, any deposit shall not exceed that total shareholder’s 
equity of any depository bank, nor shall the deposit exceed the total net worth of any 
institution.  

 
10. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a pooled investment fund through the State 

Chief Financial Officer. Deposits for the purpose of investment in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund of the State Treasury may be made up to the maximum amount 
permitted by State Treasury policy. 
 

11. Money Market Funds. The Chief Financial Officer may invest in shares of 
beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies that are money 
market funds registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940 (Government Code Section 53601(k).)  
 
The following criteria will be used in evaluating companies: 
 

a. Attain the highest ranking letter and numerical rating provided by not less than 
two nationally recognized rating services; or  

 
b. Have an investment advisor registered or exempt from registration with the 

Securities and Exchange Commission with not less than five (5) years’ experience 
managing money market mutual funds and with assets under management in 
excess of $500,000,000.  

 
c. The maximum purchase price of shares shall not exceed 20% of the portfolio. 

However, no more than 10 percent of the agency's funds may be invested in 
shares of beneficial interest of any one mutual fund. 

 
12. Local Government Investment Pools. Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint 

powers authority organized pursuant to Government Code Section 6509.7 that invests 
in the securities and obligations authorized in subdivisions (a) to (o) of Government 
Code Section 53601, inclusive. Each share shall represent an equal proportional 

Page 252 of 257



interest in the underlying pool of securities owned by the joint powers authority. To 
be eligible under this section, the joint powers authority issuing the shares shall have 
retained an investment adviser that meets all of the following criteria: 

a. The adviser is registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. 

 
b. The adviser has not less than five years of experience investing in the securities 

and obligations authorized in subdivisions (a) to (o) Government Code Section 
53601, inclusive. 

 
c. The adviser has assets under management in excess of five hundred million 

dollars ($500,000,000). 
 
Credit criteria and sectors and issuers percentages for investments listed in this section will be 
determined at the time the security is purchased. A decline in the overall investment balances 
that causes the percent to any investment above its maximum policy limit will not be 
considered out of compliance. The District may from time to time be invested in a security 
whose rating is downgraded. In the event a rating drops below the minimum allowed rating 
category for that given investment type, the Chief Financial Officer shall notify the District 
General Manager and District Council and recommend a plan of action. 
 
10.0  Prohibited Investments:  
Under the provisions of California Government Code Sections 53601.6 and 53631.5, the District 
shall not invest any funds covered by this Investment Policy in inverse floaters, range notes, 
mortgage-derived, interest-only strips or any investment that may result in a zero interest 
accrual if held to maturity. 
 
11.0   Collateralization:  
Collateralization is required on Certificates of Deposit as per California Government Code section 
53601.  The collateralization level for certificates of deposit is 100% of market value of principal 
and accrued interest.  
 
 The entity chooses to limit collateral to the following: U.S. Treasuries and Federal Agency 
Obligations.   Collateral will always be held by an independent third party with whom the entity 
has a current custodial agreement. A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping 
receipt) must be supplied to the entity and retained. The right of collateral substitution is 
granted.  
  
12.0  Safekeeping and Custody:  
All securities purchased may be delivered versus payment (“DVP”) basis, and held in safekeeping 
pursuant to a safekeeping agreement.  
 
 
 

Page 253 of 257



13.0  Maximum Maturities:  
To the extent possible, the District will attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash 
flow requirements. For certain instruments, the term of the investment is limited by market 
convention or as otherwise prescribed herein.  No investments may be acquired that exceed five 
(5) years, unless approved by the Board at least 90 days in advance of the purchase. 
 
14.0  Internal Control:  
The Chief Financial Officer shall establish an annual process of independent review by an 
external auditor.   This review will provide internal control by assuring compliance with policies 
and procedures.   The Chief Financial Officer may, at any time, further restrict the securities 
approved for investment as deemed appropriate.   
 
15.0  Performance Standards:  
The investment portfolio will be designed to obtain a market average rate of return during 
budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the District’s investment risk constraints 
and cash flow needs.  
 
16.0  Reporting: 
In accordance with Government Code Section 53607, the Chief Financial Officer shall submit an 
annual report to the Board indicating the types of investment by fund, institution, date of 
maturity, and amount of deposit, and shall provide the current market value of all securities 
with a maturity of more than twelve (12) months, rates of interest, and expected yield to 
maturity. 
 
17.0 Investment Policy Adoption: 
The Chief Financial Officer may, at any time, further restrict the securities approved for 
investment as deemed appropriate.   
 
Additionally, the Chief Financial Officer shall annually send a copy of the current Investment 
Policy to all approved dealers.  Each dealer is required to return a signed statement indicating 
receipt and understanding of the District’s investment policies.  
 

 

 

Page 254 of 257



Resolution No. 2017-06 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

June 21, 2017 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DECLARING AND RATIFYING THE APPROPRIATION LIMIT 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 
              

WHEREAS, Article XIIIB of the California Constitution (“Article XIIIB”) places various 
limitations on the appropriations of the State of California and local public agencies; and 

WHEREAS, Article XIIIB requires the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (“SMART”) 
to set an annual appropriations limit based on factors which include the appropriations limit 
for the prior fiscal year, population growth (if any), and inflation; and 

WHEREAS, SMART’s annual appropriations limit was first set at $100,000,000 for Fiscal 
Year 2008-09 with the passage of Measure Q; and 

WHEREAS, SMART approved subsequent annual appropriations limits as required by 
law; and 

WHEREAS, the information supporting these adjustments is attached hereto as Exhibit 
A; and 

WHEREAS, the information used to make these calculations for SMART was made 
available for public inspection in SMART’s offices on June 1, 2017, and has been available 
for at least 15 days prior to the scheduled adoption of this resolution, in accordance with 
the requirements of California Government Code section 7910.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Appropriations Limit for SMART FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 
shall be $132,986,287. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin 
Area Rail Transit District held on the 21st day of June, 2017, by the following vote:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 255 of 257



Resolution No. 2017-06 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

June 21, 2017 
 
 
DIRECTORS: 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 

 

              ________________________________         

Debora Fudge Chair, Board of Directors       
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District   

ATTEST:  
 

_____________________________________________ 

Leticia Rosas-Mendoza, Clerk of the Board of Directors                 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District  

 

Page 256 of 257



EXHIBIT A 
 

CALCULATION OF SMART APROPRIATION LIMITS 
 

FISCAL YEAR 
 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

     BEGINNING LIMIT 
 

 $115,074,050   $120,443,426   $127,615,646  

     PER CAPITA INCREASE IN COST OF LIVING 
 

1.0382 1.0537 1.0369 

     POPULATION CHANGE 
 

1.0084 1.0053 1.0050 

     

POPULATION FACTORS USED* 
 

TOTAL SONOMA 
COUNTY 

TOTAL SONOMA 
COUNTY 

TOTAL SONOMA 
COUNTY 

     TOTAL 
 

 $120,443,426   $127,615,646   132,986,287  

 
 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

      
 
 

 
* Per Government Code §7901, special districts located in two or more counties, such as SMART, may 
choose to use the change in population for the portion of the district which has the highest assessed 
valuation. 

Page 257 of 257


	01_Agenda_06.21.2017
	02_Minutes_06.07.2017
	06a_Monthly Financial Reports
	06a_Monthly Financial Reports.pdf
	06a_June 2017 Contract Summary.pdf
	Contract Report



	07_Contract Amendments Staff Report
	07_Contract Amendments (9).pdf
	07(1)_Amendment No 3 (Emtec)
	07(2)_Amendment No 5 (PFM - Financial)
	07(3)_Amendment No 12 (Netwoven)
	07(4)_Amendment No 5 (Hanson Bridgett)
	07(5)_Amendment No 1 (STV, Inc.)
	07(6)_Amendment No 5 (GHD)
	07(7)_Amendment No 7 (M. Grodner)
	07(8)_Amendment No 3 (WBE)
	07(9)_Amendment No 3 (Portola Systems)


	08_LTK Contract Amendment Staff Rpt
	09_Maze &Associates Insurance Staff Rpt
	09_Maze Assoc. Audit Services  Agreement 2017.pdf
	AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
	RECITALS.
	The above Recitals are true and correct.

	List of EXHIBITS.
	The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein:
	(a) Exhibit A:  Scope of Work
	(b) Exhibit B:  Schedule of Rates
	REQUEST FOR SERVICES.
	Initiation Conference.  SMART’s Chief Financial Officer, Erin McGrath, will initiate all requests for services through an Initiation Conference, which may be in person, by telephone, or by email.  During the Initiation Conference, the Chief Financial ...

	Amount of Work.  SMART does not guarantee a minimum or maximum amount of work under this Agreement.

	Scope of Services.
	Scope of Work.  Consultant shall perform services within the timeframe outlined in Exhibit A (cumulatively referred to as the “Scope of Work”).
	Cooperation With SMART.  Consultant shall cooperate with the Chief Financial Officer in the performance of all work hereunder.
	Performance Standard.  Consultant shall perform all work hereunder in a manner consistent with the level of competency and standard of care normally observed by a person practicing in Consultant’s profession.  If SMART determines that any of Consultan...
	Assigned Personnel.
	(c) Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform work hereunder.  In the event that at any time SMART, in its sole discretion, desires the removal of any person or persons assigned by Consultant to perform work hereunder, Consultant sha...
	(d) Any and all persons identified in this Agreement or any exhibit hereto as the project manager, project team, or other professional performing work hereunder on behalf of the Consultant are deemed by SMART to be key personnel whose services were a ...
	(e) In the event that any of Consultant’s personnel assigned to perform services under this Agreement become unavailable due to resignation, sickness or other factors outside of
	(f) Consultant’s control, Consultant shall be responsible for timely provision of adequately qualified replacements.
	(g) Consultant shall assign the following key personnel for the term of this Agreement: David Alvey, CPA, and Vikki Rodriguez, CPA.


	Payments.
	Consultant shall invoice SMART on a monthly basis, detailing the tasks performed pursuant to the Scope of Work requested by the SMART Chief Financial Officer, and the hours worked.  SMART shall pay Consultant within 30 days after submission of the inv...
	Consultant shall be paid on a time and expense basis in accordance with Exhibit B; provided, however, that total payments to Consultant shall not exceed $128,818.  Consultant shall submit its invoices in arrears on a monthly basis in a form approved b...
	Consultant must submit all invoices on a timely basis, but no later than thirty (30) days from the date the services/charges were incurred. District shall not accept invoices submitted by Consultant after the end of such thirty (30) day period without...

	Term of Agreement.
	The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect until June 30, 2020 with an option for two (2) one (1) year extensions, provided that changes in the terms and conditions of each one (1) year extension are mutually agreed upon by both parties unless ...

	Termination.
	Termination Without Cause.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, at any time and without cause, both parties shall have the right, at their sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days written notice to the other pa...
	Termination for Cause.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, should Consultant fail to perform any of its obligations hereunder, within the time and in the manner herein provided, or otherwise violate any of the terms of this Agreeme...
	Delivery of Work Product and Final Payment Upon Termination.  In the event of termination by either party, Consultant, within 14 days following the date of termination, shall deliver to SMART all materials and work product subject to Section 12.08 and...
	Payment Upon Termination.  Upon termination of this Agreement by SMART, Consultant shall be entitled to receive as full payment for all services satisfactorily rendered and expenses incurred hereunder, an amount which bears the same ratio to the total...
	Authority to Terminate.  The Board of Directors has the authority to terminate this Agreement on behalf of SMART.  In addition, the Chief Financial Officer or General Manager, in consultation with SMART Counsel, shall have the authority to terminate t...

	indemnification
	Insurance.
	Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Workers’ Compensation as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
	General Liability Insurance.  Commercial General Liability insurance covering products-completed and ongoing operations, property damage, bodily injury and personal injury using an occurrence policy form, in an amount no less than $1,000,000 per occur...
	Automobile Insurance.  Automobile Liability insurance covering bodily injury and property damage in an amount no less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for each occurrence.  Said insurance shall include coverage for owned, hired, and non-owned veh...
	Endorsements.  Prior to commencing work, Consultant shall file Certificate(s) of Insurance with SMART evidencing the required coverage and endorsement(s) and, upon request, a certified duplicate original of any of those policies.  Said endorsements an...
	(h) SMART, its officers, and employees shall be named as additional insured on all policies listed above.
	(i) That the policy(ies) is Primary Insurance and the insurance company(ies) providing such policy(ies) shall be liable thereunder for the full amount of any loss or claim which Licensee is liable, up to and including the total limit of liability, wit...
	(j) Inclusion of the Insureds as additional insureds shall not in any way affect its rights either as respects any claim, demand, suit or judgment made, brought or recovered against Licensee.  Said policy shall protect Consultant and the Insureds in t...
	(k) Consultant hereby grants to SMART a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said Consultant may acquire against SMART by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may b...
	(l) The insurance policy(ies) shall be written by an insurance company or companies acceptable to SMART.  Such insurance company shall be authorized to transact business in the state of California.

	Deductibles and Retentions.  Consultant shall be responsible for payment of any deductible or retention on Consultant’s policies without right of contribution from SMART.  Deductible and retention provisions shall not contain any restrictions as to ho...
	Claims Made Coverage.  If any insurance specified above is written on a claims-made coverage form, Contractor shall:
	(m) Ensure that the retroactive date is shown on the policy, and such date must be before the date of this Agreement or beginning of any work under this Agreement;
	(n) Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three (3) years following project completion, including the requirement of adding all additional insureds; and
	(o) If insurance is cancelled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to Agreement effective date, Contractor shall purchase “extending reporting” coverage for a minimum of three (3) years af...

	Documentation.  The following documentation shall be submitted to SMART:
	(p) Properly executed Certificates of Insurance clearly evidencing all coverages and limits required above.  Said Certificates shall be submitted prior to the execution of this Agreement.  Consultant agrees to maintain current Certificates of Insuranc...
	(q) Copies of properly executed endorsements required above for each policy.  Said endorsement copies shall be submitted prior to the execution of this Agreement.  Consultant agrees to maintain current endorsements evidencing the above-specified requi...
	(r) Upon SMART’s written request, Consultant shall provide certified copies of the insurance policies to SMART.  Said policy copies shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of SMART’s request.  After the Agreement has been signed, signed Certificate...

	Policy Obligations.  Consultant’s indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance requirements.
	Material Breach.  If Consultant, for any reason, fails to maintain insurance coverage, which is required pursuant to this Agreement, the same shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement.  SMART, in its sole option, may terminate this Agreement...

	Prosecution of Work.
	Extra or Changed Work.
	Representations of Consultant.
	Standard of Care.  SMART has relied upon the professional ability and training of Consultant as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Consultant hereby agrees that all its work will be performed and that its operations shall be conducte...
	Status of Consultant.  The parties intend that Consultant, in performing the services specified herein, shall act as an independent contractor and shall control the work and the manner in which it is performed.  Consultant is not to be considered an a...
	Taxes.  Consultant agrees to file federal and state tax returns and pay all applicable taxes on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and responsible to pay such taxes and other obligations, including but not limited to st...
	Records Maintenance.  Consultant shall keep and maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records concerning all services performed that are compensable under this Agreement and shall make such documents and records available to SMART fo...
	Conflict of Interest.  Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state law or that would otherwise conflict in any manne...
	Nondiscrimination.  Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marital status, age, ...
	Assignment Of Rights.  Consultant assigns to SMART all rights throughout the world in perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent, right to ideas, in and to all versions of the plans and specifications, if any, now or later prepared by Co...
	Ownership And Disclosure Of Work Product.  All reports, original drawings, graphics, plans, studies, and other data or documents (“documents”), in whatever form or format, assembled or prepared by Consultant or Consultant’s subcontractors, consultants...

	Demand for Assurance.
	Assignment and Delegation.
	Method and Place of Giving Notice, Submitting INVOICES and Making Payments.
	Miscellaneous Provisions.
	No Waiver of Breach.  The waiver by SMART of any breach of any term or promise contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term or provision or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or promise contained in this...
	Construction.  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, ordinance, regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree that in the even...
	Consent.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of one party is required to an act of the other party, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
	No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create and the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties.
	Applicable Law and Forum.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the substantive law of California, regardless of the law of conflicts to the contrary in any jurisdiction.  Venue for any action to enforce the terms of this Agr...
	Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference.  They are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or interpretation.
	Merger.  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure ...

	Exhibit A Scope of Work
	Consultant will audit the financial statements of SMART as of and for the years ending June 30, 2017, 2018 and 2019, with an option for years ending June 30, 2020 and 2021.  Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provi...
	Any additional information provided by SMART for the Government Finance Officers Association’s recommended elements in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, including the introductory and statistical sections prepared by SMART’s management will ...
	If required, Consultant will conduct a Single Audit of SMART’s federal financial assistance programs and render professional reports thereon.  The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) will not be audited but will be subject to “in...
	Consultant will prepare a management letter that includes required audit communications and findings and recommendations (if applicable).
	Consultant will assist SMART in compiling California State Controller’s Transit Operator’s Financial Report and submissions for federal TDA data and/or National Transit Database financial reports as required.
	Consultant will also provide a confidential review of the District’s Information Systems to include the network environment housing its financial systems.  This review will be conducted by qualified information security professionals and based on the ...
	Audit Objective
	The objective of the audit is the expression of opinions as to whether SMART's financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of the S...
	• Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance with Governm...
	• Internal control related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in acco...
	The reports on internal control and compliance will each include a statement that the report is intended for the information and use of the Board Directors; management; specific legislative or regulatory bodies; federal awarding agencies; and if appli...
	The audit will be conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amen...
	SMART’s Management Responsibilities
	Management is responsible for the basic financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all representations contained therein. Management is also responsible for identifying government award programs and understanding and complying wi...
	Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including internal controls over compliance, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met and...
	Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to Consultants and for ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly recorded. Management’s responsibilities also include i...
	SMART is responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud, or illegal acts affecting SMART involving (1) management, (2) employees who have sign...
	Management is responsible for establishment and maintenance of a process for tracking the status of audit findings and recommendations.  Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous audits or other engagements or studies related to t...
	 One (1) unbound reproducible master of each auditor prepared report
	 An electronic PDF file of each auditor prepared report
	 Twenty (20) bound copies of each final auditor-prepared report

	Exhibit B Schedule of Rates


	10_RailPros Contract Amendment Staff Rpt



